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HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL

REVENUE (M) ADJUSTED OPERATING

PROFIT (M) "
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2017 152.5 2017 7.2 2017 39 %‘
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LOSS FOR ADJUSTED DILUTED BASIC (LOSS) 3

THE YEAR (3M) EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS)  PER SHARE (CENTS)

2017 (i8.5) 2007 7.8 2017 (96.4)

1 Adjusted measures are stated before amortisation of acouwred intangible assets and exceptional items
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+ Adjusted' operating profit and adjusted profit before taxation
ahead of the pnior year.

+ Children’s publishing revenues up 2% and now reprasenting 2
over one-third of Group revenues. z
O
+ B3.2% of revenue generated from backlist titles (2017 60 3%). >
P
« Net dett reduced by 6% to $60.4m (2017 $64.0m), bt
: e
+ Cost-out programme successfully implemented. e
+ Banking facilities extended to 31 August 2020. 2
%3]
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QUARTO AT A GLANCE

We create a wide variety of books and
inteliectual property products with a mission to inspire
life’s experiences for the whole family.

C. 330 33  ¢.10,000

EMPLOYEES IMPRINTS BOOKS IN QUR CATALOGUE
c.$30M  c.63% YA
ANNUAL INTELLECTUAL OF ANNUAL SALES YEARS
PROPERTY INVESTMENT FROM BACKLIST FOUNDED IN1976

EIGHT MAIN CONTENT CATEGORIES

@ Q@ Q&

BOOKS ON BOOKS ON DESIGN. BOOKS ON BODY. MIND, BOOKS ON INTERIORS,
FOOD AND DRINK ART AND CRAFT SPIRIT, PARENTING AND ARCHITECTURE, DIY.
RELATIONSHIPS PETS AND GARDENING

BOOKS ON CARS. TRAINS, BOOKS ON BIOGRAPHY, FUN & IMAGINATIVE STATIONERY, KITS.
BOATS. MOTORCYCLES TRAVEL, HISTORY. BOOKS AND KITS FOR CALENDARS AND MORE
AND PLANES SPACE AND MORE CHILDREN OF ALL AGES
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We sell our products globally through a variety of sales
channels, partnerships and routes to market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

“The Board has been working hard to achieve a more stable
platform and the building blocks are now firmly in place.”

2018 has been a challenging year in
many respects for Quarto but also for
myself personally. I joined the Board as a
Non-Executive Director on 1 March 2018
and following the Board changes at the
2018 Annual Meeting, | was appoeinted
Chairman on 11 july 2078,

At the time of my appointmeit to the
Board, there were a number of major
issues facing the company, namely:

« The level of external debt, which was
considerably higher than the
expected norm for a company of
this size.

* The level of cost within the business,
which was difficult to justify given the
financial performance and debt
positicon.

A lack of effective communication;
many employees were not fully aware
of the company’s financial position
and unsure of the future strategic
direction.

I am pleased to confirm that since the
creation of the new Board in the middle
of this year, there has been positive
progress on all the issues highlighted
above. Inparticular:

Andy Cumming
Chairman

* Following negotiations with our
banking syrdicate, a restructuring
and extension cof facilities were
agreed which provide a solid base for
the future. As z result of the
restructuring, external debt has been
reduced and there are further
planned reductions over the term of
the new banking arrangements.

* The cost basc of the business has
been extensively reviewed, and as a
result of this exercise, costs have
been reduced and are now at an
acceptabie leve! to support the
ongoing business.

* The Board has significantly increased
the level of communication to ensure
that all employees understand the
financial issues faced by the
Company and also have more clarity
regarding the short-term imperatives.

The Board has been working hard ta
achieve a more stable platform and there
is @ genuine helief that the building
blocks arg now firmly in place. Quarto is
a great business with great pecple and
great products and the Board is fully
committed to maintaining the positive
momentum which has been achieved.

Dividend

Asin the previous year, the Board has
not recommended a payrent of a finai
dividend, given the need for further debt
reduction and investment in the
business. The dividend policy will remain
wnger review in consultation with
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Corporate Governance

There were a number of Board changes
in 2018 following the Annual Meeting
We have welcomed Ken Fund as an
Executive Director and Jane Moriarty as
a Non-Executive Director. Ken, as the
Chief Operating Officer for Quarto,
brings 34 years' publishing experience
to the Board and Jane's background as a
former senior partner at KPMG provides
wide commercial expertise.

I am thoraughly enjoying my time as
Chafrman of Quarte. This is a pecple
business and | have been really
impressed by the dedication, enthusiasm
and commitment of all the people | have
met. | {ook forward to being part of this
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S STATEMENT

“We are focused on delivering stability to the business
and returning the Group to full health.”

Strategic Overview

Qverall revenue was down 2% at

$149 3Im (2017 $152 5m) and adjusted
operating probt up 43% at $10 3m (2017
$72m) enabled by a strong trading
performance in the first half of the year
and i the fourth guarter, as well as
significant cost reduchions

This 15 a satisfactory set of resutts
censidering that the market has
continued to show softness in the book
trade both in the US and the UK. and
that the Group has had to adjust to
varigds transittons in the managerment of
the Company

A new Board was formed following the
Annual Meeting In May. with clear
olyectives te debver a naht-tizing of the
Group a path to sustainable dabil
reduction: a focus on the Group < core
sirengihs. and a discphned business
model

After a short tenure fram Laurence
Crbach Andy Currrming was apported
Non-Executive Chairman in July and has
provided a cear directicn to the Group
since His expenence has groven
mwvaluable. especially through the
renegctiations of our banking facihitres

C. K. Lau
Chief Executive Ofticer

I'would like to thank aur Chief Operating
Officer. Ken Fund. who has been with
Quarto for 20 years and who we
welcomed to the Board last year His
commitment leadership and expenence
helped the business and all of ocur
people through s particularty
challengmg year | would also hke to
thank Mick Mousley, who agreed to
came cut of retirement while we lock for
a permanent Chief Fimancial Officer.

In the last six months both the new
Boeard and semor management have
beer focused on delivering stability to
the business supportng our core
operations and starting to address our
halance sheet

In November, the exterson of our
Lanking facihities to 31 August 2020 was
a major melestoneg i returmng the Group
to full bealth This gves us 2 stable
position from whieh we can continue to
improve business performance and
reciuce debt to a more acceptable levet
as agreed vath our Carking syndicate

We completed a comprehensive
cost-out programme. fellowing a
thorough review of key areas of
expenciture Our portfolio has been
reviewed and recluced from 40 to 33
imprints. we downsized some of our
office facihities and we effected 3
significant reducion in corporate
overhead

Although the benefits will not flow
through imimediately - as we have had ¢
incur exceptional costs to implement the
cost-out programme - we have gone
nto 2019 satisfied that the Group 1s now
operating at the right size

WS Publishing revenues were down 1% at
T812m (2017 $818m) and UK
publishing revenues were flat at §20 4
(2017 $£20 3 Chiddren's publ shing
revenues grew 2 3%, led by the success
of our Lincoln Chaldren’s Books hst
Adult pubhehing revenues were dawn

4 3% due to a lower performance of
cooedition publishing

The Group s now over ane-thrd
Children's products vath continueed
Imcreased contrnibbution from the
Children s side The Adult market
remains more challenging, as the
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT (CONTINUELD)

consohdaton of publshers i the English
language co-edition market continues fo
impact sales negat:vely We are locking
at new apportunigs in custom
cublishing to grow our customer base

Our Foregn Rights sales team delivered
a sohd yvear with revenues of $31 3m,
despite strong headwinds against them

The Group ended the year with net debt
at $6C 4m down b 6% vs prior year
(2017 $64 Om) Net debt s still sizeable
and remans an mmediate focus for the
Board.

l'am very passicnate about returning the
Group to fult heatth and defining further
growth strategies for 2020 and beyond.
Quarto’s model rernains effective
talented pecple making high-guahty and
long-lasting products across a balanced
portfohe supported by an efficient
cperating platform that adapts to
market conditions

Our strategy for the Group n the short
term s to deliver stability to the
business. to continue to grow hsts where
the opportunity exists while supportung
ard improving poor perfarmimg business
units and to address aur balance sheet
by reducing cur net debt

Revenue (Sm

Umited States
United Kingdom
Rest of the Worid
Faorergn Rights

Q Partners

Total Revenue

Operating Review

Quarto s2'lsits products glokbally, in 50
countrnigs i 40 languages through a
variety of <zles channels partnerships
ard routes to market - US UK
imternational Enghsh language. Foreign
language and other Partnerships

Revenue s reported by the gecgraphy mn
which the product 1s sold Adjusted
Operating Profit 1= reported by 1P
porttolio where the product ¢
generated - US Pubhshing. UK
Publshing and G Partners

Routes to Market

In the US revenue was $81 Zm. down
marginally over the prior year (2017
$81.8m) with a strong performance from
cur Quarry and Fair Winds FPress
Imprints A strength of the US program
has been our ability to grow the
specialty retaller accounts base. whilst
the uncertainty of the book trade
continues o show lower sales in qur
publishing categories E-book and digital
revenue. although small shiowed
improvement Returns on sales were
lower than pnor year and back to an
expected rate following unusually high
levels in 2017 due to colouring books

2017
g8
203
103
344
57

152.5

In ot the US and the LK co-edition
revenues were soft especially in Enighsh
Language. as this market continues to
dechne Speaifically seme of cur Star
Wars hcensed hitles did nat cerform o
to expectations, which affects new title
sales as well as reprints

UK revenue was $20 4m level with the
prior year (2017, $2C 3m). led by a
strang performance from our Lincoln
Childrens Books. lvy Press/lvy Kids and
Wide Eyed Editions imprints The Little
Pecple Brg Dreams series continues to
be a major success and in 2019 we are
expanchng the hist to include insprational
male role rodels. The launch of our
Bulld and Become senes (White Lion
Publishing) has been well receved

Cur international English language sales
have perfarmed better than prior year
with revenues of $10 8m (2017 $10 3m)
with g strong contribution from our
Australan. Middle Eastern and Asian
markets and due to new distributors in
India and South Afnica

Foreign Language sales achieved a
strong year with revenues of $31 3m.
aithough lower than prior year (2017:
$34 4m). as a result of market place
uncertanty particularly m South
Armerica

Cur publehing partnerships and
distribubion business. O Partners, was
down 1% year-cn-year with revenue of
5 6m (2017 $5 7m) Sales have been
siow in Brazil and the launch of Quartc
Ihercamericana. ocur Spanish languzsge
partnersksp, has still to reach critical
mass Overall the bhusiness hasn't yet
reached a satisfactory level and we are
lcoking at refining the Gusiness model



intellectual Property Portfolio
Each ane of cur imprints and businesses
withir our portfeho s creatively
ndepaendent and caters to d.fferart
audiences and markets

Ciur most prafitable imorints weere
Linceln Chaidren s Books (UK acguired
in 201, relaunched in 2014) vy Press
(UK. acqguired in 2015) and Wide Fyed
Editions (UK launched in 20133

Adult publishing revenues dechned

4 3% suffering from a lower
performance of Enghsh language
ca-ediilans against pnor yaar In this
market, the consalidation of publishers
continues to impact sales negatively We
are looking at new cpportumties in
custorm pukhshing to grow our customer
base Internally. we have significantly
consclidated parts of our Adults
porifolro and are confident that itis
Detter eguipped to swit custemer and
market trends

Children's pubishing revenues grew

2 3% led by the success of our UIK-based
Lincaln Children s Books impnint, The
Group 1s now over one-third Children’s
products with continued increasea
contnbution from the Children's side

The revenue sphit between fronthsr titles
(rubhshed in 20187 and backhst titles
(nublished before 2018) was comparable
year on-year with €3 2% of pubhshing
revenues generated from backlhist titles
vs 60 2% 1N 2017 Thisis consistent with
Quarto s strategy to generate ¢ 60%
annual recurning revenues from the
Group's rich 1P catalogue and reflects
our expertise in creating long-lasting
content

Adult titles represented 65%% of backhst
revenues (2017 ©7%) and 66% of
frontiist revenues (2017 67%). while
Children's Ditles represented 35% of
backhist revenues (2017 33%) and 34%
of fronthist revenues (2017 33%) The
ncreased proportion of Children's titles
in the backhst can be explained as scme
of the Group's imprints. only started a
couple of years ago. are now becorming
estabhshed businesses

The Quarto Graup Inc Annual Report 2018

Outlook

The newly const:tuted Board s fully
focused on achieving stabilty i the
business after ¢ penced of canuderanle
change returnirg the Group o full
health and aefining further growth
strategies for 2020 and beyend

Guarto expects the ongoing soft market
conditions to continue 'n 2012 impacting
forewan language markets and the Adults
porifolio wm particular The Group
expects some arganic arcwithin
Chaldren’s and further benefits from the
cost-out programime

In the medium telong-lterm. cur
strategy remains to grow organically
through innovation and where
apphicable by acgqusition and to
continue to drive circa 60% arnual
recurring revenue through the Group s
enduring backhst and innovative use
of 1its nch 1P catalogue

i
—
s
»
=
m
o
O
e
m
v
O
D
-

FONYNHIACD

SINIWILYLS TVIDONYNIL



The Quarto Group. Inc Annual Report 2018
Strategic Report

DIVISIONAL REVIEW

US Pubklishing

LS Puthehing adjusted cperating profit
weas up 15% to $5 2 (207 $4 6m) due
to s rombinagtion of cositve factors

+ Lowerreturrs ar sales which came
back to an expected rate after
reaching an unusually high point @0
2017 due to colouring books

« A significant reduction in expenses
through the cost-aut programme put
in place during the year

Cwverzlt we saw a 1% reduction in margin
Scme elements of this decline have been
ongong challenges which we are
addressing Cost of Goods sold were
shightly higher in 2018, impacted
negatively by an mdcrease in paper costs
FPaper costs have now stabrlised, which
shauld have a positive impact on margin
12019

Froduct developrment costs werg it line
with expectations and the pnor year
Investment in new titles has started to
be reduced as part of our cost-out
programmme, and as we use our 1P 10 new
andinnovative ways

Adjusted Operating Protit ($m)

US Publisting
UK Pukhsinng
G Partners

Group cverhesd

Total adjusted operating profit

UK Publishing

U Pubhisking adjusted operaling profit
was up 1% to $79m (ZO17 £/ °'m; due to
the falicwing factors

+ A strong performance from our
Lircoln Children s Books Ivy Fress/
vy Kids and Wide Eyed Edinons
imprints

+  Lower royalty caosts following a
negobatan ot more favourable terms
The increasing mix of sales to the
trage s a treng that we exgect to
cantinue
Benefits from our cost-out
programme with a redoction in
investment in new titles haing
acauired. as well as an overall
recuction i administrative selling
and staffing costs
Imgroved margin e aur newly formed
white Lian Street Adults imprint, due
to efficiencies across print. staffing
cosls and mvestment o new product

QG Partners

Q Partners adjusted operating profit
rermannad flat vear-on year, with a srmall
lass of $O dmin 2018 (2017 foss $OQ 4m)

The business has not yet reached a
satisfactory level as volumes rermamn
small We are looking at refiung the
business madel

208 2017

o 53 46
79 71

(0.4) (045

@5 @D

S o 10.3 72_




Quarte employs © 230 peogle aoross /7
locations ir the 1JK and the US, as well 55
a netwerk of creative contributors and
freglancers We operate Iin a competitive
international market place ancd need to
attract develop and retain creative.
talented and resourceful employees

Qur values

Quarto’s values shape our business
They make Quarto an attractive place to
develop a career. and a responsible
crganisation

Our Values

+ BE ACCOUNTABLE

+ BE PURFPOSEFUL

+ BE CONSISTENT

+ BE EXCELLENT

» BE CURIOUS

« BE COLLABORATIVE

We will not discrirminate against age.
gender, ethnicity cultural background
sexual crientation or religicus beliefs
We operate a robust recrutment policy,
including right to work checks and
commitmert to a policy of equal

OUR PEOPLE

cpportunity and treatment. to foster an
inclusive, fair and diverse environiment

Quartg has an employee code of
canduct operates anti-bribery and
corruptiaon, equal cppartunities ant
harassment and whistle-blowing policies
and observes health and safety
requirements. dernanstrating our
commitment to acting ethically and with
mtegnty in all employee and business
relationships These policies are also
reachly available to staff via the Quarto
intranet site and i the staff handbocks

Guarto nonours the dignity of alt people
and respects the laws. customs and
values of the commurities in which we

The Quarto Group Inc Annual Report 2018

operate, We are commutted to ensunng
that there 1s no modern slavery or
human trafficking 1n cur supply chams or
N any part of our business

At the end of 2018, the breakdown of
directors. semar managers and
employees was

Male Female
Directors N a2
Seniormanagers 5 10
Allemployees 90 240

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
AND SUSTAINABILITY

Corporate responsibility and
sustainability

Quarto wants to be a good corporate
wilizen and considers the ymoact oy
activities have on the enviranment . as
well as make a positive contribution 1o
society Oy making msprat:onal boagks
ano achvely sunporimg our

commur ties

Supporting communities

Guarto launched the Quarto Foundation
1 2017 3= @ meant tor our pecp'e to
support facal chianties The Quarto
Foundation continued to support iaesl
chanties dunng 2018 ho'ding everds

across all Guarto s offices to raice

meoney that the company then matches,

from "Bhnd Date with a Bocok  to a
sponsored absel!

Environmental impact and
sustainability

Most of cur impact arnses through the
rmatenals and services we procure such
as printing, producticn, distribution,
recychng and disposat of books To
reduce cur impact we adopt the
following practices

+ Use of sustamable caper most ooks
are printed on Forest Stewardship

Councl {FSCY paper supphes or for
domestic LS printing we use
Sustainahle Forestry Imnative (SF1D
caper We estimate 80% of books are
printed on sustaimable paper

« Inzressing sustamnable operalions. we
continue te corsohdate shipments
wherever poss ble 5o that the number
of journeys made 15 rrimirmised

» Ethacal crooucthon we continiug to
work wath cur suppliers to adopt
ethical standards of manufaciure
usia 1UTH Care processes
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2018 PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHTS

Adults

Bucket List Journal
Fublbshed 20i¢

$479k

O 2% of revenue

RHS Desk Diary
Pulzhshed 2012
g264k

0 2% of revenue

L wlfg
Guarto e "’E/(’
e "9, |
.. . RES E Llen

How to Dréw Cute Stuff

History of Space

Publshed 2017 Exploration
3252k FPublished 2018
O 2% of revenue £213k

Q %
g, .

Super Squishies:
Slime and Putty
First Published 2018
$213k

0 1% of revenue

Q Jéh
R “egs”

Beginner’s Keto
Pubhshed 2018
3914k

0 B% of revenue

Q@ 4

Quick Keto Meals In
30 Minutes or Less
Pubilished 2017

$559K

0 4% cf revenue

Q@ A

0 1% of revenus

The Complete
Pattern Directory
Published ZOR

$19%k

01% of revenue

Q® ©

Keto Slow Cooker
& One-Pot Meals
Pubhshed 2017

$613k

0 4% of revenue

Q@ A

Instant Pot" Electric Pressure

Cooker Cookbook
Published 2017

$415k

0 2% of revenue

Q@ =

Electric Pressure

Keto Diet

Cookbook Cooker Cookbook
Published 2017 Putslishad 2017

$Z 24k £3510k

0 7% of revenue

Q A

0 2% of tevenue

10
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Children

Little People, Big Dreams:
Coco Chanel

Published 2016

$455k

0.3% of revenue

Q@

The Book of
Comparisons
Published 2018
$383k

0.3% of revenue

Q@ v

Build: The
Human Body
Published 2017
$346k

0.2% of revenue

Q@ e

Ultimate Secret
Formula Lab
Published 2016
$486k

0.3% of revenue

Q@

Mini Movers
Published 2014
$284k

0.2% of revenue

b e s

U
s

Published 2016
$725k
0.5% of revenue

Q@ me

Little People, Big Dreams:
Frida Kahlo

Published 2016

$415k

0.3% of revenue

Q@

The Nutcracker
Published 2017
$374k

0.3% of revenue

4]
b
Q@ L

Storytime BU: The Big
Book of Bedtime Stories
Published 2017

$268k

Q.2% of revenue

Q’ mm-Y

World of Birds
Bublished 2018
$187k

0.1% of revenue

Q@ &

Squishy Human Body
Published 2006

$1,216k

0.8% of revenue

QR

Smart Circuits:
Electronics Lab
Published 2016
686k

0.5% of revenve

Q@

n

1]
ht
Q
>
pa}
m
o
a
a
m
o
o
=
—

FONYNYINOD

SLINIWILVLS TVIDONVNIA



Strategic Report

The Quarto Group, Inc. Annual Report 2018

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We make visually appealing, information-rich books and related products in a multitude
of formats, for adults, children and the whole family. Our creative portfolio of imprints
develops long-lasting content across many areas of interest.

People

Product

Each imprint has a different vision, We are proud of the
wide variety of books we publish and our unique, high

quality content.

Platform

Our imprints sit on the Quarto platform of people, sales,
marketing and operations that we have built and adhere
to the financial model through which we manage our

j portfolio

Portfolio

Qur imprints make up a diversified portfolio that
strengthens with each addition, whether arganic start-up

or acquisition.

Process

Our books and products are created by many different

Our people and talent make Quarto who we are. Our 33
imprints are creatively independent, producing what we
betieve is right for our customer base and the market.

people but underpinned by one financial model.

MARKET OVERVIEW

Quarto has been firmly anchored in
internaticnal illustrated pubiishing since
its founding in 1976.

Quarto privately commissioned a piece
of research on the trends of the global
liustrated book market.

Market size and potential

As of 2017, Quarto's addressable market
inthe US and the UK combined 15 waorth
$14 1bn’. The US market has grown 4.6%
since 2013 and is forecast to grow by a
further 8 8% by 2020; while the UK
market has grown 6.6% since 2013 and is
forecast to grow by 6.7% by 2020

General trends

The market is overall quite mature and
stabie with consumers very loyal to the
book product. On average, adult

non-fiction buyers purchase eight books
a year, and children's book buyers, nine.

There is a healthy co-existence between
print books and the digital world.
Physical books are vibrant and
preserving a diverse retail landscape.
E-Book sales have been flathning with
limited success outside of adult fiction.

Children’s and new/young adulf
publishing are leading the way in all
markets and ail channeis. Children's
books have grown ahead of other
categories in recent years. Consumers
overwhelmingly recognise the role
books play in children’s development
and do not believe digital content can
provide the same type of learning.

12

In the retaill space, the market share of

physical book specialists vs online
retallers and physical non-book

specialists has reduced in the past few

years, and is expected to decrease
further by 2020,

International book markets are
flourishing, with significant economic
and demographic changes in large
countries, for instance Brazil and
Argentina. This can present
cpportunities and chatlenges for
publishers with global reach, such as
Quarto.
1 Thus report was commissioned by and
produced for The Quarte Group in
November 2017 hy Pragma Consulting

Limited as part of a market and charnel
review
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GROWTH STRATEGY

“We are delivering stability for the business in the short term,
while defining growth strategies for 2020 and beyond.”

The wvision for Guarto remans 1o become
the dormunant publisher of dlustrated
tooks worldwide and to expand on the
use of cur IF1n as many ways as
poswble

We understand that, as a publicly traded
bLusingss. we need to deliver stability to
the market in the short term We are
focused on becoming best in ¢lass in
cperating an efficient publishing
company. in which we excel in dehvering
gualty content in a cest-effective way
and product offernings that bring the
fnghest value to cur readers

Organic Growth

We constantly review our partfoho to
ensure it remans dynarmc and aligned
to the broader market trends and we
strive te diversify and expand the
cistribution of our products

In the mature market that s llustrated
publishing, we believe organiz growth
can be achieved by

» hrmovabiorn producis and proeduct
development which means working
to understand what cur end
consumers want and thinking harder
aboul using our PN as many wWays
and forrmats g5 possibble Fxamples for
our 2018 programme include sound
becoks, glow in the dark bocks as well
as our Seratch and Learn senes

« Cormmunication tnnovation e how
can we better market our praducts
directly to consumers? Forinstance
we have focused on marketing by
channel as well a5 by title. to ensure
we reach potential consurmers in the
autiets where they come to learn and
=hop

C. K. Lau
Chief Executive Officer

+ Busimess Inngvation which s about
finding new ways to expand and
enhance parts of our business
rCuding
- Fincing the right title far the

market at the roght pnce,

- Developing formats and products
driven by the channel they selt in
effectively mak.ng it easier for
corsumers 1o find cur products at
the retater they usually shop at for
the price they want and in & format
that works for thermn We sell our
products in physwcal stores and
online: in tookstores gift stores,
toys stores and wherever we
bE‘lIC‘V@ CCNSUMMmers rmght come
across them That includes. for
instance. Tractor Supply Costco
Urban Qutfitters or Holland &
Barrett among many others

Acquisition Growth

In the medium to long term acquisitive
grawthis hikely to remain a key strategic
area for the Gioup As & market leader
wiath a global and scalable ptatform n
what remaimns a fragmented industry. the
potentizl oLporturty s sigrificant

Quarte has a long history of acqguistions
and has estatihshed specific parameters
to evaluate acguisiton opportunities

13

Our Six Key Acquisition

Parameters:

1. Category enhancing
Adds new titles to cur partfono and
expands one of our categones. g
Harvard Common Press

2. Additional expertise
Brings an area or market we do not
previcusly have expertise in, e g small
world creations. specialised in
children's O-3 formats

3. Competitor Ingestion
Synergistic consohdation. e g vy
Press,

4. Step Changers
Significant additions to the business
o g becker&mayer

5. Adjacencies
Camplementary to existing portiolo
and sales channels such as Book Plug
and educalional preducts, ey
Smartiab

&. Distribution Enhancing
A business that owns a specific
channel to market
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Strategic Report

FINANCIAL REVIEW

“Operating profit for the Group before amortization of
acquired intangibles and exceptional items increased by
43% ($3.1m) to $10.3m (2017: $7.2m).”

Group Results

Revenue was 3149 3m a decrease of 2%,
compared to 2017 ($152 S5m) Operating
profit before amortisation of iIntangibles
and exceptional items, ("adjusted cperalirg
profit’ » was up 43% at $10 3m {2017 $7/2m)
and represented © 8% (2017 4 7%) of
revenue Adjusted diluted earnings per share
increased by 29% to 23 0c (2017 17.8¢) 1t
has been the case for many years, that not
one of our titles exceeded 1% of Group
revenue and this year 15 no exception. The
following titles were our top ten sellers in
28 with thetr respective revenue and year

Michael Mousley

Interim Chuef Financial Officer

Sguishy Hurman Body (2006) 11 216.000
Beginner's Kete Diet Cockbook (2018) $£914 000
All-Natural Lig Balm Boutique (2G16) $725000
Srart Circuits. Electronics Lab (2016) $686.000
Keto Slow Cooker & Cne-Pot Meals (2017) $613.000
Quick Keta Meals in 30 Minutes or Less (2017) $5592.000
Ultimate Secret Formula Lab (2016) $486.000
Bucket List Journz! (2016) $472.000
Little Pecople, Big Dreams Coco Chanel (2016) B $455.000
Little People, Big Dreams Fnda Kahlo (20'6) $415,000

of pubiication

Revenue for this segment was dowr 2%
at $73 0m (2017 $74 1m) Adjusted
operating profit was up 13% at $5.3m
(2017 %34 6rn) We achreved an operating
orofit margm of 7 2% (2017 6 39%)
Reprints accounted for 65% of revenue.
compared to 64% i 2017

UK Publishing

Revenue for this segment was down 3%
at $707m (2017 $72.7m) Adjusted
aperating profit was up 1% at $7 2m
(2017 $71m} We achieved an operating
profit margin of 11 2% (2017, 9 8%)
Repnnts accounted for 81% of revenue
compared to ha% in 2017

Q Partners

Revenue far this segment was dowr 1%
at 35 6m (2017 $S 7m) We incur:ed an
adjusted operating loss of $0 4m (2017
loss $O 4m)

Corporate costs

Corporate costs were reduced by 41%
from $4 Tmite $2 Em. due te the cost-out
programme which was imntiated nrhe
sgcand half of the year

1 The Little People Big Dreams titles are part of a series that generated $4 3m of

revenue in 2018 (2017 $18m)

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items. in 2018, comprised
recrganization costs of $32.9m arising
from the cost-cut programme $0 8m
with respect to the board changes that
occurred in May 2018 and $1 5m of
refinancing costs Excepticnal itermns, n
2017 comprised goodwill impairment of
17 Am impairment of pre-publhication
costs of $4 9m and other items of $1 9m.
Further details are disclosed mnote 5

Finance Costs

Finance costs were $4 4m (2017 $3 2m)
The increase was attributable to an
ncrease ninterest rates, an ingrease in
the interest margin and a charge with
respect to the deferred consideration for
apror penod acgusition

Tax

The tax charge for the yvear was $0 5m
(2017, Credit $15m> 1he Group incurrea
taxable losses i the US whuch following
tax legis ation changes from 1 January

Z01& cannaot be fully recovered
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Balance Sheet

The Group's net assets decreased to
T21tm from 324 1 largely because the
Group has net Sterling assats The
weakness of Sterling against the LS
dollar. which 1s the Group's grincipal
functional currency. has resultedin a
tranglabion loss an exchange, Dunng 2018,
the Group transacted n Sterling. Eurcs
Austrahan Dallars New Zealand Dollars
and Hang Keng Dollars Qur borrowings
are drawn in US Datlars Sterng and
Euros to provide a partial hedge against
the maovement in cur net assets excluding
Lorrowings in those currencies The key
exchange rates for the year are shown in
the table on page 15

We signed an agreement with our
Banking syndicate to exterd the
matunty of our facilties to 31 August
2020 The revised facilit:es incerporals
animmediate reduction . bank debt
and a subsegusnt amottization
programme As part of the ayreement
with the banking syndicate, certam of
the Compary '<iarger sharehelders and
arelated COMpany agreod to provige
unisecured and subordinated Icans to the
Groun, totanng $F13m These [oans are
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repayable by 31 August 2CZ0 and Fave
been used to reduce bank facilities and
to provades adatonal vworking canita
This gives us a stabile position to
continue cur focus on mproysng the
performance of cur business ana
reducing debt to a more acceptable
level

Cash Flow and indebtedness

At the year end. our net debt was

320 .4, a reduction of €% compared to
207 when it was $64 Om The Group
was well withinits banking covenants,
detarls of which are included in note 18
to the Financial Statements Free cash
flow durnng the year was $8 4m up 8%
compared to 2017, when it was $7.7m

Shareholder Return

The Directors have decided to continue
the Group's policy of not paying a
dividend for the time being until debt
can be brought down to a more
acceptalile level

Cost-Out Programme

We imtiated a cost-out prograrmime m
the second half of the year This was
designed to achieve the followiny a
right-sizing of the Group a path to
sustamnable debt reduction and a focus
on our core strengths The process
wrvolved a thorough review of key areas
of expenditure Including but not hrmited
to. prepubhicaticn expenditure,
occupancy costs. payrodl and
discretignary expenditure The benefit of
the cost-cut programme has not flowed
through trmrmediately. as we have
ncurred one-time exceptionsal Costs te
implement the plan We expect this plan
to lead to impraved cash flows 1in 2019
and 2020

Exchange Rates

versus US Dollar 2018 207
Sterlig 078 074
Eurn oa7 G B4
Austrahan [2ollar 141 128
New Zealand Dolar 148 141
Hong Kong Dollar 780 783

Yeas-end rate

Principat Risks and
Uncertainties

Details of the Group's prnopal nsks and
uncertanties are set out on nages 18 and
19
Going Concern

Inaccardance with provision ¢ 2 2 of the
2016 revision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code. the Directors have
assessed the prospects of the Group
over beth a one-year and a three-year
pernod The cne-year period has a
greater level of certainty and 1s.
therefare. used to set budgets for all cur
usinesses which cutmimates in the
approval of a8 Group budget for the
Board The three-year period offers less
certainty, but itis aligned with long-term
incentives offered to Executive Birectors
and certain senior managerment

The Directors have cansidered the
underlying robustness of the Group’s
business model, products and
proposition and its recent trading
performance cash flows and key
performance inchicators They have also
reviewed the cash forecasts prepared
for the three years ending 31 December
2021, which comprise a detailed cash
forecast for the year ending 31
Decermber 2009 based on the budget
for that yvear and standard growth
assurmptions for revenue and caosts far
the years ending 31 December 2020
and 2021 to satisfy themselves of the
goirg concern assumption used in
prepanng the financal statements

Average rate

% %

chanye 2N& 2017 change
Cs4% 075 078 G8%

6% Gaa 0828 (4 5%

10 2% 34 130 31%

L O% 144 141 2 1%

(C.% 782 779 0 4%
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The Directors have ascessed the Group's
viatility over a three-year percod ending
cn 31 December 2027 nased or a
firancal madel vohech was prepared as
part of the process of coraderrg and
approving the 2019 budget The
Cirectors used the three-year review
cernod for the followang reason

The Group's publisting prograrm
planring cycle normatly works over 3
twao- to three-year pernod

The Greup's current banking facihties
have 18 months to run Gefore they wili
need to be refinanced in August 2020
Consistent with previcus faohnes, the
Directors have assumed that these
facilities will be renewed cr extended at
thatl time on simutar terms

in carrying out therr analysis of viability
the Directors took account of the
Group’'s projected profits and cash flows
and its ankiny covenants

They also took account of the principal
risks and uncertanties facing the
business referred to above. a sensitivity
analysis on the key revenue growth
assumption and the effectiveness of
available mitigating actions Based on
theor assessment, the Directors have a
reascnable expectatson that the Group
will be able to continue n operabon and
meet its habilities as they fall due up to
31 December 2021

Far thig reascn. they continue to adopt
the going cencern basis in preparnng the
financial statements In domng so, its
recogrised that such future assessments
are subject to a level of uncertainty that
ncreases with tirne and therefore, future
cutcemes cannot be guaranteed or
prechicted with certainty Note 11o the
Financial Statemnents provides additional
informat.en on the Croup's banking
covenants ard sensitivity

Michael Mousley
Interirm Chief Financial Officer
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OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our strategy is to grow our revenue and margins
by leveraging our size, scale and reach as the
leading global illustrated book publisher, to build
a business with sustainable growth in earnings
per share while also managing our net debt.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT  ADJUSTED CPERATING

BEFORE DEPRECIATION
(EBITDA) ($M)

2018 111

2017 85

2016 8.3
2015 17.2
2014 17.0
2013 159
2012 16.5

operational performance of the Group

RETURN ONNET
OPERATING ASSETS (%)

2017 7.7

2016 14.3
2015 13.4
2014 12.0
2013 n.a
2012 no

EBITDA I1s used to measure the

PROFIT ($M)

2017 72

2016 17.0
2015 18.5
2014 15.8
2013 143

20712 12.8

Adjusted operating profit improverment
largely as a result of our cost-out
programrme

NET DEBT ($M)

2017 64.0

2016 61.9

2015 59.5

2014 66.0
2013 71.0
2012 810

The Board uses this ratio to evaluate the  Our net debt has reduced by 6% 10 2018

long-term financial health of the Group

1 Adusted measues are <tated before armorbication of acauired o tancible assets and

except onal stems
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS)

2017 178

2016 48.7
2015 461
2014 391

2013 361

2012 416

The Board uges this ratio to evaluste the
quailty cf the Company's earrngs

BACKLIST % OF SALES (%)

Backhst has increased as a percentage

of sales

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT SPEND ($M)

2017 14.8
2016 15.5
2015 13.8
2014 12.9
2013 n2

2012 126

Tis s a measure of the cash used up
innventary as a proportion of revenue

CHILDREN'S PUBLISHING
REVENUES ($M)

2018 0
2017 491

2016 411
2015 324
2014 230

2013 1986

2012 185

Children s publishing revenues have
increased by 171% since 2012

We reduced the IP spend
in 2018, as a result of our cost-out
programme

17
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RISK MANAGEMENT, PRINCIPAL
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

ire Guarte Grogp s sk maragerment framewaork s designed to dentfy and sssess tbe [ kehhood of nisks anising, the
consequences of thern dong so ard the achiors necessary o crder to mitigate ther rrpact

The BEcard has carned out its penodic assessment of the principal business nisks fac ng cur var oas businesses and has updated
these rsksanmits rek register whichs regularly reviewed The Board certinues to moritor these principal risks andg associated
rater al c\mrr(\\‘- Detans of the Group s financal nsk maragemernit chiectives and pehcies are set cut mrote 21 to the Financ al
Starernments The business risk review identified the fellowirg key nisks that face our businesses

MARKET AND FINANCIAL RISKS

Risk Descnptlon Mutugatmg factor

Economic The Group \perarec 4cross mdny of the rnajor The Group has adequate faulmes W|th up to $M 5m in

conditions world economies and its revenues and profits avallable debt facihties. In addition 1in such an event. the
depend on the general state of the economy In Directors have the alyilhity to take a number of mitigating
those terntories A downturn caused by a global actions, mzluding tne reduction of discretionary spend
recession could reduce consumer discretionary cn pre publication costs

spending, which might result in a reduction in
profitability and operating cash flow The UK's
planned exit from the European Unien (EU) and
US-Smo relations contribute to uncertainty in the
&ccnorﬂ(, ernwronment

Currency The Group's businesses operate Ina number of The Croup ha:. a naturaJ hedge that mltlgates aga:r.st
currencies giving nse to a risk of exchange loss cdrrency movements iImpacting our earnings in that cne
frarm fluctuating exchange rates of cur largest costs whichs print costs. are paid in US

Deilars Borrowmngs have beer taken out in different
currencies to mitigate risk of currency movements
nnpdctmg our mot assets

Financial The Croup < r@\atwely h|gh Fevel of debt makps Quarto shares fmanma\ mfr\rmar\on W|th |ts barwks
the Group sensifive to interest rates and patential  routinely and during 2018 negatiated a re-financing to
covenant breaches. extend the maturity of its bank facihties to 31 August

2020 which incorporated animmaeadiate reduction ir bank
debt and a subseguent amartisation programme This
agreement was supported with unsecured and
subcrdinated loans of US$1Z2m frem several large
shareholders allowing bank facilities to be reduced and
o provicde adduonsl working capiial Further mitgatiors
to rmanage risk arise from a programme ntreduced in the
second half of 2018 to reduce aperating costs acress the
Group whilst we continue 1o buld the balance sheet with
a stong pullishing programme

OPERATIONAL RISKS

R'.sk Descnphon Mmgatmg factor

Customer £ Qmmﬁcart dependerwcy ona Small number of The CGroup has a I’mG eCtabhshed trategy of dwersrfymg
customers, for mstance co-edition partners or its customer base resutting in the fact that ng one
retallers could be problematic if one of them customer has over 20% of the business Custermner
{red reneqotiatiro preferential terms Or stopoed reigtions are managed to ensure a farr-trading
dorg business with the Groug The fallure of & relaticnship Management monitors debts closely and

major customer couldampact revenue and profits mamtamns aose relationships with its customers which
Ey nrov de pror warrng of hkely falure

18



The Quarto Group 1nc

OPERATIONAL RISKS (continued)
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Supply chain
and raw
materials

Product safety

Loss of
intellectual
property

Laws and
regulations

A \OSS of Stored ID through fa\\ure ﬁf srorage

The Group relies on a greup of crnint supphers,
many of wiich are based in southern Chira There
15 a risk that anonterruption in tne ava labihty of
printing services in that ares cr the fnancisl
farlure of one prninter couwla d srupt the supply of
rewe books to custamers ANy increase in costs
such as ol port charges ele would alscimpact
shipping costs Any disroptiaon in supply of paper
could lead to anincrease in costs and product on
chsruption Trere s alsg a reputational risk of
using nen-envirormentally fnendly paper

‘Brexit’ the planned departure of the UK from the
B could disrupt product mavement into the EL

Our busmeqs 15 ftaced wwth INCreasing Sdfety

and testing requirements on vanoys product,
compenents The risk of a product recall due to
children’s safety would nave a severe reputational

medium or loss of back-ups would impact our
ability to process reprints and revisions and
could cause a loss of revenue

.-’-\c a creatwe and LP bus ‘ness, any chamges to
copyright laws could have animpact on the
Group's activities and any Infrirgerment could lead
toncreased costs Inconsisient imternal prachices
for negotiating contracts or clearing nights could
lead to IP clamms

The Group mantams relatienships with printers in other
pacts of the wond ard s confident that printing could be
carned cut by an alternative range of printers if supply
from China was interrupted or to rmhigate shipping costs
We maintam close relations with cur printers reduoing the
rsk of a lack of knowledge of ary printer being in financial
treuble The Group has worked with its maor printers ¢n a
plan te adept sustamat:le paper and recentiy instituted a
Forest Stewardshp Counal (FSC) paper or Sustainable
Forestry Initiative (SFD paper oohcy acress alf cur impnnts

Quarta monitors the Brexit-situation closely. taking note
of the advice of the UK Governmert and key supplers so
that 1t 15 ready to make appropnate preparations (o
ensure mrmal disruption Mast of Quarto’s product 1
shipped directly 1o BEU courtnes frorm its pnnters based
principally in China These shipments are niot expected to
be affected by Bremt

All components receive safety testmg fram soecmllqt dnd
accredited ndependent thard parties Management
carefully selects suppliers for components

A cloud storage solution s integrated inte production
workflow for storage back up and recovery services for
product files in developrment Two archive data arrays
that will e a replication of each other was introduced in
the first half of 2018 - one in the UK ang ore inthe US
WI[h each hOCtmg a comp\e[e Set of backhst orchlve<

During 2018 an mformat\on system was mtroduced
Group-wide to harmonise the management of contracts
Giuarto reviews (1 hcensing, permission - acquisitions and
other contracts routinely receiving adwice from relevant
orofessicnal firrns (ncluding the possibte impact of
Brexit) so that legal mstruments remain current and
represent best practices so that we ensure that our
practices are ahgned amd conSrstent across umprmt%

Cyber seCurlty

People

Like many crgansations, the Group s at nsk from
cyber attack. This presents a potentially sericus
risk of disrupticn to the production process and
could have a significant impact on the prefitability
ot the business and the secunty of its IF assets

/—\5 Imnany creattve busmcs< tfe G oup 15 heawlw
reliant on s people and operates wath the
inheren risk of not making the night’ Dooks or
creativity bemg uneven year-un-year Faillure o
retan tatent and attract new talerit could
uitmately lead to a falure to generate successfal
new tities leading to a drep i revenue

The manner in which the UK leaves the t U
UBrexit )y in 2019 could affect permmissior of
EU-citizens to work in the UK potentially
chisrupting the resourcing of our UK-based nghts
selling team

The Group uses enterprise Ieve\ hrewarlc and IT comtrolc
to prevent attack as well as mamtaning cloud-based
coples and offsite back up of IP Computerised files of
the GSroup’s books are also maintained by printers, We do
net store any personal or credit card data on our
lrarsactwonal web5|te WA quartoknows carr,

Our portfohc of impn ms and large number of produft‘-

spread this risk The overall portfeho s welt diversif:ed
with no single ntle or series accounung for more than 5%
of our total revenue in 2018

Quarto € Publbshers are expenenced and talented
professionals who work alongside sales and marketirg
teams and strive (o stay close to pubhshmo lrends an
markets The Group alse offers competitive market rate
remuneration packages and works hard to make Quartn
an attractive place to wark

Quarto monitors 1he Brexit-situation dosely. taking nots
of the advice of the UK Government so that it s ready to
cuprert any staff affected by Brexit and can maintaimn s
buziness activities
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Governance

Thie Quarto Group Inc Annual Report 2018

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Andy Cumming
ton-Executive Chairrman

Andy joined the Board on 1 March 2018

Andy has over 40 years’ expenence n
banking and risk managernent The last
17 years of hus full-tirme career were
spent with Lloyds Banking Group n a
variety of senior positions. including
seven years as the Chief Credit Officer
of the Commeraial Banking Division and
four years as Managing Director of the
Global Non-Cere Division, He was also a
member of the Group Risk and
Commercial Banking Executive
Comimitees

Andy 15 currentlty Non Executive
Director of Lloyds Development Capital,

the private eguuty arm of Lloyds Banking

Group. Bluestene Holdings Limmited. a
multinatronal financial services business

and Seadnil Partners LLE. which focuses

on the acquisition. awnership and
operatian of offshore drilling rigs

Andy 15 2 member of the Audit
Nomimations and Remuneration
Committees

Chuk Kin Lau
Chief Executive Officer

C K Lau s an executive director of Lion
Rock Group Lirmnited and an executive
director of QPUS Group Limited. a
subsidiary of Lion Rock Group CK joined
Quarto in May 2018 after being elected
to the Board as an Executive Director

20

Ken Fund
Chief Qperating QOfficer

A graduate of SUNY Oswego and wath
an MBA in Finance at Pace University
Ken first started with Dino DelLaurening
Productions in New Business
Develcpment mowving an to Siman &
Schuster Publishers as Business
Manager in 1984 He ;oined Harper
Colhins San Francisco in 1990 where he
was Senicr Vice President of Finance
and Operations. Trade Group
responsible for all of the publisting
imprints. in 1999 Ken joined Quarto as
President and CECQ of Rockport
Publishers He has been COO0 of Guarto
since July 2016 and joined the Board on
12 July 2018
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Michael Mousley
Interum Cruef Financal Gfficer

Michael worked for 12 years at Deloitte
Haskins & Sells (now part of PWO)
spendmg the last two years of hus tenure
there as a serier manager in the Mergers
and Acguisihions Department He jained
Quearto 1N 1987 and was appomnted
Finance Director 1n 1988 Michael
remaned with Quarto for 28 years
before retiring from hus post as Chief
Firancial Officer in 2015 Michael
rejoined Quarto as a Nen-Executive
Director n May 2018 and became Intenm
Chief Financial Gfficer in June 2018

Mei Lan Lam
Non-Executive Directaor

M L Lamis an executive director of Lion
Rock Group Limited She s the chief
financial officer of Lion Rock Group and
was responsible for the fimancial
management of Licn Rack Group. Me
Lan has 30 years expenence in finance
and has held sernor financiatl positions in
various isted companies and a nen-
profit charitable orgamzation n Heng
Kaong She jomned Quarto after baing
elected to the Beard as a Non-Executive
Cirector im May 2018

21

Jane Moriarty
Non-Executive Directar

Janes an FCA who worked with KPMG
LLP for over 29 years During her bime
with KPMG she worked with & broad
range of businesses helping them to
develop strategies to realise
opportumnties and manage threats in fast
MovIing environments

She has buillt and managed market
leading tearns and belreves in the
importance of effective teamwork

Jane is currently Non-Executive Director
of Mitchells & Butlers plc one of the
largest operaters of pubs bars &
restaurants in the UK, NG Baley. an
ndependent engineering. construction
and services company in the UK and
HMarur's Properues. a leathng
cormmercial retall and resrdential
property company

She joined the Board of Guarte on 12
November 2018
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NOMINATIONS
COMMITTEE REPORT

Following the Board changes that took
place in 2018, the Nominations
Commuttee now comprises the Group's
Non-Executive Directors, Andy
Curmming (Committee Chairman) and
Jane Moriarty (Senicr Independent
Directar). A copy of the Committee's
formal terms of reference can be found

on the Company's website (www.guarto.

com).

The search for Board candidates is
conducted and appointments made, on

merit, against objective criteria and with

due regard te the benefits of diversity

on the Board, including gender. External

search consultants are engaged, as
appropriate, and a formal and
transparent process is followed. When
dealing with the appointment of

a successor to the Chairman, the Senior
Independent Director will chair the
Committee instead of the Chairman.

All Diractors are required to allocate
sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities and new Directors
receive a tailored induction on joining
the Board. This includes presentations
an the business, current strategy,
shareholder expectations and
familiarisation with the Group's
operations worldwide. Guidance is also
given on the duties, responsibilities and
liabilities of a Director of a listed
company and key Board policies and
procedures.

The Committee met twice during the
year and was active in appointing Andy
Cumming as an independent Non-
Executive Director on 1 March 2018 and
Jane Moriarty as Senior Independent
Director on 12 November 2018.

The Chairman of the Committee
attends the Annual Meeting to address
any shareholder questions relating to

{ )
o

y Cumming

zirman of the Nominations
Lhmmittee

Z March 2019
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Cni7 May 2018 & number of marmrbers oFf
the Audit Committee resigned Andy
Cumming was the ¢ole remaiming
member Cn 12 Novernlbzer 2018 Jare
Momarty joined the Committes and
became 1ts Chairman Inhing weeh FRC
gurdarce the commitiee rmow has 2
memiers

Responsibilities

The Committee acts i accordance wth
its terms of reference ard its speafic
responstbihties include

+ To consider and recommend the
appomtment of the Group's auditor,
the audit fee. audit engagement letter
and guestions of auditor
performance. pariner rotation.
resignation and dismissal
« To meet with the auditor to discuss all
aspects of the audit mcluding aucht
planning scope findings, sccounting
pohces. management judgements
and estimates
+ Toreview the Board's representation
tetter to the auchtor
+ Toreview the auditer's managerment
letter and ranagement's respanse
+ To set pohcy and review the use of
any nan-audit services and assess
the independence of the auditor
« Toreview financal statements
released to the pubhc including
interim and armual finanoizl
statements
« Toreview the Grodp’s ancounting
pohoies practices and Lse of
accounting standards especially for
decisions requiring ma or elements of
Judgernent. significant adjustmenrts
iong-term viabihity and going
concern
» Toreview the Group s internai
controls and nsk management
mcluding
- the finenaial report.ng precess.
identifying managing ard
rmortonng fingraal operationg!
comphance and other risks

- compiiance with regulatory ana
legal reguirernents,
detecting frauc

o Toreview the need for anmzernal
aud-t funstion at least annually

Committee Meetings

The Committee meets throughaout

the year to fulfil its responsibilities
The Committiee Chairman also meets
nformatly with the CFO throughout
the year and with serior management
the aiso meets with the external Audt
Partner from time to hime to discuss
ssues and be appraised of reguiatory
changes

Ey invitatron the Company's CEQ and
CFO and representatives of the
Compary s audhior also attend
Committee meetings althcugh part

of sorme meetings are exclusively for
Committee members without executive
management present

The Charrman of the Commuttee attends
the Annual Meeting to address any
shareholder questions relating to the
Commitieeg

The Comrmittee met 3 times dunng 2018
and once so farin 2019

The Committee, as part of full Board
rmeetings, was alsc involved in approving
announcements made to the London
Stock Exchange

Activities of the Committee
Dunng 2018 and 2019 10 date. the work
of the Committee included

« Review of tha plan and scope of
the external audht

» Review of the external auditor's
report on the 2018 year-end audit and
approval of the preliminary
anncuncement and the annual report

+ Review of the Durectors
viabilty statement

+ Consider the external auditor’s
comments i relation to internal
controls and review the need and
poiential scope of internal aucht
functions

+ Consider the Group's extended and
amended banking agreements
part.cudarly with respect to ensuring
the Group's comphance withits
Lanking covenants

+ Reviev and arproval of the interr
report 2018 after discussion with
managerment and the externat auditor

» Review and consider the goodwill
IMEAIFMEH: review
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Significant Audit Risks,

Key Findings and Financial
Judgements Relating to
Year End Accounts 2018

The Committee corcentrated on the
following in relzticn ta the 2018
acoeunts

Going Concern and Covenant
Compliance

The Committee considered the
underlying ropustness of the Group s
business model, products and
proposition and the financial rescurces
available to it for the future to satisfy

itselfl of the going concern assumption in

preparing the financial statements

Following the extension and amendment

of the Group's banking facihiies the
Committee reviewed the Group's

forecasts to confirm the Group was able

to meet its current and future banking
covenants

The Group's financial performance in
2018, andits forecast future
parformance reflects the positive

impact of the Group's renewed focus on

core products and titles as welf as the

cost-out programme (both of which are

discussed in more detail earner in this
repor),

Assessment of the carrying
value of Goodwill

Goodwill ansing from acguisitions (s
stated at cost. less any accemulated
impairment losses fnaccordance with
IAS 36, the Group tests the goodwill on
an annual besis for mpairment In the
tests carsied cut at 21 December 2018
the value In use caiculation exceeded
the carrying value of goodwall

Further detail 1= set out mnete 11 to the
Financial Statements
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Recoverability of pre-
publication costs

Arnorieat.en of pre-panhicat on Costs s
charoed to the incorre staterrent cnoa
strarght-iine Dases over the estimated
Jseful aves of the intang.ble assets
Fre-pablicaticn costs ara capaTalized n
accardance vath 145 38 and the
Comrmittee, with the external auditor
discuseed the assumrptions behina

the amerhizaticn profile iIncluding the
amortisaten penod of the pulications
Further detail s set cut In note 15 to the
Financial Statements

Exceptionatl items

The Committee in consultation with
the Auditor. considered the iatest
regulatory guidelines issued by the
FRC in Decembier 7013 and agreed
with the Executive [Directors to restnict
exceptronal items to sigruficant items
outside the scope of narmal business
that need to be disclosed by virtue of
their size or incidence This has been
apphed consistently from 2014

For the 2018 accounts. there have been
aignificant exceptianal iterms, These
nclude 32 9moan respect of restructuring
costs (31 7m for pecple and other
reorganizatbien costs and $1 2m of
rmpairments and provision aganst
impnint assets) $1 5m of refinancing
costs and $0 8mnrespect of Board
changes All of these items were
included within Exceptional Items due
either to therr scele and one-off nature
or to beng non-trading tems

For the 217 accounts. there were
significant exceptional tems These
included goodwill impairmert (317 4m).
$£5 9mnrespect of restructunng Costs
(%0 Em for peopie costs and $5 4m of
Mmpasrments and provision agalnst
imprint assetsy and $0 9@m of corporate
costs ncluding costs in respect of the
security package put in place in relation
to the overall fimarong facil ties (30 am)
costonourred im relat.on to the
unsuccessfui tnd for the Groun in the
year (50 270 and abortive acgais.tion
costs (30 m

Revenue recognition and sales
returns

The Commtice considered the nek

that revenue may net be captured in

the retevant penod Apsrt from the usual
risks relating to the timimg of revenue
recogrution management s regquired Lo
provide for returns, which may be made
subsequent to the pericd end
Manaygement assesses sales returns
through quantifying the previous returns
expenence and post year end returns

During 2018 the Commuttee reviewed
managerment s methadology. and
discussed the procedures followed ta
ensure that revenue was booked into the
correct pericd inhine with the stated
accounting pohcies and that returns
provisions were reasonahle As aresult
the returns prowvision for 2018 1
cansidered to be fully provided

tinventory provisioning

The economics of manufactunng and
whalesaling of boaks in the publishing
businesses nherently leads to
substantal inventones Most of these are
printed without guaranteed sales so
there 1s a degree of Judgement as ta the
provisions required to hold this inventory
at the lower of cost ar net realisable
value

The Committee reviewed management's
methodoloyy and discussed the

testing performed by the Auditor to
provice comfort that these estimates
were reasonable

Receivables provisioning

Trade recevables ts inherently a critical
accounting estimate in relation o the
risk of non recoverabihity of trade
receivables The Committee has
discussed and challenged the overall
recevables positton and concwdered the
reasonableness of the level of
LrovISIonngG
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External Audit

The Committee assesses the
effectiveness of its external anditor
“hrough crn-gorma aislegue and
communication with the Auditor

The audit cycle inciudes formal
meetings The audit plarmng meeting
which Fappens pror to the audgit

was when the Committes discussed
reporting develcpments. sigruficant
aGeLounting risks mprovernent in
relation te risk management and nternal
control and contrals in the accounting
process

Al the end of the audit process. the
Commmittee met with the auditors to
recelve therr report an the key findings
with focus onidentified key audht risks
any misstaternents in management’s
iitial accounts and to consider areas of
Judgement and estimates

The Audtor showed dihgence

and cpenness with the Committee
during meetings and through written
caommunication and during intermedhate
briefing sessions with the Chair of the
Audit Committes The Auditcr gave

the Comrmittee forthright views on
judgement areas whilst recogrising that
the decisions lay with the Committee
The Committee also receved feedback
from the intenm CFO iNvolved wath the
audit The Committee 1s satisfied with
the ALd.tor's effectiveness in 2018

Appointment of Auditor and
independence

The Committee considers the
approintment of the external auditor
each year and considers the
perfor-mance of the lead audit partner
and the audit manager during the audit
Crofess

For the 2O agucit of the Group and the
Company s accounts, Grant Thaornton
charged $244 COO (2017 $256 0C0).



Non-Audit Services

Grant Thornton has not been engaged
to provide any non-audit services The
Company has a policy in regard to the
provision of non-audit services by the
suditor,

Internal Audit

To date there has not been a separate
internal audit function, given the size
and scale of the Group’s operations.

in June 2018 a new interim CFOQ, Michael
Mousley, was appointed. He has
continued to develop a strong and
effective control environment for the
business. This has built the Board's and
Audit Commitiee's confidence in the
financial management of the Group.

The Audit Committee decided not to
astablish a dedicated internai audit
function this year. It will review this
decision on an annual basis.

Internal control and risk
management systems

The Executive Board is responsible for
ensuring appropriate risk managerment
control procedures are in place, and
regularly conducts reviews of the
effectiveness of the Company's risk
managernent and internal control
systems. These reviews cover all material
controls designed to respond to
financial, operational and compliance
risks.

The Executive Board is satisfied that

the Company had appropriate risk
management and risk contro!
procedures in place throughout the year
and up to the date of approval of this
Annual Report to prevent or detect any
material exposures. The Audit Committee
reviewed and monitored the wark of the
Executive Board during the year.

The internal contro! framework
comprises principles, procedures and
measures that are geared towards
the implementation of controlled
management decisions. It 1s designed
te ensure the effectiveness and
efficiency of business actwities, the
guality and reliability of internal and
external accounting, compliance with
the iegal frameworks that the Company
rmust adhere to, and to ensure that
measures are in place thet safeguard
proper iT-based processing and data

The following structures and processes
have been implemented by Quarto

to mitigate potential risks in the
accounting function:

+ The Executive Board is responsible
for the intarnal control and risk
management framework with regard
to the accounting and consolidation
processes.

» The reparting structure relating
to all companies included in the
Ceonsolidated Financial Statements
requires that significant risks are to be
reported immediately to the
Executive Board by the ingividual
businesses on identification,

» Certain accounting-related processes
(in particutar payrcll) are outsourced
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We cons:der the following items to be
significant to the effectiveness of the
nternal control and risk-management
framework in the accounting and
consclidation processes:

» |dentification of significant risk and
control areas of relevance to the
Greoup-wide accounting process,

+ Controls to monitor the consolidation
process and its results at the level of
the Executive Board and at the ievel
of the companies included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

+ Preventative control measures in the
accounting system of the Group and
in the processes that generate
significant information used to
prepare the Consofidated Financial
Statements - areas include the Group
management repart, segmental
analysis and commitment disclosures,

Jara Moworc,
Jane Moriarty

Chairman of the Augit Committee
8 March 2019
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Annual Statement

Dear sharehoider
| am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year enced 31 December 2018, which has been prepared by
the Committee and approved by the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no subsiantial changes in Directors' remuneration arrangements,

This is the Company's fifth year of reperting in line with The Large and Medwm-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reperts) (Amendment) Regulations 2013.

The report is divided inte two sections:

The first is Quarto’s Remuneration Policy recommended by the Board, which will apply from 16 May 2019 subject to approval at
the 2019 Annual Meeting. The proposed policy mirrors the existing policy implemented on 17 May 2018.

The second section is the Annual Report on Remuneration, which reviews how the existing policy has been implemented.

In line with The L arge and Medium-sized Companies and Group's {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 the
following parts of the Annual Report on Remuneration are audited: the single total figure of remuneration for each Director,
including annual bonus cutcomes for the financial year ended 31 December 2018; pension entitlements: and, Directors’
shareholdings and share interests. All other parts of the Directors’ Remuneration Report are unaudited.

I would be happy to receive any comments you may have on this report. | hope you find the report clear and comprehensive
and that it helps demonstrate how remuneration 15 linked ‘o the performance of the Company, and that you are abie to support
the resolutions on remuneration being presented at this year's Annual Meeting.

Jous Lo L

Jane Moriarty
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
8 March 2019
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Remuneration Committee meeting attendance 2018
C omrmttee mambershlp

_Jess Bur\ej (Lhaw ufml 17 May zf“ Bw fore 17 Muy zﬂ 8‘
"018)

er Reddtuﬂ | 1/ May 2008y 1ofl(ho\d before 17 Md,
\Jlu e CdDEC ’Unm 17 May 2 O]%J iafl (held before 77 Mdy 4J Ne;
O of l (heFd before 17 May 9018)

ec\.e Anme Reed (Urml 17 May 4018)

Amdy Cumm NG (A pomted 1 Marc ) 1018 Chalr from 7 Nay 20 8 to 7 March 1019) 2of 2
Jane Moriarty (Appointed 12 quemberQO 8. Charr from 7 Morch 2019) 1 Qf (heid dfter appomtmrr.t)
C K. Lau (Appomted 17 May 2018) i of 1 (held after appomtment)

Cther Board members may be mvited to attend parts of same commitiee meetings No individual 1s perrmutted to participate in
any matters concerning details of their cwn remuneration

Policy

This section sets cut GQuarto’s Remuneration Policy for Directors which s recommended by the Board for approval at the 2019
Annual Meeting. The Group's prinapal remuneration policy aim 1s to ensure that the Executive Directors remuneraticn s
designed to promete long-term value creation through transparent alignment with the agreed corporate strategy

Performance related elements are designed to be transparent, stretching and are rigorously applied
In fermulating 11s pohcies the Committee had regard to and balanced the following factors

{a) theneed te align the interests of the executive with thase of the shareholders

(B) the performance of the inchividual execotive and of the Group as a whole:

(cy theremuneration practice in the markets i which the executive 1s principally based. and.

(d) theremuneration packages offered to executives in companies cecmpeting in the same markets and industry as the
Group but exercising caution in view of the nsk of an upward ratchet of remuneration levels wath no corresponding
improverment In corporate and individual gerformance

27
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Governance

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Quarto’s Remuneration Policy Summary

FIXED PAY
Element of Purpose and
remuneration link to strategy Operation Opportunity Performance metrics

Set at competitive
levels in the markets
in which Quarto
operates, in order
to attract and

retain executives,

Base Salary/
Fees

Revieved annualy with
changes normally effective
from 1 January of each year

Rowviews take account of

» scope of the role and the
rrarkets in which Quarto
operates

« performance and
experignce of
the mdividual,

* pay and conditions at
orgamisations of a sirmilar
cize and complexity, and.

+ pay and conditions

elsewhere in the Group

Designed to be
competitive in the
market in which the
individualis
employed.

Benefits

Berefits include hfe
insurance and private
medical Insurance.

Where appropriate. other
berefits may be offered
including. but not hmited to
carticipation in all-employee
share schemes

Benehits are non-
pensionable

Pension To provide cost
effective retirement

henefits.

contribution plan or cash
allowance 0 lieu.

There Is no prescrnbed Not applicable
maximum to avoid seting

unhelpful expectations.

Any salary increases are

apphed i ine with the

outcome of the review and

taking into account wider

factors, for example, local

market inflation.

Benefits vary by role,
individual circumstance and
eligibility and are

reviewed pencdically.

Benefits are not anticipated
to exceed ©% of salary p.a.
over the period for which
this policy apphes.

The Cormmittee retains

the discretion to approve

a higher % in exceptional
circumstances (e.g. relocation)
or in circumstances where
factors outside of the Group's
control have materially
changed (e.g. increases

in medical premiums).

Up to 15% of base salary

Not applicable.

Not applicable
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Performance metrics

Element of Purpose and
remuneration link to strategy Operation Opportunity
Anriual Designed to Meagsures are reviewsed prior Maximum potential

performance
haonus

remnforce individual
performance and
contribuhon to the
achievernent of profit
growth and strategic
cbhyectives.

to the stary of the finanoial
yvear Lo ensure gy remain
appropriate and reirforce
the husiness strategy
Ferformance targets are set
annually to ensure they are
appropriately stretching
and reftect thase strategic
objectives At the end of
the year the Committee
determines the extent to
which these were achiaved

Awards are payable in cash

Payments made under the
annual bonus are subject
to claw-back for the later of
one year following the date
of award or the completion
of the next audit of the
Group’s accounts inthe
event of a fraud or matenal
misstatement of resaits
beng identified in relation
to the year in which the
bonus 15 earned

opportunity of up to 100% of
base salary for the CEO and
50% for the COO.

For the financizl target, the
threshold bonus starts at 10%
of the total potential for
exceedmng the base EBITDA
target by 2% and up t6 100%
of the total potential for
exceeding the base EBITDA
target by 10%.

60% an financian
obectives and 40%
on persenal
ohjectives

The Committee will
vary the weightings
frarm yesr to-year tc
reflect the changmg
strategic needs for
the business with a
default bias towards
financial chjectives

In excephional
circurnstances, the
Commitiee has the
abulity to exercise
chscretion to override
the formulaic bonus
outcame within the
Iimits of the Plan
where it beheves

lhe outcome s not
truly reflective of
performance and tc
ensure falrmess to
both shareholders and
participants,
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Governance

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

VARIABLE PAY

Element of
remuneration

Performance
Share Plan
(PSP

Purpose and
link to strategy

Ope@}ion

Ensures that the
Executive's interests
are abgned with those
of sharehoiders
through reward for
providing sharehalders
with substantiai
INCreases in
shareholder value and/
or for achievement of
a measure of sustained
growth in earnings
over the medium

to long term

Awsards of nomimnal-cost

fer ril-cost) eptions may

e granted annually as a
percentage of base salary
Vesting s based on
performance measured over
four years The performance
period normally starts at the
begirnning of the financial
yearin which the date of
grant falls

Dradends accrue on PSP
awards and are pard on those
shares which vest Award
tewvels and performance
condiions are reviewed
before each award cycle

to ensure they rematn
appropriate

Payments made under the
PSE are subject to claw-
back for the later of one
vear following date of
vesting or completion of the
next audit of the Group s
accounts.in the event of a
fraud or maternal
misstatement of results
being identified in relation
to the years in which the
PSP s earned.

Qpportunity

Award opportunities for
participants are up to 50%
of base salary.

Awards of up tc 100% of base
salary may be provided in
exceptionat ciIrcurnstances
{(e.g. recruitment).

20% of maximum vests

for Threshold, rising cn a
straight-line basis to full vesting
for Stretch perfermance.

Performance metrics

Avvards to Execulbives
are subrect to four-
vear Camulaltive
earnings per share
(EFS) and/cr total
shareholder return
(TSR perfaormance

In excepticnal
circurnstances the
Committee has the
ability 10 exercise
discretion to override
the formulaie PSP
cutcome within the
Plan himits to ensure
ahgnrment of pay
with the underlying
performance of the
business during the
perfermance period

FIXED PAY

Element of
remuneration

Purpose andg
link to strategy

Opggation

Qpportunityw

Non-Executive
Directors’ fees

To reflect the time
commitment in
preparing for and
attending meetings.
the duhes and
responsibilities

of the role and the
contribution expected
frorn the Non-
Executive Directors.

Arnual fee for Char

Annual base fee for Non-
Executive Directors
Additional fees are paid
to the Senior Independent
hrector and the Chair of
the Committees to reflect
additicnal responsibilities

Fees are reviewed annually.
taking intc account tirme
commitrment responsibulities
arigl fees paid by
comparable companies

There is no prescribed
maximurm. Non-Executive
Director fee Increases are
apphed in hine with the
outcome of the review and
taking into account wider
factors, for example, inflation.

Performance metrics

Mot applicable
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Performance measure selection and approach to target setting

The measures used under the aanual bonus plan are selected annually to reflect the Group's key stratecic prncnties for the year
and reinforce finanoial performance and acthievement of annual ebjectives as well as madnadual performarce Financal
measures are based on the amaount of EBITDA generated compared to budget The Commettee considers this messure s the
most gppropriate measure of leng-rerm pertormance of the Group

Performance targets are set at such a level as to be stretching and actuevatble with regard to the particular strategic priornties
and economic environment The zrnual Conus thresheld s based ona 2% growth in profits vath Streteh target beng 10%
growth

The Committee reviews the performance targets applying to awards made to the propcsed PSP scheme arinually
Awards made to partiaipants will be based on either one or a combination of total shareholder return and curmulative earmngs
per share over the measured period These will be reported on each year in the Annual Repaort on Remuneration

Differences in remuneration policy operated for other employees

Quarto’s approach to annual salary reviews 1s consistent acress the Group Key management personnel and seracr managers
with substanbial operatronal responsibiiities are ehgible to partiopate in an annual bonus scheme with similar metrcs te those
used for the Chief Executive Officer Opportunities and specific perforrmance conditions vary by orgarisational level with
business area-speoific metrics mcorporated where appropriate

Key management perscnnel and senior managers are ehgible to participate in the PSP, Performance conditions are consistent
for all these participants while award opportunities may vary by argamsational level but are typically hmited to 50% of base
salary

Shareholding guidelines

The Committee recognises the importance of aligning the interests of Executivas with shareholders through the bullding up of
a significant sharehelding in the Group Executive Directors are required to retain shares of a value equal te 50% of the after-
tax gain made on the vesting of awards under the Plans until they have built up @ mimmum shareholdimg of a8 value eguivatent
to at least 100% of annual base salary.

Remuneration policy for new Directors
When hinng or appointing a new Executive Director including by way of internal promotion. the Commitiee may make use of
all the existing compoenents of remuneration as follows

Component: Base Salary Benefits Pension Annual us PSP
Approach Determined in line with the Inline with the  In ine with the  In ling with stated In ling with the
stated policy, and taking into stated paohey stated policy. pohcy. with the relevant  stated policy.
account therr previous salary maximum pro-rated to
irmtial salanes may be refiect the proporticn
set below market and of the year <erved

consideration given to phasing
any InCreases over two or
three years subect to
development in the role

Maximum Not applicable. Mot apphcable  Not applicable.  50% to )00% S50% of base
Value of base satary salary (100% in
exceptional

circumstances)

In deterrmiming gpcropnate remuneration for a new Executive Director, the Committee w ll take inte consideratior ali relevant
factors (including guantum nature of remuneration and the jJunschiction from which the candidate was recruited) to ensure that
arrangements are in the best mterests of both the Company and its shareholders The Committee may consider £ apprapnate
to grant an award under a structure retincluded in the palicy. for example to 'buy cut’ Incentive arrangements forfeited on
leaving a prev-ous employer and will exercise the discretion avallable under Listing Rue 94 2 R whare recessary, In doing 50
the Committee wili consider relevart factars including the expected value of all cutstanding equity awards asing a Mente Carlo
Black-Schaoles. or cther relevant equivalent valuation and where apphcable, taking into account toughness of performance
condhitions attached to these awards ana the hkellhood of these conditicns being met.

EY)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPCORT (CONTINUED)

Irthie case of appointng & rew Execabtive Director by way ot internal promotion the Groan w I oncur any contractual
commitments made cror to fus or her cromretion to BExecutive Director

It trne case of appointing a new Non Executive Director the approach will be consistent vath the remuneration pohcy

Executive Service contracts, Non-Executive letters of appointment and exit payments policy
Exgoutive Director service contracte have ne fixed term and have a notice perncd of not more than 12 merths from either the
Executive or the Group These niotice penads meet best practice guidennes and give protection mutuslly to the Group and the
Executive Executive Director service contracts are available to view at the Groug s registered office The aates of the Executive

Drectar service contracte and tha refevant natice penad are as follows

Dlrector Effective date of contract Notice period

C.Ktaw  UmMayzole  3months -
Michael Mousley 4 June 2018 i © Zmentns S o
Kenfund  Tlulyz0l8 o - emonths o

Non-Executive Directors are engaged on the basis of a letter of appaintment In hne with the UK Corporate Governance Code
all Directors are subject to re-election annually at the Annua! Meeting

The Chair together with the other Non-Executive Directors. have a one month notice penoed. and are subject to re-election
each year

The Nan-Executive Director Letters of Appomntment are avalable to view at the Group’s registered office and the effective
dates of their Letters of Appointment are as follows

D:rector Date of Appointrnent Notice period

Andy C-I.-l-l'-l-'-lmll'lg ) 1 March 2018 o B ) 1 morm. o ) o o
Mel-l:an Lam Wi h Wiif\;ay 2018”7 7 j ) o 1 r‘rwor{t_;w”_m o o )
Jane Moriarty 12 November 2018  dmomn -

The Committee’s pohcy 1s to hmit severance payments on termination to pre-established contractual arrangements and the
rules of the relevant incentive plans Indong so. the Committee’s objective 1s to avoid rewarding pocr performance
Furthermore, the Committee will take account of the Executive Director s duty to mitigate their loss

Termination payiments are Limited to ase salary and benefits duning the unexpired notice pertod which cannot be mitigated

During the year ended 31 Decermber 2018 Marcus Leaver was pad compensation for loss of off.ce amourting to $622 000
{cotnptising $616 000 in hew of Fus salary for bis netice penod and $6.000 i respect of benehit entitiernents) and no payments
were made to past Directers.

In addition to the contractual provisions regarding payrnent on termination set out above. the Group's incentive plans and
share schemes contamn provisions for termmation of employment

Component Annual bonus

Bad leaver No armucl bom 'S Dayab\e

Elg ble for an cward to the extem tf at
perfarmance conditions have been satisfied
and pro-rated for the praporbon of the financial
year served with Committes discretion to treat
Ltherwse

Good leaver

Change-of-control

Elignbzle far am aw ard to the @xtent tfar
performance conditicns have been satisfied up
to the change of contral and pro-rated for the
proporbicr of the financial year served wath
Committee discretion to treat otherwise

Outslanowrwg awardb are forfeuted

Cutstandima awards will r“OrmaIIy Contmun and he
tested for perfarmance over the full period, and
pro rated for time based on the proportion of the
pencd served. with Caommittee discretion to treat
Olherv i€

Qutstar: dmg awards wy \II nmmc\ly \e:‘r andd be tested
for perfarmance over the penad to change-of-
conzre! and pro-rated for time based on the
proport.on of the penod served wath Committee
cdiscretion to treat otherwise

Any commitment maae prior to, but due to be fulblled after the policy comes nto force will be henowrea

Aroncdnacush would nonmally be considered a good teaver 1f they leave for reasons of death injury li-hhealth, disagtbory, part
of the busiress in which the individual 15 employed or engaged Ceasing to be s member of the Grodp or any oH ar reasen as the
Committee decides Bad leaver provisions apply under other circumstances
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External appointments

The Executive Directors may accepnt external appomtments with the prior appreval of the Board and proviasd only that such
apLomniments ac ol preudice the mchwdual s abihity to fulfil ther duties al tre Group Wrether any related fees are retamen
by the mdividual cr rermitted to the Group will be considered on a case-by-case basis

tllustration of the application of the remuneration policy

Tre chart elow shows the remuneration thal the Executrve Directors could e expeciedd to cbtan based on varymg
performance scenanos C K Lau and Michael Mousley are not included in the dlustrat-cns because neither of them are on
bonuas plars Hlustrations are intended to provide further information to sharehalders regardirg the relstionship between pay
and perfarmance

Potential reward opparturuties Hustrated are based on the remuneration policy precented for shareholder approval at the
Annual Meeting on 17 May 2018 applied to the latest known fixed pay of base salares. pension. other henefits and variable pay
of annual bonus and PSP To helter llustrate the annual potential reward opportunities. the rermurneration and PSP Awards are
pre-rated to an annual equivalent All remuneration s contracted in Stering

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS APPLICATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

130d34 21931vdis

ussoco Ken Fund "
600 Fixed
M Annual variable

500 m sk

400

346

300

200

o
C
<
m
e
z
g
<
[}
m

100

O
Min On target Max

in Mustratng the apohaation of the remunerabion pohcy the following assurmplions have been made

Mirnurm Basic salary pension or cashn lieu of pension and benefits No bonus and no vesting of the PSP

On target Basic salary pension or cashinlieu of pension and Cenefits, Bonus payout at S0% of the maximum
bonus PSP vesting at E0% of maximum vesting

Maximurm Basic salary. pension or cashin hieu of pension and benefits Bonus payout at 100% Full vesting of

the PSP

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the Group
When reviewing and setting executive remmuneration. the Committee takes into account the pay and employment condibions
of all employees of the Groun

The Croup has net carried cut 5 formal emisluyee coensultation reagarding Board remuneraticn trough it does comply with local
regulations and practices regarding empioyee consultabion maore broadly

SINIWILYLS I¥IONYNIS

Consideration of shareholder views
Iths the Committee’s policy to cansult wath major shareholders or therr chosen shareholder representative boedy prior to any
charges tots Execusive Director remuneration structure

Jane Moriarty
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
8 March 2019
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THE REMUNERATICN COMMITTEE

The Comrmittee s Termes of Reference are availlable on the Group's website

The Cormmuttes s responsible for

+ Recommending to the Board the remuneration and terms and conditicrs of employrient of the Chair, Executive Directors

and key mermbers of semor management,

¢+ Measuring subsequent perfarmance as a prelude to daternmunirg the Executive Directaore ana key managers tetal

rermuneration on behislf of the whole Beard.
+ Determiming the structure and guantum of short-term scheme, and,
+  Granting awards under the Performance Share Plan

The mamnssues discussed and/or approved during the financial yvear under review

« Approval of the prnior year Directors Remuneration Report.,
«  Annual review of the BExecobive Directors salanes and beneits,

+ Review of the Executive Directors and the semor managers performance under the prnior year's annuat bonus scheme

ncluding a review of their performance against their personal objectives and approval of the bonus awards

Statement of shareholder voting at the 2018 Annual Meeting

The following table shows the results of the advisery vote on the 2017 Annual Remuneration Report at the Annual Meeting an

17 May 2018
Total
nurmber of % of
votes votes cast
Far Oncluding discretionary) 9597781 66 94%
Agamnst 4.741.090 23.06%
Total votes cast 14,238,871 100%
Withheld 1.000

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Director for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the prior year These amounts are shownn the reporting currercy. although settied in Sterhing The exchange rates

usea in 2018 and 2017 were 1 3375 and 1 29 respectively

Compensation Total
Base Szlary Berefits Annual Bonus:  for loss of office rernuneration

Executive Directors 2018 2017 2018 z017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2008 2017

) $000  $000  $00C $000  $000C  FO0C $O00  $000  $'000 $ooq
Marcus Leaver® o 24 545 6 € — w0 ez - ss2 707
Michael Conncler - 289 - 6 ~ = - - ~ 275
Carolyn greshe w08 - - T o - = e -
cowolaw T . - 7 _ T _ _ _
Lsurence Orbache @2 - - - T LT a2 -
Michael Mousley* 285 —  — O T T aes o
KenFund® '  ea - o - - - - — s -
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Compensation Total
Fees Berefits Angual Boows  for loss of office remuneratior

2018 2007 " 2018 261! 2018 207 2018 2017 2018
Non-Executive Directors $00C %pOO $000 3000 $000  $000  $000 %OOO 7$f000 3000
Peter Reaa” 40 93 — — - — - — 40 93

Mike Hartley” - 40 - — — — — — - 40

Jess Burley® 23 ol — -- -
Claire Capec” 7 28 - — — - — - 17 28

Leslie-Ann Read” 21 20 - — - — — — 21 20

Andy Cumming™ * 77 — — _ _ _ _ _ 77

Mei Lan Lam” — — — - — - — _ - .

Jane Moriarty* g — — — —_ _ — _ 9 .

For penod for which hesshe was a Director’Non-E xecutive Duector

Benefits compricse private medical insurance contnibutions

Annual bonus for performance over the relevant financial yeat

Detans of Non-Executive Drectors fees can be found on page 37

The fees for Andy Cumminginclude £14 000 of consulting fees, ¢n an arm s length basis

In (1 by —

Directors’ shareholdings
The share interests of the Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2018 and of therr connected perscns n
the share capetal of the Company are shown below

Number of share Number of US$010
options of common stock shares of cornrmon stock

31 December 31 Decermnber 21 December 21 December
Executive Directors 2018 2007 208 2007

Marcus Leaver 212,149 312149 395,000 295 000

Laurence Orbach — - 4,103,615 o 4:1703‘6?5

C K Lau - - _ 5754.,672 5554672

Michaeal Mousley — - 45,700 45 700

Ken Fund 75188 75188 24.000 4000

During the year the market pnce of the shares of common stack ranged between 65 5p and 186p The mid-market price on 31
December 2018 was 74p

Number of USFO 10
shares of commaon stock

31 December 21 Decermnber

Non-Executive Directors 208" zZo7

Peter Read 25625 25625

Jess Burley 7.355 7.255

Clare Capecr - 10,000 10.000

Leshe-Ann Read — -

Andy Camming _ _

Me Lan Lam —

Jane Mornarty _

"0 date of resignaticn
Co O date of appontment
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Directors’ share options
Shares Common Stock of $Q 10 each

Face value Far value
As at As at at date of at date of Price at
1 January 31 December grant arant exercise
Date of grant 2018° Granited Forfeited 2018 (£'0C0) (£'000) date
Marcus Leaver 24/09/2015 83,732 — (83732 — 175 239 n/a
19/04/2016 73,750 T (737500 —_ 181 ) 87 i n/a
4/08/2016 83,732 - (83732) — 175 230 n/a
28/04/17 70,935 - {70 935) —_ 187 Q0 n/a
312149 - 13121495 —
Ken Fund® 19/04/2016 49692 - — 49,692 122 126 n/a
28/’Qf_1_/2017 25,496 - — 25,496 a7 68 n,a
75188 — — 75188

'Or date of appointment

All awards under the P5SF schemes have a four-year vesting perod

Executive directors’ base salaries/fees
During the year 2018, Marcus Leaver the Chief Executive Officer resigned on 24 May 2018 and was paid salary in ine with his
service contract (£419 486 p a)

During the year 2018, Carolyn Bresh who was appomted on 9 Apnt 2018 and resigned on 5 Jung 2018 was paid salary in line
with her service contract (EZ2875C0 pa)

During the year 2018, C K Lau. appointed on 17 May 2018 received $nil 1in accordance with his service contract
During the year 2018, Michael Mousley. appoimnted on 17 May 2018, received £198 OC0. in accordance with his service contract
Dunng the year 2018, Ken Fung, appomted &5 CO0 on 11 Juty 2018, recerved $364 GO0, accordance with s service contract

Pension and other benefits
The Group makes an annual contricution to the personal pension plan of Ken Fund of $317 000 Annual pension centributions
for Marcus Leaver were £10.000 Benefits are in ine with the policy

Long-Term Incentives - PSP Awards

Under the Remuneration Policy. awards of norminal-cost {or mil-cost) options may be granted annually ug to 50% (n
exceptional cucumstances up to 100%) of base salary {o the Executive Directars Adtienng to the same pringiples, other
applicable employees may receive an award (up a maximum of 40% of base salary. but typically rmuch less) in considering the
size of awards the Remuneration Comrmittee has regard to the principles set out on page 30 of this report

Half of the awards have a performance condition relating to cumulative Adjusted Diluted EPS performance for the four financial
years 2017 to 202C nclusive The other half of these awards have a performance condition relating to total shareholder returns
(TSR ) from a combination of dividends and share price groveth {measured as an average over a 20 business day period
leading up to grant and vesting as appropriate) The TSR pered runs from 28 Aprl 2016 to 28 Apnl 2020

Targets for EPS are annual compounded growth of 5% far Thresholo 1o 10% for Stretch Targets for total sharehclder returns
aver the period are annual compaounded growth of 7% for Threshold and 15% for Stroteh

The Committee believes the TSR directly measures sharehalder retarns and thereby aligns the goals of manzgement and
shareholders However, TSR can be affected by o vanety of mvestrremt factors which are {ar rernoved frorn thiose whoh
management can directly affect The Comrmmittee bel eves that cumulative diluted EPS to be 5 good measure of managements
iong-termoampact on the business and whuch over time tranglates into shareholder value Thus a combanation of TSR and EFS s
believed to be suitable gosls for the PSF Awards Major shareholders have been consu'ted sbout adding the TSR cordition
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Chair and Non-Executive Director fees
The Non-Executive Directors annual fees for 2818 were as fellows Peter Read £72.000 Jess Burley £41.500 Clare Capec
£35000. Leshe-Ann Reed £38 500, Andy Cumming £35 000 (ingreased to £72 Q00 on becoming Crnairy ard sane Morarty

£50 CGO

Relative importance of spend on pay

The graph below snows how total employee pay compares with expenditure on intellectual property for years ended

31 December 2017 and 31 Decermber 2018

40
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Total employee pay

2018 2017

Review of group performance

207

356

Intellectual property spend

The chart on page 38 compares the value of £100 mnvested in Quarto shares including re-uwested drvidenas, on 31 Decembar
2010 compared to the equivalent investment in the FTSE Small Cap Index. over the last rune financial years The FTSE Small
Cap Index has been chosen as it comprises companies of a broadly similar size to Quarte The table below shows the single

figure for the CEC aver the same period

2010
CEO aingle figure of 750
remuneration
including bonus
(% GO0
Annual bonus $ amaount 393
swarded (%' C00s)
% of —
MA@XIrmurm
apportunity
PSP vesting $ amount —
(3C00s)
% of —

MaxImurm

1 The hgure tor 201219 a combination of remune auar of Lawense Sibach, the previous CED and Marcus L eawer (o1 the respe
2 The figure for ZO18 s a comibnmat or of remuneraticn of Marrus Leaver the pevious CEQ and © K Layw for the regpective per ods
z

Discretionary

zom
296

2012 203 2014
1020 870 842
127 233 69

37

2015
929

- 5690% 2350% 9500%

305

2006 2017 2018

3752 201 230
24 150 _

12 0% 21% _
2.651 _ —
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Performance graph
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Change in CEO remuneraticn and for employees as a whole
The table below shows the change in CEQ annual cash remuneration, defined as salary, taxable benefits and annuat bonus,
compared to the average employees for 2017 to 2018,

Average

for other
N B CEQ employees
$00C0 - o . o 201_8 ) 2017 % charjlge % change
Salary o ) o o 224 545 {59)% 8%
Taxable benefits - B 6 6 nit 18%
Annual variable bonusl ) — 150 Qo0% (707%
Total 230 70 B73% 8%

Salary, benefits and bonuses have been impacted by exchange rate movements.

Dilution limits

The Group has at all times complied with the dilution imits set cut in the rules of its share plans (principally a limit of 10% in 10
years). In the 10-year period to 31 December 2018, awards made under the Group's share schemes represented 4.5% (2017:
6.4%) of the Group's issped share capital.

Directors’ shareholding guidelines and share scheme interests
There has been no requirement for Executive Directors to retain shares as no other shares have vested and they are compliant
with the shareholding guideiines.

: ( C 5 ;o
Jane Moriarty L?
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

8 March 2019
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

Group
The Directors present ther report and the audited financial statements of The Guarto Grour in.  for the vear ended
December 31 2018

Results
The loss for the year s $0 6 (2017 ‘oss of $1£ Sy The Directors do net propose a aradend

Arviadication of likely future developments in the business of the Group s includea 1 the Strategic Report on page 7

Directors

Serving Directors durng the year were as follows

P Read ’Non Executive) Not re- dppomled 17 May 2018

M E. Lea;;i (\,h\ef Exec/a;;e Off\&er) Resigned 24 Mdy_-201-8 ) o ) ) _ B

J Burley T (_N“c")r.—Exé-cut\ve) Net re-—:sppomted 17 May 201877"7”4_” - S -
C. C;;ea - (Nor\ Executsve) Not re- appointed 17 May 2018 - B - - B - o

L- -A. Reed S (Non Exec,ut\ve) Not re- ap[::-owr-l-ted 17 May 207}75737" - a o - - N -
A J éﬁn&glng o (Non- Executive Cha\rman) ppotnted 1 March 20]8 - - _ ) ) )

C M. Bresh B (Chief Fmazwcwa\ 6ffwcer) ApDO|n£ga—§_;&pril 2018 _;?ies[gned 5 Jum;ZO?S o N a o ;
[ ;: Orbach o "('E_;ecutwe) Appomted 1'; Mdy 2_6‘1_8 Re_s_;é;;éd zS Ju]y 2078 - - B -
C.K.Law  (Chief Executive Officer) Apponted 17 May 2018 - -

M 4- bll-ousiey o (Interim Choef Financial E)ufftcer) Appownted 17 Ma{hg S h - N o
M L. Lam o (F:o;_E xeéut\ve) VApponﬁteﬂd__?-}" Méy 2018 o T B - -
K 3 F_u; o (Ch\ef Operatmg Offlcer) ADpom-t"edT July 2018 ) o - B S )
J. ;lorlarty o (Non-Executive) Appointed 12 Novermber 2018 T o o ) - -

None of the Directors have a service agreement of more than ane year's duraten Al of the dwectars are subject to annual
re election The letters of appomtment of the Non-Executive Directors are made avallsble for inspection at the Company s
registered office

No Director had a contract of significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the vear

Disclosure of information under Listing Rule 9.8.4
For the purpese of comphance with LR 22 4 R the following information s inchudeo oy reference within the Directors Report.

LR984R Location

Directors remuneration Annual Report on Remuneration pages 34 to 28
Details of Long-term Incentive Plans Annual Report on Remuneration. pages 34 to 38
Employees

Apphcations for employment of disabled persors are always fully considered. bearing in mind the aptitudes of the apphcant
concerned Inthe event of staff becoming disabled. every effort 1s made to ensure that their employment with the Group
continues and that approprate traming 15 arranged. It 15 the policy of the Group that the trainimg career development and
promotion of disabled persons shiould as far as possible. be dentical with that of other employees

The Group places considerabile value on the wvolvernent of its employees and has continued its practice of keepinag them
informed or: matters affecting therm as employees and on the vanous factors affecting the performance of the Greup This s
achieved through formal and informa! meetings Employees are consulted regularly on a wide ranye of matters

The Board recogmizses the importance of diversity amongst its employees and 16 committed to ensunng that emplovess are
selected and promcted on the basis of mert end ability, regardless of age gender race. religien, sexual orertation or disability
The gender snht across the Group as at 21 December 2018 1s llustrated in the table below

Males Females
Bosrd e
Semor rr_w_;naaef: T N o S _ S - 8 iO

39

1HOd3d 21031vH LS

o
Q
<
m
Ly
=z
>
=
0
m

SENIHNILVIS TIVIDONYNIS



The Quarto Group. Inc Annual Report 2018
Governance

DIRECTORS REPORT (CONTINUED)

Substantial shareholders

The Directors have been advised of the folowirng shareholders wha have arointerest of 2% or more in the sharee of the commen
stock of the Company at 31 Decemper 2012 and 8 March ZO19 8 March 2018 s ire jatest praciicatie oate or.or 1o the
cubbcation of this report

As at 31 December 2018 As at 8 Marcrn 2019
Numberof % holding of the Number of % holding of the
US$0.10 shares of issued capital  US$QO 10 shares of 1ssued capital
common stock of the Company commaon stock of the Company
cwise 7 5,754,672 2835 Ce78ag72 28
Dr L F Ombach 4103615 2007 40385 2007
Rerald Investiment Management 1,812,045 886 1812045 886
;n“tre;:ud éépwta\ Mamégeme-mwm_m“ S 1,159,466 567 o 1.159,;65 o 77#56?77
Lazard Freres Geston 993,674 486 993674 486
Gresham House Asset Management Lunited 898 837 440  ®98s37 440

The rnghts attaching to the Company's shares of common stock are set out 10 the Company's By-Laws, which can be found on
the Company's website www quarto com The rules for appointment and replacement of the Directors are set out in the
Company's By-Laws The powers of the Directors are set out in the Company’s By-Laws

The Company may amend its By-Laws by specal resolution approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the
voting power of the shares The Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set out on pages 35 and 36 There are no
restrictions on the number of shares that Directors can hold

Risk management strategy

The Group 1s expesed to a number of principal risks and uncertainties The Group s financial risk management strategy 15 set
out In on page 18 of the Risk Management Review Operational risks are set out on pages 18 and 19 of the Risk Management
Review

Corporate governance

The Company 1s committed to high standards of cerporate governance and supports the principles laid down in the UK
Corporate Governance Code issued by the Financial Reporting Council in 2016 (the Cede’). avalatle from the FRC website at
www frc org uk The Board considers that the Company has beenin complhance with the principles and provisions of the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 and 1o the date of this report, except as cuthned below

Boel -1t was decided that, tecause of the substantial addibional workload for the Board Committees and Directors ansing
from the numerous and matenal matters affecting the Company during the year there was mnsuff-cient time to review the
performance of the Board. its Committees and the Directors It was also the case that 2 number of the Directors yomea the
Company part way through the yvear and therefore it would have been premature to review their performance

C 21 - Fellowing the board changes on 17 May 2018 there was anly one member of the Audit Committees, until the
appointment of Jane Monarty on 12 Movember 2018

The Board will continue to monitor its corporate governance arrangements, st the ght of the Coede fand future changes) as
the Group develops and grows The Company intends to review the performance of the Board, ts Committees and Directors in
2013

The Directors consider that the annuat report and accounts, taken as a whaole are far. alonced and understandalle and
provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Groun's performance husiness mode! and strateay
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Attendance by Directors at Board and Committee meetings in 2018

Audit Nemiations Fernuneration

Boaro Cornmittee Committee Comimittee
Jess Burley g — 1 1
Clare Capec 1 z 1 )
Marcus Leaver™ 9 i 1 -
Lesle-Ann Recd g 2z i —
Peter Read” g 1 1
Andy Cumming’ 1€ 1
Carclyn Bresh'™ 4 1 —
Laurence Orbach” 5 - — ~
C K Lau n — i 1
Michael Mousley™ '~ i 1 - 1
MMe Lan Lam 1l — — 1
Ken Fund 3 — — 1
Jane Morarty!’ z | - 1
Total number of meetings 19 3 1 2
1 dess Burley not re-appointed on 17 May 2018
z Qlare Capeci nol re-appointed on 17 May 2018
3 Peter Read not re-appointed on 17 May 2018
4 Leshe Ann Reed not re-appointed on 17 May 2018
S These Directors were nat members of the Audit Committee (as refened to below) and attend by invitation only
& ™arcus Leaver resigned on 24 May 2018
7 Andy Cumming appointed on 1 March 2018
8 Caralyn Bresh apponted on 9 &prl 2018 resigned on & June 2018
9 laurence Grbach appomnted on 17 May 2018, resigned on 25 July 2018
W C K Lauappointed on 17 May 2018
11 Michasel Mousley appomted on 17 May 2018

12 Mel Lan Lam appomnited on 17 May 2018

12 Ken Fund gppomted on 11 July 2018

1 Jane Monarty appointed on 12 Novemnber 2018
15 Mot members of the Remuneration C ommittee

The principles of the Code have been applhied as follows

a) The Board of Directors represents the shareholders interests in maintaining and growing a successful husiness includimg
optimising consistent long-term financial returns

b) As at 31 December 2018, the Board compnised three Executive Directars and three Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman
15 responsiple for the leadershup of the Board and ensurning s effecthiveness The different roles of the Chairman and Chef
Executive Officer are acknowledged. Jane Moriarty. the Senior Independent Director, 15 avallable to shareholders. if they
have concerns that are not able to be resolved through normal channels Two Non-Executive Directors, Andy Curnming and
Jane Mcrnarty, were considered by the Board to be independent threughaout 2015

¢y There are a number of standing Coermmittees of the Beard to which varnious matters are delegated They all have formal terms

of reference approved by the Board which are avallable on the Coempany's welbisite faww quarto.comd

The Beard met 19 times in 2018 Attendance details are set out above A fermal agenda is prepared for each meesting and alt

toard papers ana information are circutated to the Board at least 2 doys before the meetings except n Lhe Case of meetings

that are convened on shart notice

v All of the Directors are subject to re-election by the sharehclders at the Annual Meeting The Beard 1s satisfied to support

the re-election of Andy Curnirming Jane Moniarty and Me Lan Lam as Non-Exezutive Cirectors a5 they have indiadually

produced excellent performance in therr duties and have shown a ligh level of commitrent te ther roles

The remaneration of the Executive Directors s recommended by the Remuneration Comimittee, comprising Jane Moriarty.

whos the Cemmittes Chairman Andy Curmmming and C K Lau A separate report with respect to Directors rermuneraticon s

mcluded on pages 34 to 38 The Committee meets at least twice a year in the yvear ended 31 Cecember 2018 the Committee

had mel 2 times

The Audit Comimittee comprises Jane Morarty, whao s Committes Chairman, and Andy Cumming The Board g satisfied that

the members of the Committee have appropnate financ:al experence to fuifil ther rale Furtner detatls of the Committee's

work Tan be founa on pages 23 ta 25
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DIRECTORS REPORT (CONTINUED)

b Thie vermnations Cemimittee compnises Andy Cumaing who s Comimittee Chairmar Jane Mornarty and C K Lau Detals

of the work of the Nominagtions Committee during the yvear are set out mits report cn page 22
2y The Crief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are respensitle for investor relations They meet wath majer

shareholders durna the course of the year in order to ungerstand their views that are then commurncated to the rest of
trie Board at Board meetings The Non-Executive Chairman ana Serior Independent Director meet with major shareholders
from tirme ta tirme Shareholders arenvited to attend the Anrual Meetinag at jeast 20 days in advance of the meeting Al

Directors attend the meeting which 1s used to communicate vath sharehalders
The Eoard has a procedure for Directors to take independent professicnal advice at the Comparny’'s expense if required
3 Al Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
) Quarto has arranged appropniate insurance cover in respect of legal action aganst the Directors

b

m) The Company has an established whistle-blowing poboy

Greenhouse gas emissions reporting
Curmg the year, the Group worked with Energy Management LLP. an energy procurerment and carbon consultancy to develop

GHG reperting protocol based on DEFRA and World Resource Institute guidelines

The Group has chosen to use Cperational Control in their approach to reparting utility data. electncity and natural gas frem UK
and International operaticns This includes sites that have been disposed of durning the reporting penod Scope 1 {Natural Gas)
and Scope 2 (Eiectricity) are reported on below,. but the Group 1s not reporting on Scope 3 emissions Covenng emissiens from
transport and emissions from fully serviced offices where only a service charge s applied

The Group has identified GHG {Greenhouse Gas) emissiens per employee as the most appropriate avalable KPI (referred to
as the intensity ratio) and has chosen 2014 as our Base Year. following the disposal of our silk-screen printing business in 2013,

Global GHG emissions

Scope
Scope 2

Total GHG emissions (COe)

Avarage number of staff

Ermissions per staff member

2018 2017

Tornes of CO e
{,,iisv e 13-'
129 174
w2 e
372 425 -

0.38 044

Exc'uding staff at fully serviced offices
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Risk management and internal controls

The Board is responsibfe for the Group's systemn of internal contral and for reviewing its effectiveness. As stated previously,

the Dirgctors have carried out a robust assessment of the principa’ businesses and considered the controls in place to eliminate
or mitigate the impact of key risks. The Board has in place risk management systerms in relation to the Company's financial
reporting process and the Group's process for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. However, such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Established procedures are In place to identify and consclidate repaorting entities. Qur control activities include poticies and
practices covering appropriate authorisation and approval of transactions, the application of financial reporting standards and
reviews of significant iudgements and financial performance.

The main elements of the internal control and financial reporting systems are:

LEO43Y D123 LvHIS

a) The results of individual cperating segments are reported and reviewed by the Board at its meetings during the year.

b) The management reports of each operating segmant are tailored to suit the business and management needs of local
management. Each operating segment has its own key performance indicators and these are regularly reviewed and
assessed.

© In addition to monthly reporting, individual operat.ng units report certain management information more frequently, where
it 1s considered apprepriate.

d) All operating units repart their bank balances weekiy and a report is produced summarising the Group position.

€) All operating units prepare annual budgets and cash flow forecasts which are reviewed by the Board.

The UK Corporate Governance Code introduced a requirement that the Directors perform on-going monitoring and review
of the effectiveness of the Group's system of internal contrals, to cover all controls including financial, operational, compliance,
and risk management. The Board confirms that there are ongoing processes covering the identification, evaluation and
managerment of the significant risks faced by the Group which cover all materiat controls. The processes are carried out
through Group Board meetings, quarterly subsidiary management meetings, discussion and review by the Executive Board and
the finance department during the several visits per year to individual operating units, and discussions with professional
advisers where appropriate. We will continue to develop our risk management framework during 2019.
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Michael Clarke
Company Secretary /[ .,1
8 March 2019 L, O, (

Company Reglstrajjon Number: FCO 1381/
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsibie for
preparing the Strategic Report, Annua!
Report and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

The Company is an ‘overseas’ company
within the meaning of the Companies
Act 2006

Company law requires the directors to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group
financial statements in accordance with
Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and the parent
Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdormn
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards)
and applicable law including FRS 102
‘The Financial Reporting Standard
appiicable in the UK and Republic of
ireland’. Under company law the
directors must not approve the finangial
statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs and profit or loss of the
company and group for that period. In
oreparing these financial statements, the
directors are required to:

= select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

* state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards for the parent
company and IFRSs as adopted by
tha European Union for the Group
have been foliowed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements:

= prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The Directors are respansible for
keeping adeguate accounting records
that are sufficient toc show and explain
the Company’'s transactions and disclose
with reasonabie accuracy atany time
the financial position of the Company
and enabie thermn to ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and Article 4

of the IAS Regulation. They are a'so
responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors confirm that:

« so far as each Director is aware,
there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's auditor
is unaware; and

+ the Directors have taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as
Directors in order to make themselves
aware cf any relevant audit
information and to establfish that
the Company's auditor is aware
of that information.

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the annual report in
accordance with applicable law and
regulations. Having taken advice from
the Audit Committee, the Directors
consider the annual report and the
financizal statements, taken as a whole,
provides the information necessary to
assess the Company’s performance,
business model and strategy and s fair,
balanced and understandable.
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The Directors are responsibie for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions,

To the best of our knowledge:

+ the Group financial statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union,
give a true and fair view of the asse’s,
liabihities, financial position and profit
or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the
consaolidation taken as a whole; and

= the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report include a fair review of the
devalopment and performance of the
business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings
included 0 the consclidation taken as
a whole, tcgether with a description
¢f the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face.

C.K.Lau

Chief Executive Off'?‘er
8 March 2019 .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF THE QUARTO GROUP, INC.

Opinion

Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial staterments of The Quarto Group Inc (the parent company 'y and ts subbsidianies (the 'group ) for
ine year ended 21 Decermper 2018 wimich compnise the consohdated income staternent. the consondated statament of
comprehensive income, the corsolidated balance shieet the consohdated statement of changes meguity the consohaated
cash flow staternent the company balance sheet the company staternent of comprehensive income the company staterrent
of changes in eguity and noles to the firanciai statements ncluding a summary of siarificant accounting polcies The linanoal
reporting framewaork that has beern apphed in the preparation of the group financial staterments s apphcakle law and
International Financal Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the Eurcpean Unon. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements s applicatle law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards. including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financral Reporting Standard apphicabide in the UK and
Repubhc of freland’ (United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

INOur ooinan

+ the fingnoal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company's affars as at 31
Cecember 2018 and of the group's loss and the parent company's profit for the year then ended.

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice and

+ the financial steterments have Been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 which would
have appited were the company incorporated in the United Kingdom. and. as regards the greup financial statements, Article
4 of the |AS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatronal Standards ¢on Auditing (UK)Y (1S As (UK and applicable law Our
responsibilittes under those standards are further doscribed in the Auditor's responsibiities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report We are independent of the greup and the parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant tc our audit of the financial statements in the UK. including the FRC's Ethical Standard as
spphed to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements We telieve that the audit evidence we have oblained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our cpiInion

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement
We have nothung to repert in respect of the following information in the annual report in relation to etuch the 1SAs (UK)
require us to report to vou whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to.

« the disclosures in the annual report set cut on page 18 and 19 that descnibe the pnntipal neks and expiam how they are
being managed or mitigated.

» the directors confirmaticn set out on page 15 of the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal nisks facig the group inclucing those that would threaten its busmess model future performance. solvency or
liguidhity.

+ the directors’ statement. set cut on page 15 of the financial statements about whether the directors considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern bas:s of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the airectors
wentification of any matenal uncertanties tc the group and the parent company’'s ability to continue to do so over a pertod
of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.

= whether the directors’ staterment relating to going concern required under the Listing Rules inaccardance with Listing Rule
2 & ER(3} 15 matenally incongistert with our wnowledge obtained in the audit. or

+ the directors explanation. set cut on page 15 of the anrual report as tc how they have assessed the prospecte of the group
over what penod they have done so and why they consider that penod to be appropnate and therr statement as to whether
hey have a reasonable expectation that the group wi'l be anle to continue I cperation and meet its iakbibhies as they fall
due over the penod of their assessment including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary guanfications
or assumphions

45

180438 ND3LVALS

[0}
o
<
m
0
=z
»
Zz
0
m

SINIWILVLS TYIDNYNIA



The Guarto Group Ing Annual Report 2018
Governance

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUEDD

Overview of our audit approach
» Overall matenahty $780k. which reprecsents © 2% of group revenue.

¢+ Key audt matters weredentified a5 assessing the completeness of rhe sales return provision. assessment of the carrying
value of gocdwiliin relation to Quarte US and assessment of the carrying value of pre publication costs
» We have perfarmed a ful scepe audit of Quarto Publshing ple ¢ Quarte UKy and Guarto Putlishing Group USA Inc ( Guerto

USTH representing 100% of contnuing reverue for the Group. 96% of group assets and 1C0% of group liabhities We have

performed anaytical procedures on the other comparnes within the group

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that i our professional judament, were of most sigrificance in cur audit of the frnancig!
staternents of the current pencd and include the most significant assessed risks of maternal misstatement (whether or not due
to fraud) that we identified These mratters included those that had the greatest effect on the overall audit strateqy. the
allecation of resources in the audil and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the
context of aur audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forrming our opimicn thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters These matters are the same as those dentified dunng the planning stage of our audit

Key Audit Matter - Group

Completeness of sales
returns provision

Under ISA 240 (UK there s a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due ta the improper
recognition of revenue

The Group generates matenal revenues from published
bocks Certain customers have a nght of return for these
bocks and therefare the revenue s recognised net of a
crovision for these returns At 31 December 2018, this
provision totals $5.391k Management judgement s
regured when assessing the level of returns which are
expected to occur subsequent to the year end for sales
made during the year

The key assumption appled s in relatian to fustoncsl
return experience which s used in order to predict
future returns and the provisicn recuired

We therefore identified the completeness of sales return
provision as a significant nsk, which was one of the most
significant assessed risks of matenal missratement

"”How the matter was addressed in the audit - Group

Our audit work included. but was not restricted to,

+ Testing a sampte of returns made during the year to supperting
documentation in order to confirm the accuracy of the data
used to calculate the rates of returns used ir management's
calculation of the prowvision:

+ Recalculating the provision to confirm that it 1s appropriate and
N accordance with managerment s policy,

» Companng actual returns i the penoed to the provision made in
the prior period in order to evaluate the accuracy of
management’s forecasting

» Companng actual returns in January and February to the
provision made in order to evaluate whether the current year
provision 1s accurate

The group’'s accountimg pohcy an the sales returns provision s
shownin note 1to the financial statements and related disclosures
are inctuded in notes Tand 17, The Aud't Committes identified the
sales returns provision as a significant 1ssue 1N its report on page
24 where the Audt Commmittes aise descnbed the acthion that i
has taken to address thisissue

Key observations

We concur vath manageiment’s view that the provision made for
sales returns agaimnst revenue s reasanable ang has been
calculated on an appropriate hasis

Cur audht work didd not dentify any maternal errors in the
completeness of the sales return provesion recogisedan the year
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Key Audit Matter - Group How the matter was addressed in the audit - Group

Assessment of the carrying value of goodwill in
relation to Guarte US

Tre Group holds $18.254% of goodwll onoits palance Cur audt work mcluded but was not restnicted o

impamrment review,
Assessing the discount rate appled. including an assessment by
our valuation specialists and benchmarking the rate against that
used by competitors
Fertorming sensittvity anaiysis arcund the value in use
calcutation performed by management.

» Censidernng the post year end perfarmance of the Group

We consider that the carrying value ¢f the goodwill for
this CGU s a key risk due to the current economic
cervironment and performance of the US CGU leading to
sensitivity of the imparrment calculabions to a reasonably
passible change in the key assumpticns, includmg the
cdiscount rate. cash flow forecasts and growth rates

! . %]

sheet, with the Jargest balance (312 882k, relating to obt ; del and t =
B b ¥ Al 5 iek: Lal=! ey ~ 1 c -

Quarte US as shawr m nate 11 to the 2Ccounts stammng managements mipairment revievy model and festing g

the mathematical accuracy ]

inaccordance with Internanional Accountng Standard + Assessing the appropraténess of thie asset and Yiatihity amounts Eq

26, Imparrment of Assets ( 1AS 367 Goodwill s sulzject included in the carrymg value of each of the cash generating O

to an annual imparrment test units which were assessed by management as part of the %

el

@]

T

i

wWe therefore identified the assassment of the carrying agawmnst pudgeted profit and cashflow and companng histoncal
value of goodwill in relatiaon to Quarto LS as a3 significant budgets to actual performance in arder to assess the accuracy
nsk. which was one of the mast significant assessed risks of budgets prepared by managemaent

of maternal misstatement
The group's accounvng pohcy on goodwillis shown nnote i to the

Financial Statements and related disclosures are ncluded in note 1
The Audit Committee dentified the carrving value of goodwall as 3
significant 1ssue N 1ts report on page 23, where the Audit Committee
also described the action that it has taken to address this 1ssue

Key observations
No impairment charge has been recognised during the year in

relaticn te the goodwill held Quarto US goodwill rermnans sensitive
to changes in key assumptions and these continue to be disclosed
in the accounts
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Assessment of the carrying value of
pre-publication costs

The Group’s net boeok varue of capitahsed pre- Qur audit work mcluded but was not restricted to
publication costs at 31 December 2018 was $5€ 741k as
detalled in note 15 This represents costs which are
capitalised by the Group in relation to the development
of book Titles

* Assessing the recoverabihity of pre-puthcation costs allocated
to each CGU as part of the imparment test performed under
1AS 26 to ensure that pre-publication costs are recoverable
based on management's value in use calculation for each CGLU

vatue of pre-pubhcation costs as a aignificant 1ssue in s report on
page 24 where the Audit Committee alse described the action
that it has taken to address th'sissue

These costs are amortised over a thréee-year penad cn a in arder to assess overall recoverabulity,
straight-line basis to reflect the expected useful « Forimprints which were closed durning the year it was ensured g
economic ife of thus asset There s management that the related pre-publication cost was apprepriately rmparred >
judgement in relation to the lerath of Ife of this asset «  Analyaing histonc sales patterns to ensure that they suppert the %
and whether it1s recoverabie estimate made by management of a three-year useful econorrmc hfe: >
We therefore identified the assessment of the carrying * Benchmarking of the usaful ecanommic life apphed by peers ;
value of pre publicabion costs as a significant sk which The group’s accounting policy o0 pre-publication costs 15 shown 'E!
was one of the most s:gnificant assessed risks of innote 1o the financial statements and related disclosures are rﬁ
matenal musstatement ncluded in note 15 The Audt Comemittes Wdentifued Lhe Caroying }_,
z
I

Key observations
Cur testing cid not dent.fy any materai misstaterments :n the
carrymg value of pre publcation costs We found no reason for
smpairment of pre-publ cation costs or any additional factors to be
considered that wou!d affect the carrying value recegnised wathn
the financizl statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter - Parent

There are no key audit matters in relation to the

parent company.

Our application of materiality

How the matler was addressed in the audit - Parent

We define matenality as the magrmitude of rmysstatement in the financial staterments that maxes it probals's that the econamic
decimons of o reazonably knowledgeable person would te changed or influenced We use raaterahly in determirnng the nature.
tirring and extent of our audit work and in evaluating the results of that work

Materahty was determined as follows

Materiality measure

Financial statements as a whole

FPerformance matenalhly used fo drive

thie extent of cur 1esting

Specific matenalty

Communicaticn of misstaternents to the
audit cormmittes

Group durtng the year

We determine a lower level of specific

5,000

Group

Materiahty was set at $780.000 which
15 based on our intial assessment of a
number of benchmarks for the Group
and represents 0 52% of group
revenue Thisis considered to be the
most approprate tenchmark for the
Group as it drives performance durnna
the year. and we do not consider it
appropnate Lo use earnings before tax
given the loss made during the year

Materiality for the current year s hugher
than the ievel that we determined for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to
reflect this being the second year we
have acted as auditors and the
improvement in the perfarmance of the

65% of financial staterment maternalty

matenahty for certain areas which
mcludes arwectors remunerathon and
related party transactions where they
are balances which are matenal by
their nature We have set this at

$39.000 and misstatements below
that threshold that, in our view. warrant
reporting on guattative grounds,

Parent

Materiality was set at $8 000 which s
1% of our wwhial assessment of total
assets This benchmark s considered
the most apprepnate because the
cempany s a holding company and
does not trade

Materahty for the current year s al the
same level that we determined for the
year ended 31 December Z017 to
reflect that there has been no change
N the investment held

65% of financial statement matenahty

We have determined a lower level of

specific matenalbty of $5 0QO0 faor
certamm areas bemng drectors
remuneration and related party
transact.ons

41000 and misstatements below that

threshold that, in cur view, warrartt
reporling on guahtative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Cur audn approach was & risk pased appreach founded on a thorough understandmg of the group § DUsSINeESS TS ervironTrnent

ard tsk profue and oo particular mcluded

« Fvaluztion by the group audit team of identified components to assess the ssgnificance of tha
the planned auait response based on a measure of matenahty Significance was determ-ned &

total assets, revenues and profit before taxation
. Based aonthie evatuatior it s considered that the only significant components are Guarte Paohsnimg ple ( Guarto UK Jand

Guarte Publishing Group JSA Ine (G0

arta US ) due to fimanoal sigreficance

» We bave also performed & full scope audit of the parent compary,

+ For Quarto US we performed a full scope audit to component matenanty. capped at 65% of group matenalty

o For Guarte UK we performed a full scope statutary audit to a matenahty level which was fowes than woud bave applied had
we serformed procedures only for growp purnosaes

« The ful scope audits performed reprasent 100% of continuing revenae for the year. 96% of total assets and 100% of total

habihities

= The ather entittes i the group have been subject to analytical review
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Other information

The cirectars are responsible for the ofther information The other information compnises the nformation ncluded in the annaal
report set out on pages 110 44 other than the financial statements ana cur audditor's repart thercon Our Gpimcn on the
firarncizl staterments does nat cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise exphioithy stated in our report we
do not express any form of assurance conclusicn thereon

In connecticn with our audit of the financial statements our responsital £y 15 1o read the olher nformation and 10 domg sc
consider whether the other information 1s matenally inconsistent with the financial staterments or our knowledge obtainedn
the audit or otherwise appears to be materally misstated If wedentify such maternal inconsistencies or apparent material
rrosstalernerts we are reguired Lo determing whether thereas a matenal misstatement in the finanoial statements or a maienal
misstaternent of the other infarmation If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a matenal
rrusstaterment of this other infarmation we are required to regort that fact

180d3aH DIDILVHLS

We have nothing to report in this regard

in this context. we also have nothing to report in regard to our responsitiity to speaifically address the following items in the
other information and to report as uncorrected material misstaternents of the other infermation where we conclude that those
items meet the following conditions

+ Fair. balanced and understandahle - the statement given on page 40 by the directors that they consider the annual report
and financial statements taken as a whole s farr. balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders te assess the group’s perfarmance business model and strategy 15 materialiy nconsistent with cur knowledge
obtained in the audit. or

« Audit committee reporting - the section set gut on pages 23 to 25 does net appropnately address matiers communicated
by us to the audit commattee: or

v Directors’ statement of complhance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out an page 40 - the parts of the directors’
staterment reguired under the Listing Rules relating tc the company s complance with the UK Corpeorate Governance Code
contaming provisicns specified for review by the auditer m accordance with Listing Rule @ 8 10R(Z) do naot properly disclose
a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Carporate Governance Code

Our opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 were it to apply to the
company, are unmodified

In our opirmon. the part of the directors remuneration repart to ke audited has been properly prepared m accordance with the
Companes Act 2006
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In cur opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

« the mmformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the finanaial yvear for whieh the financial statements
are prepared s consistent with the financial statements. and
»  the strategic report and the directors report have heen prepared i accordance with appheable legal reaquirements

Matters on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006, were it to apply to the
company

tn the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its ervironment obtaned in the
course of the audht. we have notidentified material rmisstatements 1n the strategic repert or the directors’ report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception, were the Companies Act 2006 to apply
to the company

We have nothing to report in respect of the fellowing matters inrelation te which the Companies Act 2006 regurres us to
regort to you ifin cur cpiion.

« adequate accounting records have not een kept by the parenl corpany or returns adegaale for gur sudit have not been
received fram branches not visited by us. or

+ the parent compary financial statements and the part of the airectors rerruneration report to ke audited are notin
agresinent with the accounting reccrds and returns: or

o certam ciaclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

= we have not recoved al the mfcormation and explanations we require for our audit

SINIWILIVLS TVIONVNIZ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Responsibilitias of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 44, the directors are responstble for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internat control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unlass the directors either intend to liguidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o 1ssug an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with ISAs (UKD will always detect a
material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise fromn fraud or efror and are considered material if. individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

We are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial staterments taken as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error, Owing to the inherent imitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that
material misstaternents of the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is propery planned and
performed in accordance with the 1SAs (UK). Our audit approach is a risk-based approach and is explained more fully in the
‘An overview of the scope of our audit’ section of our audit report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Repoerting
Ceuncil's website at: www.fr.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address
Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the audit committee on 20 November 2017 to
audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2017 and subsequent financial periods.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement is two years, covering the years ending 3t December 2017 ta 31 December 2018,

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and
we remain independent of the group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Cur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit commiitee.

Use of report
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as 2 body, in accordance with the terms that have been agreed in gur

engagement letter dated 17 December 2018. Our audit work has been undertaken sc that we might state to the company's
members-G5g matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
peraritted bysw, wegdo not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members

Vi

S B S
ark Henshaw

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP

Statutery Auditor, Chartered Accountants

Londen

8 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017

Notes $000 T 000
Continuing operations - - T
Revende 2 149,292 152 512
Cost of cales (10719%) (109,648
Grossprofit - ) 42097 42664
Administrative expenses (23,873 (2798223
Distribution costs _ (7919 (7.549)
Operating profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles T s e
and exceptional items
Amaortisation of acquired intangibles (850> (840}
Exceptionalitems 5 (5152) [24.235)
Operating profit/(loss) - - o 4303 (788
Fmance ncome 21 25
Finance costs ) {4,381 (3325
Loss before tax - I T en auEn
Tax 9 (495) 1.480
Loss for the year - - o (552) (19.702)
Discontinued operations
Profit for the yearrfrom discontinued operations 31 - ) 1163
Loss for theyear B o (552 (18539)
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent (552) (18 9133
Non-contralling interests — (26
Earnings/(Loss) per share (cents)
From continuing operations
Basic 10 (2.7 (96.4)
Chiuted 10 27 (96 4)
Adjusted basic 10 23.2 183
Adusted diluted 10 230 178
From discontinued operations
Basic 10 - 58
Diluted 10 - 57
The results of the discontinued businesses of BGD and Regent have been classified separately i the consohdated incorie
statement for the préevious year
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The Quarte Group Ine Annual Report 2018
Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 208

2018 2017

3000 $ 000
Loss for the year (552) (18 LI2;
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foregn exchange translation differences (1.950) 35
Reclazsfication to income staterment on dsposal of business — ZE4AG
Cash flow hedge {lgsses)/gamns ansing dunng the year {318} %
Tax relating te items that may be recfassidied to profd or loss (246) 4/
Total otﬁer compréhensive (é;q'a‘ernse)/incon;e - h (22~56?_ : 4071
Total cémpreheﬁsi;e expensg for thé yé;;;;;f ta); o o (2,808) (14 .468)
Total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to:
Owners of the garent (2.808) (14 442)
Non-controling interests — (267

(2,808} (14.468}
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 20177
Notes $000 $000
Non-current assets
Goodwil n 18,954 19,288 «n
Other intangible assets 12 2368 3,516 5
Property, plant and equipment 12 1552 2129 8
intangible assets: Pre-publication costs 1) 56,741 60,278 ‘:;_
Deferred tax assets i 19 3,901 3,907 3
Total non-current assets 83,516 8910 g
Current assets
Inventories 16 22,324 22,637
Trade and other receivables 17 54,476 53,4860
Derivative financial instruments 105 205
Cash and cash equivalents - 18 15,384 17946
Total current assﬁts - - - ) m92.239 942—4?
Total assets o S 175,805 183,358
Current liabilities o )
Short-term borrowings 18 (5.000) (s000y @
Trade and other pavables 20 (64,917 (60,796) %
Iamaic_eayab\e 7 ] 3 (4,167)_7 (?.243)__ g
Total current liabilities N 7 __{7a084) (71039} &
Non-current liabilities ™
Medium and long-term borrowings 23 (70,752) {76,907
Deferred tax liabilities 19 (8,753) (8,520)
Tax payable (544) (.n6)
Other payables N ) 20 {554) (1,673}
Total non-current Habilities 7 (80.603) (88,216)
Total liabilities " (154687)  (159,255)
Net assets 21m8 24103 T
%
Equity g
Share capital 24 2045 2,045 z
Fai¢! in surpius 33764 33,764 “
Retained earnings and otihner reserves (14,691) (1,706) ;’3
Equity attributable to owners of tha parent 21018 24303 5
Non-controlling interests — . - é
Total equity nng 24103

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors ang authorised for issue on 8 March 2018,
They werq-\ signed on its behalf by:

"
L1
o

5

C.K.La ,3Director )
i f\)‘J
b L)\/ N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2018

Equity
attninutable
fC owners MNon-
Share Padin  Hegging Transiaticn  Retamed of the  centrollng
capital surplus reserve Reserve carnings carent interests Total
tCCo $£'000 $OOO $OOO $0CO 1 COC $ GO0 $'0GO
Balance at 1 January 2017 2,045 337604 140 (8. 850) 12120 39218 4,892 44M
Loss for the year - - — - (18.513) (8513 (267 18 53233
Other comprehensive income
Foreign exchange — — — 46 - A6 11y 5
translation differences
Reclassification to ncome - — — 3540 — 2,540 — 31540
staternent on dispaosal of
business
Cash flow hedge gains ansing — - 25 — — 25 - 25
during the vear
Tax relating to items that may — — — 471 — 471 - 471
be reclasslfled to Drofnt or \ocs
Total comprehensive mcome/ — - 25 4,057 (18, 513) 14, 431) (37) (i4,468)
(expense) for the year
Chvidends paid to Shareholder; -— — — — (2018} 2.018y — (2.018)
Dividends Iin-specie paid to — — - - (3744) (3.744)
non-controlhing mierests
Adjustment ansing - — - — 111 m (nn —
fram change i non comralling
interests
Share baqed payments marge — - - — 222 222 - 242
Balance at n December 2017 .5 045 33 764 165 (4 793) (7D78) 24 103 - 24103
Loss for the year — - — — (5527 (5527 — (5527
Other comprehensive income
Fareign exchange translation - — — (19500 — (1,250 — (1950)
differences
Cash flow hedge tosses anising — (60) - — (603 — (60}
during the year
Tax relating to items that may - — (246) - (2462
D& redasyﬁed to ;Jrofut ar \055
Total comprehensive expense — - (60) (2196) (552) (2 808) - (2,808)
for the year
Share based paymer.tc cred t - - — - (l?;) (077) — (77
Balance at 31 December 2015 2,045 33,764 10% (6.289) (7 807) 2118 -— 218
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
N 7 _ i Notes $oco iOOO
Los;for tagr;ear_m o o S V o - _7777ﬁ'(-5:‘>27) (185393
Adjustmernts for o
MNet Timance Costs 4360 3.300 3
Cepreciation of property. plant and egupment 693 217 n]—j
Software amortisation 298 215 (—G;
Tax expensa/(credit) 495 (1.480) r;[r::
Impairment of goodwill — 17418 8
impairment of pre-publication costs 5 4.86% ;Ei
Share based payments Q77 222
Amortisation ana amounts written off acquired intangibles N0 41
Amortisation and amounts wnitten off pre-publication costs 31,426 32212
Movement in fair value of dervatives - (1303
Gain on dwestment of business - (2540
Ooerrratﬂmq cawsl% flows beforé_r;oveme;t; n wc-)rl;mg Capr—téF o I 37954 37 303
Decrease i inventories 21 rzgr
(Increase) inrecevables (2.280; (784} o
Increase in fy "bues o o e o 4,635 7 6822 g
Cash generated by operatlorws 40,334 44 622 %
Incorme taxes pai e S nesy - g
Net cash from operatlng actlv____les ) 38,372 44 622 Q
In;e_s;;ng BChVItIG; o o o T T T T o
Interest received 21 25
Investment in pre-publication costs (29,744) (35550
Purchases of property. plant and eguiprment (169) (1063)
Purchase of software 7N (266)
Acguisition of businesses {1,887) (7.041)
D|5po<a\ of subsidiaries — 4,588
Net cash u_s_ed in ;-r;;:f»tl;lg a:tlwtlé:_- _ - S (31856 (39 308) L
Fma“n_c_l_r;g activities o R o T T - o C g
Drvidends pad - (2018) 2
interest payments (2.980) (2 935 ;
Drawdown of revolving crecht facihity 18,457 6,600 g
chnymer t of term lean and revo[vmg crecﬁwt facwllty M(24 238)_ (8 27 ) E
Net cash useit;;;\ fmarEmg activities T (8,761 (6 624) "21
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents " ong gz K
Cash ard cash equivalents ot ceginmimg of year 17946 15824
Fareign CUrrENCy exc hange (mferelmes I L.dbh and o ash EQUIVd’eI \tf (317 452
Cashﬂanrd cash equ-l_\-;lents at end c;f_;aar- - o - o - 7w75‘38"4~ N W] 7946
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information and significant accounting policies

The Guartc Group. Inc 15 3 company nccrporated in the State of Delaware Uriuted States The address of the registered office
1§ given on page 97 The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities are set out in note 2 and in the Chief
Executive Officer 5 Statement cn page 5

The sccounting pohties adopted are consistent with those of the anmual hirzroal ststerments for the year ended 31 Decemper
201/ as described in those finznaial statements Two new accounting standards IFRS @ and IFRS 15, have been adepted during
the period The acccunting policies on revenue and financial instrumenits have been updated. as a consequence of these
accounting standards 1FRSYS has been apphed using a modhhed retrospective Coumulative catcn up ) spproach under which
changes having a material effect on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 are presented
tcgether as a single adjustmient to the opening balance of retained earnings Accordingly. the Group 1s not required to present
a third staterment of fmanica) positon as at thal date 1FRS 1S reguires that the Group's reserve for sales returns 1s reclassifred
The reserve was previously netted off in trade receivables and from 1 January 2018 this s now shown as a liabiity withun trade
and other payables The effect on transiticn was to increase trade and cther recevables as at 1 January 2018 by $6.401,000
with a corresponding inCrease i trade and other payables As of 21 December 2015 irade receivables and other payables
would have been $5,391 00C lower under previous accounting standards. There was no adjustment to the opering balance of
retamned earmngs

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items mcluded n the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency The presentational currency of the Group s US dollars

Statement of compliance
The Group financial statements consohdate those of the Company and its subsicharies (together referred to as the ‘Group ) The
parent company financial staterments present infermation about the Company as a separate entity and not about its Group.

The Group financial staterments have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU CIFRS'). The Campany has elected to prepare its parent company financal
statements in accardance with UK GAAP. nciuding The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland ( FRS 102 These are presented on pages 89 to 96

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared on the historicail cost basis, except that denvative financial instruments are stated at
fair value

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of finanaial statements i conformity with IFRS reguires management to make judgements, eshimates and
assumptions that affect the application of polices and reported amounts of assets and hakilities income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances Actual resufts may differ from these estimates The estimates and underlying assumptions
aré reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate 1s revised
if the revision affects only that year or m the year of the revision and future years f the revision affects both current and

future years

Key estimates al the balance sheet date are.

Note 117 The revenue recognition pohcy detalls our judgement in respect of sates refurns and the method of estimating the
refated sales returns allowance

Naote N Key assumptions in rmaking the assessment of carrying value of goodwilt and acquired intangitle assets
Note 15 Recoveratbility of pre-publication costs and the assessment of thewr useful Life

Nole 17 Assessment of the impairment of trade receivabites

Going concern basis
The Board has assessed the Group's alniity to operate as a gaing concern based on g financial model which was prepared as
part of the precess of considerng and approving the 2019 budget

The Drrecters have corsidered the underlying robustness of the Group's bus.ness model products and proposition and its
recent tradmg performance cash flows and key performance mzicators They have also reviewed the cash forecasts prepared
for the three years ending 31 Gecember 2021 which comprise a detailed cash forecast for the year ending 31 December 2019
tased on the budget for that year and the growth assumptions for revenue ard costs together with cash forecasts for the
vears endimg 31 Decemnibzer 2020 ana 202 to satisfy themselves of the apprepriateness of the gong concern basis used In
preparing the financial statemerrts
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1 General information and significant accounting policies (continued)

In Carrying out tngr analysis of viability, the Directors tock account of the Group's proected profits and cash flows and its
tanving covenants and these have been subjected to sersitraty aratysis over the three-vear penod

Bssed ani our assessment. the Directors have a reasonable expectat on that the Group wil be abie to cortinue i operstion and
meet ah of s hab hties ag they fall due up to 3¥ December 2027

For these reasons the Directors continue to adopt the ading concern basws o preparng the finaraal statements In doing <o 1t
s recogmsed that cuch future assessments are subject to a level of uncertainty that increases with time and therefore future
outcomes cannot be guaranteed cr predicted with certainty

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include the results of the Company and atl of its subsidiary undertakings & subsidiary 1s an
entity controiled. directly orindirectly, by the Group Controlis the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the
entify so 35 {0 obtam benefits from ts activities The fimancial statements of subsidianes are mcluded n the consohdated
firancial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases

Intragroup balances and any unreabsed gans and losses orncome and expenses ansing from intra-group transachions
are elirminated 1n preparing the consoldated financial statements

The interest of non-contrelhng interests on an acquisition s initiaily measured at the mnornty’s proportion of the net fair value
of the assets. hakihties and contingent habihties recognised

Business combinations, intangible assets and goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method Goodwill represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of the net assets and any contimgent hiabihties acquired Acguisition costs are
expersed as mcurred

Goodwill arising on acguisitionsas stated at cost less any accurnulated impairment josses Gocdwill s atlocated to cash-
generating urits and s tested annually forimparrment

Other intangible assets. such as backlists that are acquired by the Group are statea at cost less accumulated amortisation
and imparrment losses

Armortisation of intangible assets s charged to profit or loss on a straight ne basiz gver the estimated useful hives of intangible
assets The amortisation period for non-contractual relationships s 2 5 years, for backlhists 1s 5 years and software s 4 years

Profit or loss from discontinued operations
A discontinueed operation s a compaonent of the Group that has been disposed of Profit or loss from discontinued operations
comprisas the post-tax profit or toss of discontinued operations

Volume rebates
in the orcdinary course of busiress. the Group receves volume repates from s printers Thes s accounted for inaccordance
with contractual terms and 1s credited in full to cost of sales

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including goodwill

The carrying amount of the Group's assets s reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether thare s any indication
of imparment If any such indication exists. the asset's recoverable amount 1s estimated The recoverable armmount is the higher
of fair value, reflecting market conchticns less costs te sell. and value in use based on an mternal discounted cash flow
valuation

For goodwill the recoverable amount 15 estimated at each balance sheet aate Arnmparment loss s recognised whenever the
carryIing amaount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amaount Impalrment losses are recogrised in

profit or loss
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 General information and significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Reverue anses largely from the sale of physical croducts Eacn contract s for ar agreed price and revenue 1§ recognised at @
point i hime wher the Group sabishes performance cohgeone oy fransfernng the produtis toats customers, thisig

determ red voth reference to dehvery terms Invances for praoducts transferred are due or the terms specified in the contract

Fevenue frem the sale of cublishing rights 1s recegrised whan tae Group: Yas discharged ite performance obhgatrons under the
coriractual arrangements

Oncertain contracts the customer has a right to return the progucts The Group makes an allowance for this based on a
review of the fustancal returns patterns asscciated with the customer as well as current market trends This altowance 1s
nciuded withnn cther payvables The Group alsc recogmse an asset n relztion to stock which s expected 1o e returned withim
nventory

Leasing

Where assets are acquired under hinance feases (including hire purchase contracts). which confer risks and rewards similar to
those attached to owned assets the amount representing the outriaht purchase price of such assets 1s included it property.
clant and equipment All other leases are classified as operating leases Depreciation s provided in accordance with the
accounting pcehoy below The capital element of future finance lease payments s included in habidities and the interest element
15 charged to the income statement over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element cutstanding Expenditure
on operating leases 1s charged to the income staternent on a strarght-line basis

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the forerign exchange rate ruling st the date of the transaction Mcnetary
assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencres at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rate rulng at
that date with any exchange differences ansing on retranslation bemng recognised in the income statement

The assets and habilities of foreign operations, mciuding goodw'l and fair value adjustments arising on consohdation are
rranslated into US Deidlars al exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of fore-gn operations
are translated mto US Dotllars at average exchange rates Foreign exchange differences anising on retranslation are charged or
credited to other comprehensive nceme and are recognised in the currency translation reserve in equity On disposal of a
foreign operation, the related cumulative translation differences recogrmsed in eguity are reclassified to profit or 1oss and are
recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Exceptional items
Excepticnal items are those which the Group defines as signdicant .tems outside the scope of normal business that need to be
aisclosed by virtue of their size or incidence in order for the user to obtain a preper understanding of the financial information

Retirement benefit costs
The Group's pension costs relate to individual pensicn plans and are charged to prefit or loss as they fall due

Taxation

Tax on the profit cr lass for the year compnses both current and deferred tax Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year. using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. and any adjustments to
tax payable in respect of previous years Tax provisions are based on Management santerpretation of country specific tax law
and recogrised whern it 1s considered probable that tnere will be a future outflow of funds to a tax autharity, Provisions are
made annually lzased on the specific information availlable at that time and therefore there 1s imiuted risk of change in

the estimates in the short term Deferred tax 1s crovided using the baiance sheet habiity method provichng for temporary
differences between the carrying amoonts of assets and labilities for finanoal reporting purpaoses and the amounts used for
taxation purposes However, deferred tax s net provided on the impal recogrmit-on of goodwill, nor on the imtal recogrition of
an asset or a hatnlty unless the related transacticn 1s a business combination or effects 1ax or aczounting profit Mot alt
temporary ditterences give rise to deferred tax assets/habihities A deferred tax asset s recognised only to the extent that it

1z probabyle that future taxable profits will be avatabile agamst which the asset can ke uthsed Changes in deferred 1ax assefs or
hzbnaties are recogmased 8s a component of tax expense i the moome statement. except where fhey refate to items that are
chargea or cred-ted directiy to other comprehensive imcome cr oguity, i wlhich case the related deferred tax s alsc charged or
crechted directly to othier comprehensive Icome Or sguty respecthvely
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1 General information and significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property plart and eguipment are stated at deemed cost less accurmulated depreciat anand any provision for im cairments n
value

The Group recogrises in the carrying amount of groperty plart and eguipiment the subsequent costs of replacmg part of soct
items whien there are future economic benefits Adl other costs are recogrised in prohit or loss a5 an expense as they
are mncurred

Cepreciation s provided on a straght-hine basis to wote off the cost less the estinated readual value of property plant and
equipment over their estimated wseful hves which are reviewed anrually Residual values are reassessed on an annual basis
Land s not depreciated

Estimated useful hves are as follows
Freehold property and long leasehold property impravements

50 years
Cwver the period of the lease

41010

Fieiures and htungs S 1o / years

Shart leasehold property improvements

Plant. equipment and motor vehictes

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over therr expected useful ives on the same basis as owned assels or. where
shorter, over the term of the relevant fease

The gamn or loss arising on the dispoesal or retiremer:t of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and s recogmised in income

Pre-publication costs

Pre-publication costs represent directly attributable costs and atiributabile overheads incurred in the development of book
titles prior to their publication Attributable overheads are allocated on a title by hitle basis These costs are carried forward
In current iNtangizle assets where the book title will generate future economic benefits and costs can be measured reliably
These costs are amorhsed on a straight-ine basis upon pubhication of the ook title over estimated economic lives of three
years or less bemg an estimate of the expected useful economic ife of a book title The investment in pre-pubiication costs
has been disclosed as part of the investing activinies in the cash flow statermnent

Inventories
Inventory 1s valued at the lower of cost and net reatisable value, on a first in. first out basrs Net reahsable value is the estimated
selling price In the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial labidities are recogrused an the Group's batance shaet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument
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Financial Statements

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 General information and significant accounting policies {(continued)

Financial assets
Financial assets other than hedging nstrurments are divided irto the following categories

» finsncal assets at amoertised cost and
« financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are assigned to the differert categones oninitial recogrition depending on the charactenstics of the
instrument andats purpese A financigl instrument s categery is relevant for the way 1t 1s measured and whether ary resulting
income and expenses s recognised e profit or foss or directly in eguity See note 21 for a summary of the Group's financial
assels by calegory

Generally the Group recognises all firancial assets using trade date accounting An assessment of whether a financial asset
s impaired 1s made at least at each reporting date Allincome and expense relating to financial assets are recognised In the
income staterment hne em "hinance costs or 'finance mcome’ respactively. with the exception of trade ard otner receivables
which are recorded in revenue and administrative expenses

Aftermitial reccanition Financial Assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method Discounting s
ignored, where the effect Isimmaternal The Group's cash and cash eguivalents trade and muost other recewables fall into this
category of financial instrument Assets in thus category are measured imtially, at farr value with gans or losses recegnized in
profit or loss

In considenng impairment of financial assets the Group uses a wide range of information when assessing credit risk and
measuring credit losses. ncluding past events current conditions. reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the
expanded collectability of future cash flows of the instrument

The Group adoots a simphfied approach in accounting for trade and other receivables and records the loss allowance as
Iifetime expected credit losses These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows. considering the potential for default
at any point duning the hife of the financial instrument. The Group uses its historical experience. external indicators and forward-
locking information to calculate the expected credit 1055€5 USING a provisIon Matrx

Derivative hinanciat instruments are intially recognised at fair value and subsequently classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and less Any gain or loss anising from derivative financial instruments 1s based on changes in fair value which
15 determimed by direct reference to active market transactions or using a vaivation techrigue where no active market exists

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial habihties include borrgwings trade and other payables (ncluding finance lease hiabiities)

Aftermitial recogniion at fair value all financial habihties. with the exception of dervative financial instruments, are measured
at amcrtised cost usimg the effective interest rate method A summary of the Group's financial kabilities by category 15 given
i note 21

All of the Group’s derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in accordance with the strict
conditions explamned under the heading 'Denvative financial nstruments and hedge accounting . are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss by defimiticn

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Fmancial habitbies and eguity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
wio. Aneguily nstrument s any condract that evidences aresidual inferest n the assels of the Group after deducting all of
financial liabihties

Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest payable cn berrowings calculated usimg the effective interest method togethar wath
the amortisation of debt 1ssuance costs

Finance income
Finance mcome camprises interest receivabie, which s recogmised in profit or loss as 't accrues using the effect ve interest
method

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows cash and cash equivalents comprise cash baiances call deposits and hank
overdrafts that form an integral part of the Groun's cash management processes

60



The Quarto Group tnn Annual Report 2018

1 General information and significant accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it pnimarily to the financia’ ricks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates
The Group uses interest rate swap Contracts (o hedge nmterest rate exposures The Group does not use denvative financial
instruments for speculative purposes

The use af financial dervatives 1s governed by the Group's policies approved by the Beard of Directors, which provide written
prnc.ples or the use of fimanoial dernvatives

The Greoup apphes the new hedye accounting requirerments 1FRS G prospectively. All hedging relationshios that were hedging
relationships under 1AS 39 at 31 December ZO17 reporting date meet the IFRS 9's critenia for hedge accounting at 1 January
2018 and are therefore renarded as continuing hedoing relaticnships

Dervative financial instruments are accounted for at far value through profit and loss. except for derivalives designated as
hedying mstruments in cash flow hedge relationships which require a specific accounting treatment To gquabfy for hedge
accounting. the hedang relationship rmust meet all of the foliowing requirerments

« there s an economic relationship between the hedgeditern and the hedging instrument

+ the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result fram that economic relationship

» the hedge ratio of the hedgimg relationsing s the same as that resuiting from the guantity of the hegged item that the enbity
actually hedges and the guantity of the hedaing instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged
iterm

All dervative financial mstruments used for hedge accounting are recogrnized mitially at fair value and reported subbseguently
at fair value in the statement of financial position

To the extent that the hedge 1s effective changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedgmg instruments m cash
flow hedges are recogmzed in other comprenensive income and included within cash flow hedge reserve in equity Any
ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship s recognized immediately i profit or loss

At the time the hedged tlem affects profit or loss. any gain or less previously recognized in other cemprehensive Incorme 1s
reclassified from equity to proht or less and presented as a reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income
However if 2 non financial asset or hatality 1s recogrized as a result of the hedged transaction. the gains and losses previously
recagnized m other comprehensive income are included in the initial measurement of the hedged item

if a forecast transachien s no longer expected (o ocour, any related gam or 10ss recogrized in olher comprengnsive INcome s
transferred immediately to profit or loss If the hedging relationship ceases to meet the effectiveness conditions, hedge
accountng s discontinued and the related gaim or fess s held in the eawity reserve until the forecast transaction oCcurs

The mterest rate swaps are level 2 financal instruments and they are valued using techniques based significantly on observable
market data such as yield curves as at the balance sheet date

Hedge accounting s discontineed when the hedging mstrument expires or 1s sold. terminated. or exercised, or no langer
quahfies for nedge accounting, Al that nime. any cumulative gain or 10ss on the hedging nstrument recognised N eguity 1s
retained in other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction ocours If a hedyed transacticn s ro longer expected to
occur. the net cumulative gain or l0ss recognised N other comprehensive iIncome (s transferred to net profit or loss for the
period

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity settled share-based payments to certain employees Equity settled share-based payments are
measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value. determuned at the grant date. of equity settled share-hased
payments s expensed on a straight-hne bas s over the vesung period based on the Group's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest

The fair vatue of emplaoyee share epticn grants s calculated using a Monte Carlo model, taking nito acceunt the terms ana
conditions upon which the ortions were granted The value of the charge g aciusted to reflect expected and actualt levels
of aptions vesting
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Ihe Quarto Group Inc Annual Report 2018
Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 General information and significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrovaing costs are recogrnised i the ncome statement inthe penadin which they are incurred Delbt 1ssusnce costs
compnsing arrangement fees and legal costs are Cantahsed and amortised on a siraighi-hne oas:s over tne nenod of the
barrowing fachty or includea within the amertised zost calcuiation as appropnate Tre arnual amortisation charge s incluced
within finance cestsin the Consoldated Statement of Comprehenszive Income

The Group does not incuy ary borrownng CosEs which are directly sttnhutable to the 2couisiion. construc Lon or Droguchine
of qualfying assets

Financial risk management
The principal sk factors faced by the Group are disclosed in note 21

New standards and interpretations not applied
The International Accounting Standards Board and the International Reperting Interpretations Committee (IFRICY have 1ssued
the following standards and mterpretations fer annual periads beginning on or after the effective dates noted below

(AS/IFRS Standard

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

Effective for vears starting on or after

IFRS 16 requires lessees (o recognise a lease hability reflecting future lease payments and a naht-of-use asset for lease
contracts subject to exceptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets Management s inthe process of
assessing the full impact of the Standard So far, the Group

+ has decided to make use of the practical expedient not to perform a full review of existing leases and apply IFRS 16 only to
new ar modified contracts

+ beleves that the most significant impact will be that the Group will need te recognise a night of use asset and & lease hability
for the office and preduchion buildings currently treated as operating teases At 3i December 2018 the future mimmum
lease payments, to be recognised on the balance sheet armounted to $11.217.000 This will mean that the nature of the
expense of the abave cost will change from being an operating lease expense to depreciation and interest expense

The Group s planming to adopt I1FRS 16 on t January 2013 using the Standard’s modified retrospective approach Under this
approach the cumulative effect of immally applying 1IFRS 16 1s recognised as an adiustment to equity at the date of mmitial
apphcation Comparative information s not restated

Choosing this transition appraach results in further policy decisions the Group need to make as there are several other
trranstional reliefs that can be applied These relate 1o these leases previously held as operating leases and can be apphed on a
lease-by-lease basis The Group are currently assessing the impact of applying these other transitional reliefs
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2 Revenue
2018 2007
$'000 $G00
Sales of products 149,292 152 512
“
All revenue recogrition s from products transferred at a point i time ;‘:g
_|
During the year sales to one customer exceeded 10% of Group revenue (2017 one custamrer) The value of these sales was g
326, E64.00C (2017 $24 257 Q0C0) 2
o)
m
S
3 Operating segments e
The core publishing businesses comprises three divisions. US Pubhshing UK Pubhshing and G Partniers This s the basis on
which operating results are reviewed and resources allocated by the Chref Executive Officer
UK
US Publishung Pubhshing G Partners Total Group
2018 $ 000 000 Lelele $'000
Continuing operations
Revenue 72,971 70,734 5,687 149,292
Operating profit/(loss) hefere amartisation of acguired mtangibles 5240 7913 (4187 12,735
and exceptional iterms 8
Amartisation of acquired intangibles (596) {254) (850 %
Segment result 4,644 7659 (a18) 1,885 z
>
Exceptional pre-publicaticn asset imparrment and write-off (note &) (1.164) — — (1i64) %
Exceptional iters other (note 5) (811 (4023 — (1,213} m
2,669 7,257 (418) 9,508
Unallocated corporate expenses (2.430)
Corporate exceptional items (2775
Operating profit 4,303
Finance mcame 21
Finance costs (4381}
Loss before tax (57)
n
Tax (495) e
»
Lass after tax from continuing cperations (552) g
Profit after tax from discontinued cperations - ,:E
Loss after tax (552) v
-]
_‘
m
Capital experditure 125 il — 248 nz-n
Depreciation and software amo-tisation 575 416 — 9 E
P
Investrrent in pre pubhcat.on costs 15133 14 611 - 29744
amortisation of and amaunts waitlen off pre-pubhcation costs 16628 14 89 — 927
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONMTINUED)

3 Operating segments (continued)

F—"ubhsr'utrg Pubhshlkriug G Partriers Total Group
201 goon $00G %000 _E'OOC__)“
Continuing Operations: - - o "
Revenue 74,134 72,737 5641 152,512
Cperating profit/(loss) before amortisation of acquired intangitles 4.64] 7099 {430 1,309
and exceptional ems
Amortisation of acguired intangibles (58E) (2445 - (BaQ)
Segment result 4,045 6,855 (431 10,469
Exceptional pre-publication asset imparrment (ncte 5) 1.C41) (28273 - (4 868}
Exceptional impairment of goodwill (note 5) (71007 (3145 - (17.414)
Exceptional items other (note 5) (82) (842) (46} (9703

4178) 1872 (4773 (12,783

Unallocated corporate expenses (416}
Corporate excepticnal items (983)
QOperating loss (17.882)
Finance income 25
Frnance costs _(_3;.325)
Loss before tax o - ’ N @
Tax 1,480
Loss after tax from continuing operations (19.702)
Profit after tax from discontunued operations 1163
Lossaftertax - - B T ss3e)
Capital experditure 539 790 - 1.329
Depreciation and software amcrtisation 267 Beb - 1132
Investment in pre-publication costs 18958 16.592 — 35551
Amortisation of and amounts written of f pre-publication costs 1€.308 20772 - 37080
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Balance sheet
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2018 2017
$0C0 3000
Contmuing operations
Quarto Publishing Group USA 85995 93085
Guarte Publishing Group UK 70,525 67684
Unallocsted (Deferred tax and cash) 19.285 21848
Discontmued aperaticns
Books & Gifts Direct. ANZ — 441
Total assets 175,805 183.358
Continuing operations
Quartae Pukhshing Group USA 30518 21818
Quarto Publishing Group UK 34,953 36 380
Unallecated (Deferred tax and debt) 89,216 91 331
Dhscontinued operations
Bocks & Gifts Direct. ANZ - 16
Total habilhties 154,687 159,265

Geographical areas

The Group operates in the followimg mam geographic areas:

United States of America
Unmited Kingdom
Europe

Rest of the World

Revenue Non-current assets

o 2018 7 2017 . 20]8 o 72017 7
i o M - Vj'OOO _ $000 ,,,%,-O,OO 7
86,092 86.444 51,488 52649

20,384 20,256 32,028 35443

25,314 292098 - -

17,502 16.714 — 18

- o 149.292 7 15&512 83516 89.16"

Nete the assets for G Fartners are included within those of United States of Amenca and Urited Kingdom
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 Operating profit

Operating orafit has beer arrived at atter chargmofcrediting?

2018 2017
o ... %000 $000
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment R N 693 g7
Depreciation of software 298 215
Net foreign currency exchange differences (129 72
Amortisation of acguired intanaibles 850 541
Amortisation of pre-publhcation costs 30.762 22212
Staff costs (note 6) 28.368 32504
Auditor's remuneration (see below) 244 25
Cast of inventory recognised as an expense 36,080 25174
Share based payments (377} 227
Exceﬂpoma ems (note 5_)7 e 5,1527 24235
Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable to the Company s auditer for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 93 90
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and 1its assocrates for the audit of subsichary companies 151 166
Fees pavable to the Company’s auditor for other assurance services — -
[ttt . L EeeTy e e e T e U > e 556 .
S Exceptional items
2018 2007
$'000 $'CO0
Goodwil mparment note T - 17.414
Reorganisation ¢osts
- Imparment of pre-pubhcaticn intanable assets (note 153 503 4,268
- Impairment of backhsts (note 12} &0 --
- Wite-off of pre-pubhcation costs 603 —
- Staff severance costs 1,039 544
- Royalty advance provisions — 409
- Inyventory provisions — 75
- Other reorganisation costs 672 —
- Board changes 83
Refinancirg costs 1,446 597
Aborted corporate transacton costs — 241
Aborted business acguisition costs — g7
otal T T T e 4o

Curing 2018, the Group mcurred the following exceptional costs (a) siaff severarce and reorganisation costs relating to a cost-out
programme that was implementaed in order to night-size the Group and to proviae a cath to sustamable debt reduction (of the
cests incurred. $634 000 would ordinanly have been included within cost of sales and $1.0772.000 would ordinarily have been
included w.thin adimimistrative costs). () costs relating te Board changes, following the Annuat Meeting, wihich would ordinanly
have been included within adminustrative costs, (C) refinancing costs wheh wowd ordinanly have been inchuded withn
adminetrative costs and (dy impatrrment and write-cff of pre publication costs as a corseguence of the cost-out programme
which woula ordmarnly have been included vathin cost of sales
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5 Exceptional items (continued)
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During 2017 the Group underteck a rev.ew of alimprints and certain reorgarisations plans to etther clcse or restruciure the
impnnts Iorelatien to the impnints affected this resulted in the related pre-pubhication intanaible assets. royalty advances and
irventory being impaired The charges inrespect of pre-publication costs staff costs royalty advance prowvisions and inventory
provisions would crdinanly be included watten cost of sales The charges in respect of implementing the facihty secunty
package and transachion costs would ordmarly bhe ncluded within admamstrative costs

6 Staff costs

2018 2017
Number Number
Average monthly number of employees (excluding Executive Directors) 3w e
.  so00 3000
Wages and salaries 24,745 28421
Socal Securnity costs 2,617 2.306
Other pension costs - 1006 1177
- R S o 8368 32504
Dhrectors remuneration s disclosed in the Remuneration Carmumittes Report an pages 34 and 35
The remuneration of the Executive Directors (2017 Executive Directors and the Executive Comrmuttee) who are the key
management personnel of the Group 15 set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in1AS 24 Related
Party Disclosures
2018 20017
Short-term employee benefits o  isaz 2az
Post-employment benefits 18 70
S B ) - ) 7 1480 2456
7 Finance income
2018
$'000
nterest ncome ] ) S
8 Finance costs
2018
$'00C0
Interest expense on borrowings i ’ 370
Amortisation of debt 1ssuance costs 3
Cther interest 370
- N ’ ' T azel
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9 Taxation
2018 2017
$'000 % C0C
Corporation tax - N ’ o -
Currerit tax 73 1552
Friaor pernods o 76 804
Totalcurrent tax S 7 aag 236
Deferred tax (note 19)
Crigination and reversal qrf}f;*mporarﬂy d\fferenqgsr 246 (3838)
Total tax expense/(credit) - S 495 (14803

Corporation tax on UK profite 1s calculated a2t 19%. based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax, (2017 19%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other junisdictions s calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurischctions The table below explamns the difference between the expected expense at the UK statutory rate of 19% and the
Group's total tax expense for the year

2M8 207
$'000 %000
Lossbe?cret_dx S o o o o R (57 (21182)
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2017 19%) ay o @as
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating i other jJunsdictions 0 -
Adjustment to prior years (85) 2G4
Tax effect of changes i legislation — e
Tax effect of items that are not deductible in deterrmining taxable profit 606 625
Other 86 -
lax expense/(crecity T gy asn
Effective tax rate - T T @868.43% 70%

G 22 Decembear 2017 the Urnited States enacted tax reform legislation commaonly known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
resutting n sigrificant modifications to existing law These changes included a reduction in the corporate tax rate from 35%

to 21% and a one-time deemed repatriation transition tax en unrepatrated foreign earmings The Group 1in consultation with its
US tax advisors has completed its evaluatuon of these changes in deterrmining the additional tax iability and has recorded a
habihty of $0 6m. which will be settled over a period of 7 years
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10 Earnings per share

208 2017

$'0C0 $ 000

Group Lj:rouD
From continuing operations B -
Loss for the yvear (552) (19.702)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {net of tax) 71 597
Exceptional items (net of tax) 4,603 22852
Earnings for the purposes of adjusted earnings per share R 4752 374
;t;m co—n;r:umg and ;i;continued operation; - ) 7 ) i
Loss attributable to owners of the parent (552) (18.513)
Armortisation of acquired intanoibles (net of tax) 7O 53
Exceptional items (net of tax) 4,603 22852
Proht from discontinued cperations — (1189)
E;mings for -tﬁe purpose of adjdrst.éa earningg per si:;re o o 4,752 374
Number of shares Number Number
Weighted average number of orginary shares 20,444, 450 20444 450
Effect of potentially dilutive share options 256,655 57563
aute&jiv)ewqmed aven;qé Vr;u mhber (‘f ordma@ shar.rrres - 20,701,105 21 0720‘081
Loss per share (cents) - continuing operations -
Basic 27) (96 4)
Diluted (27 (36 4
Adjusted earnings per share (cents)
Basic 23.2 183
Ciluted 230 78
Earnings/(loss) per share {cents) - discontinued operations
Basic — 58
Dhluted — 57
Loss per share (cents}): from continuing and discontinued operations
Basic (2.7) (906}
Diluted (2.7} (906)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11 Goodwill

2018 2007
o _ . %000 %000
At 1 danuary 43,007 47 475
Exchange ditferences (332) 582
Albecember T T T e asonr
Accumulated impairment losses - o -
At danuary (23,721 (6 281)
Impairment - (17.414)
Exchange differences - (26)
At 31 Decerrber - 3721y (23721
Carrying value N - o R
At 31 December 18,954 19.286
Impairment tests for cash generating units containing goodwill
The following uruts have sigrnificant carrying amounts of goodwill
2018 2007
- - - L $'000 $000
Guarts Publishing Group USA (QUSY - - N 12,882 12.882
Quarto Publishing Group UK (UKD 6,072 & 404
o ) 18,954 19.286

The recoverable amount of each cash generating umit CCGU™Y s determimed using the value in use basis In determiming value

Inuse management prepares a detaled bottom-up budget for the inthal twelve-month penod. wit
business urut A further two years are forecast using relevant growth rates and cothee assumptians

h reviews conducted at each
Cash flows beyond the

three-year period are extrapolated into perpetuity by applying a 2% growth rate The cashflows are then discounted using a
country-specific pre-tax WACC The growth rates used are consistent with the growth expectations for the sector in which the
company operates and the discount rate has been calculated using Weighted Average Cost of Capital analysis These are as

follows:

Terminal Growth Rates

2018 2017
Urited States of America 2% 2%
Uriuted Kingdom 2% 2%

Discount Rates

2018 N 2017
10 90% 1n72%
10.38% 1116%

Neither a 1% decrease in the terminal growth rate or a 1% increase in the discount rate would have led to an impairment

Goodwill, specific to the US Publishing Group was impaired by $17.1m at 31 December 2017 reducing its carrying value to

£12 9m The imparrment principally arose due to the decrease in profitabihity expenenced in ZO1
closed in 2017 and the previous carrying valde of its goodwill of $0 3m was impaired to nil
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12 Other intangible assets

Cost

At 1 Jandary 2017
Exchange differernces
Additions

Cisposals

AL January 2018
Exchange differences
Additions

Cispasals

At 31 December 2018

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2017

Exchange aifferences

Charge for the year

Disposals

At1 January 2018

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Amount written off for the yvear
Disposals
At 31 December 2018
a“r“;ying arnou-nt

At 31 Decernper 2018
AL 31 December 2017

Ihe Guarto Group Inc Annual

Report 2018

Backlsts  Software Total
. $00C 8000 $000
21124 Z 5z 2% 436
218 218
- 313 313
- (1046 (1046}
T2zaz is7e 2267
(138) (138)
- 77 77
. (26) (26)
hmd e me
17701 1384 19.085
163 — 163
841 215 1156
- (999 (999)
®705 700 19405
azn — (321
850 298 1148
60 - 60
- (26} (26)
o4 972 20486
1710 658 2.268
2637 B9 3516

n
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NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13 Property, Plant and Equipment

| easehond Equprrr‘Erlft
Property & Mctor Frxture &
Improvements Vehicles Fittings Tetal

Cost 3 000 $000 $ 000 3 000
At 1 January 2017 1250 10GEO 296 3.286
Exchange differance 101 o8 iR 237
Additions 433 406 27 1156
Disposals (327} (248) (52) (627)
Disposal of businesses (149) 1900 (82 (521)
ALY January 2018 1,308 iRiIS w7 354
Exchange differerice (573 (58 (23) (128)
Additions - 167 2 169
Disposals (%) (282) (i1 (302}
At 31 December 2018 1242 943 1.08% 3270
Depreciation

At 1 January 2017 653 210 576 1438
Exchange differences 53 50 29 iy
Charge for the year 52 444 20 817
Disposals (307) (223} (4> (534)
Cisposal of businesses 7 (86e) 139 (442)
At 1 January 2018 434 295 683 1.412
Exchange differences (30) (35) (2 (85}
Charge for the veasr N3 413 167 693
Disposals (3 (282) (11} (3025
At 31 December 2818 508 39 819 1718
Net book value

At 31 December 2Q18 734 552 266 1557
At 31 December 2017 874 521 434 2122

All property. plant and eauwrpment has been pledged as secunty for the Group's bank borrowings (note 18)

14 Subsidiaries

Alist of the significant investments i subsicdhanes, including the name. country of mcorporation and proportion of ownership
inferest s grvenan note S to the Company's balance sheet All of these subsidiaries are rcluded in tne consolidated results
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15 Intangible Assets - Pre-publication costs

2018 2017
$'000 $ 000
Cost - - - - o -
U
AL January 193,492 121721 5‘
Exchange differences (3.353) 4 €09 I_%
Aaditions 29744 35551 %
Reclassificatron te other balance sheet lines — (20135 %
Disposals ) o - (75122)  (263486) 3
Atmg_l-Dece-mge} “ _ - k - o - 144,761 193,492 3
At 1 January 133,214 120658
Exchange differences (1,999 1622
Charge for the year 30,823 22.212
Arncunt wniten off for the year 603 -
IMmparrment charge 5, 4 868
Disposals - o - (75022) (26 5346y
AvgiDecemoer . . . 800 174
NetBookvalue . ,, S
At 31 December 56,741 60.278 g
The assessment of the useful hfe of pre-publication costs and amortisation involves a significant amount of judgement based Jz>
cn hestorical trends and management estimates of future potential sales. i accordance with the accounting pcohoy stated Q

in note 1 The reclassification in 2017 refates (o final review of the becker&mayer acquired balances and apart from this
reclassification. no further adjustments were required The imparrment charge and the amount wnitten- off for the year, for 2018
and for 20017 1z included in excephionalt items and further informations mzluded imnote & Pre-publcation costs form part of
the carrying value of the CGU for each segment and are considered forimpairment of goodwillhin note 1

16 Inventories

2018 2017

R ... %000 %000
Fimished goods - 22,008 22.309
Raw njf:ferua\s - S o 226 ) 32@
T o S T T T s 22637

All of the Group's Inventeories have been reviewed for indicators of impairment Certa:n inventernies were found to e impaired
and z provisien of 32,079 C00 (2017 $2.045 000; has beenrecorded accordingry

Al imventeres have beer pledged as secunty for the Group s bark bor-owings (note 18)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEDR)

17 Trade and other receivables

2018 2007
$'000 £ 000
Trade recevables T ) 45430 4317
Other recevalbies and prepayments 5,046 102353
S s s3ae0

The average credit peniod on sales of goods s 7 days (2017 71 days)

The Group's trade and other recervabiles have beenreviewed for ndicators of impairment Certain rade receivables. including
certain trade receivables not yet due. were not considered fo be recoverable and a provision of $826.000 (2017 $831.000) has
been recorded accordingly. The trade receivables considered irrecoverabie relate to customers which are expenencing trading
difficulties In addition. scme of the recoverable trade receivables are past due as at the reporting date The extent of finarcial
assets past due but not impaired 15 as follows:

208 2017

$°000 $ 000

Less thanone morth - 1022 2ars
More than one month but less than two rmaonths e87 860
More than two months but less than three manths 182 SEIE]
More than three months but less than six months 171 745
Mare than six maonths ) 49 - 34l

The Group has nct provicded against these recevables as there has not been a significant change in credit guality and the
Group believes they are still recoverable No colateral s heid over these balances

Maverment in allowance for doubtfuf debts

2018 2017

$000 $'00C0

Balance at beginning of year gol 670
Amounts written off in the year (215) (476)

Amounts recoverad dunng the year 12 17
Exchange differences a7y 25
increase 1IN allowance recognised in profit or loss 245 565
Balanceatendoftheyear T 826 80

The Oirectors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approxmates 1o ther farr value Before 2018
trade recervables were disclosed after deducting a reserve for sales returns Under IFRS 15, the reserve for sales returns in 2018
{35 damyis included in other payables The reserve in 2017 was 36 4m The reserve s calculated based on a time lag between
sates and returng and tustoncal return patterns Maragement momtor actual returne against the reserve on a regular bais

Note 21includes disclosures relating to the credit nisk exposures and analys's relating to the allowance for expected crecnt
imsses The 2017 impairment provision was deterrmined on an ncurred madel basis under 1AS 39, whereas the current year
orovision was deterdmned on an expected loss modsl under IFRS @
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18 Cash, borrowings and net debt
Cash

Bank balances 1134
Chort term d@posms 4,250

Cash and cash eaulvaler\ts 15,384

The carrying amount of these assets apprommates to thew far value
The effective interest rate on bank balances and short-term deposits was G 4% (2017 O 2%)

Total borrowings
2018
3000

Bank and other Ioans 75,752

On demand or v.nthm one year 5.000
Inthe second year 70,752

2017
000

907
5 Q00

S T 75,752

Less Amount due for Settlemerwt within 12 monrhs (chowr. under current hab Ilt\es) (5.C00)

(5.000)

Arnount due for settlemerwt after 12 months 70,572

76.207

Weighted
average
interest rate

Average
tirme aver
which

Fixed rate WVanabierate for fixed rate  interest rate
15 fixed
Momnths

146

Total Corrowings  borrowings horrowings
$£'000 $OOO $'OOO %

US dollar borrmegc 55 450 23 000 32450 40
Other currency borrowmgs 203202 - 20 302 —

As at 31 December 2018 75,752 23000 52.752 40

US dollar borrowings 55500 20000

58

Other currency borrowmgs 26 407 -
As at 31 December 2017 £1.907

Other loans

Bank dnd other Ioans 13,000

Or\ d@maﬂd or \mthm one year _

Ir the second year 13,000

Less An ou tdue for settle eut w Al 14 momhL (showm under current Iwabw\ t|eS) -

Amount due for settlermnent after 12 months 13.000

Cither loans are with related parves as disglo C] i nete 3z are unsecured are repayable together with the accrued interest

an 31 August 2020 and carry an interest rate 25%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 Cash, borrowings and net debt (continued)

Weignted Aversge

average time cver

rterest rate vwhich

Fixed rate Variablerate for fixed rate  interest rate

Total  borrowings borrowirgs borrowirgs 15 fixed

$ 000 $'000 $0CG % Maonths

US ooHcr borro»mngs 13 OOD B.ODO - 35 200
As at 31 December 2018 13 OOO 13. OOO — 25 200
As at 31 December 2017 — — - — —

Bank loans

2018 207

$G00 $ OOO

Bank \oams 62,752 907
an demand or wwthm ane year 5,000 5000
I the <econd year 57,752 ?b 907
62,752 81 a07
Lass Amount due for settlement mthm momhs (shown Lmder current habmt\es) (5,000) (5 OOO)
Amount due for sett\ement after 12 rr'omth 57,752 76.907
Weighted Average

average time over

interest rate which

Fixed rate Varabierate for fixed rate interest rate

Total orrowings  borrowings Dorrowings 15 fixed

$'0C0 $ OOO $000 % Menths

IS dollar borrowings 42450 10, OOO 32,450 58 75
Uther currency borrowmgs ) 20.302 - 20,302 — -
As at 31 December 2013 62 ?52 10 OOO 52752 58 75
us dottar LOrrowings 55500 Z0.000 35500 iR 125
Other currency borrowmqs 26.40? - 26.407 — -
As at 31 December 2017 a1 907 2O OOO 61,907 38 125

At 31 December 2018 undrawn borrowing facidities totalled $2 4m (2017 $31m) The vanable rate borrowings carry Interest
based on LIBOR plus a margin, depending on the leverage ratio The Directors estimate the fair value of the Group's

borrowings to be equal to book vaiue by reference to market rates

At 31 December 2018 the Group hao a US$72 om (2017 US$E5m) multi-¢

urrency syndicated bank facihty (signed on 31

Oclober 2018) which s due to expire on 31 August 2020 The previous laan was de-recogmized dunng the yvear and a new loan
hias been recogrized. Banking EBITDA used for hank covenant purposes was $11 707000 in 2018

These facihties are subject to three principal covenants whichk vary over the course of the financial year At December 31

the covenants were

(ay Tortsl conschdated nel

agreemernt) At December 31 7018 net mdebktedness was 4 O times ERITDA

§2)]

ended December 31 208 ret finance charges were 3 05 times covered under thus covens

()
Decermber 21, 2018 Debt Serwv:

76

Cazh flow (s defined in the committed racility agregment) shall exceed
e was 142 himes cavered Lnder this covenant.

11 times Debt Service

2T

2018,

panking mdebtedness shall not exceed 4 88 times EBITDA (as defined in the committed facilty

EBITDA shall exceed 2 42 times net finance charges {as defined in the committed facility agreerment) For the year

For the yvear ended
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18 Cash, borrowings and net debt (continued)

Net debt
1 January Nori-cash Foreigr 31 Decerrier
2018 Cachflows wems exchange 2018
$0C0 $ 000 FCCC $C00 $CCOo
Borrowirgs  gigo7; 5781 oy e7s (75750
Cash and cash eguivalents 17946 (2.24%) (317 14,384
Netdebt - (63960 353 (301 388 (60,368)
1 January MNon cash Foreiwgr 31 Cecember
2017 Cashftows tems exchange 207
$ 000 ‘000 $000 §000 $ 000
porowinas 80748y el (R4 (2536 (21907)
Cash and cash egquivalents 18 824 {1.310) — 432 17,846
Netdebt  (el924y 451 (384)  (2104)  (6396D)
All of the assets of the Group have been pledged as secunty for the Group's bank borrowings
19 Deferred tax
2018 2017
$'000 $£'000
Deferred tax liabilities ) ) R
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation - UK 8 32
Pre-publication costs and other temporary differences - UK 4,688 5.060
T i  as9%6 5002
Pre-publication costs and other tempaorary differences - US 4057 3,428
Other overseas temparary differences - —
e 8753 8520
Deferred tax assets ' -
Tax losses and other timing differences UK 29 509
Goodwitl. intangible assets and other tempaorary differences - US 2,802 3.592
Net deferred taxation oty - - ags2 agw
The movement on the net provision for deferred taxation s as follows
2018 2017
$'000 3000
Net provision al daruary ' S C ael9 8480
Credit/(debit) direct to equity 246 (471;
Exchange difference through cther comprehensive income (259) 446
Charge {credit) to profit and loss 246 (3.836)
Net provision at 31 Decermber i ags2 4gm
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20 Trade and other payabhles
Current Liabilities

Trade payalhies
Other pavables

Total

2018 2017
$000 $ 000
45,850 agoa
19.067 14582
6407 60796

Other payables include the discounted deferred and contingent consideration liabidities of $1 2mn respect of prior year
acquisitions (2017 $19my $1 9m was nad in the year

Non-current Liabilities

Other pavables comprise the discounted deferred and contingent hatility of $C 6minrespect of prior vear acauisitions (2017
$17m)y The contingent habihty 1s based an the future prefitability of the agquired business for the vesr ending 31 December

2019

The Direclors consider that the carrying amaount of trade payables approximates 1o thes fair value

21 Financial instruments

The Group is exposed to market risk through its uge of financial instruments and specifically to currency nisk. interest rate risk.
crecht risk, hguidity risk and certain other price risks. which result from bothits cperating and investing activities The Groups
risk management s coordirated al ite headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board of Directors. and focuses on actively
securnng the Group's short to medium-term cash flows by minmimising the exposure to financral markets

The Group does not actively engage i the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor dees it wnte options
Ihe most significant financial nisks to which the Group s exposed and a summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

are described below

Foreign currency sensitivity

Exposures to currency exchange rates anse from the Group's overseas sales and costs, which are primanly dencminated

mn Sterling

Forewgin currency denominated financial assets and habihties. translated into US Dollars at the closing rate. are as fcliows

Financial assets

Financial habl bes

Shart-term exposure

Financial habhites

Long-term @xposure

At 31 December

2018 2017

000 $000  $000 4000
Sterling Qther Sterling Other

8232 1948 6512 e

(160%) (1.045) (1862) (394)

6629 903 asas 2773

(6,241 (3459) (22833  (25E4)

- 0212y (2556)  (81/9) e

The followirg table llustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the yvear and equity inregarcs to the Group s financial assets
and finarael hatahities and the US Collar - Sterling exchange rate

It assumes a4, 5% cnange of the Sterlng,/US Collar exchange rate

The senstivity analysis iz based on the Group's foreign currency financial instrurments bela at each balance sheet date

if Sterhing hadg strengthensd agamst the US Dollar by 5% (2017, 5%) then this wourd have ad the folowing impact
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21 Financial instruments (continued)

2018 2017
_ $'CCO $ 000
(Loss)/profa for the year 7 61 840
Eguity 2,609 2474

17 Sterlirg bad weakenea against the US Dollar by 5% (2017 %) then this would have had the following impact

2018 2017
o $'000 $ 000
(Lassy/proft for the year o 3 ®n (840
Equity (2,609 (2.474)

Exposures to fareign exchange rates vary duning the year depending on the volurne of overseas transactions Nanetheless. the
analysis above s considered ta be representative of the Group's exposure to currency nsk.

interest rate sensitivity
The Group's palicy 1s to minimise interest rate cash flow rnisk exposures. where possible and commercially appropnate. on
long-term financing through mterest rate swaps A part of longer term borrcwings are therefore. at fixed rates

At 31 Decermber 2018, the Group 1s exposed to changes in market interest rates through i1ts bank borrowings. which are subject
to variable interest rates - see nete 18 for further infarmation

The following tatle sllustrates the sensitivity of the protit after tax for the year and equity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates of +/-0 25% wath effect frorn the beginning of the year These changes are considered to be reasonably possible
based on observation of current market conditions The calcuiations are based on the Group's financial instruments held at
each balance sheet date All other vanables are held constant

A0 25% increase innterest rates would have the following impact.

2017

$000

(155}

(155)

2018 2017

. $'000 £ 00
(Loss)/pr_?ﬁt for Ehe year o N8 155
Equity 18 155
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk analysis
The Group s Maximum expesure Lo credit nsk s buted to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the talance
sheet date as summar sed below

2008 2007

o . $'000 ~$oco

Cashand cashequivalents 7 T g3ga 7o
Trade recevables 45,430 43327
Dervative financial imstruments 105 205
- S o o - - B - o —e\—m ”'”-__61,2?5”

The Group's credit nisk 15 primarily attributable to its trade receivat:les The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net

of allowances for doubtful recevables. estimated by the Group's managemenrit based on prier experience and therr assessment
of ihe current economiC environment The ongoing credn nisk s managed through regular review of ageing analysis together
with credit imits per customer

The Group continuously monitors defaults of custemers and other counterparties. identified either individually or by group and
incorporates this information into s credit nisk contrals Where avallable at reasonable cost, external credu ratings and/or
reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used The Group's policy 15 to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties

The Group s management considers that all the above finanaial assets that are not wmpared for 2ach of the reporting dates
under review are of good credit guality. including those that are past due Credit losses wntten off durning the yvear which are
subyject to enforcement activity are minimal

In respect of trade and other receivables. the Group 1s not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar charactenstics. The credit nisk for hquid funds and other short-term
financial assets s imited. since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings

Liquidity risk analysis

The Group managesits hgquidrty needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt serviang payments for long-term financial
habilities as well as cash-outflows due in day-to-day business Liguidity needs are momtored 1in variows time bands. cna
day-to-day and week-10-week basis

The Group maintains cash and marketabie securities to meet its hauidity requirements Funding for long-term hguidity needs
15 additonally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilitres

The Group's labihties have contractual matunities which are surmmarised below

3i December 2018 Current Non-Current
Within B 6tol12 1to & Cver 5
maonths months years years
$'000 $'000 $ 000 $'000
Bank and other loars T 7130 2765 74 686 -
Trade payables 45 850 - - -
Other short-term fimancial habilities 17836 1,250 — -
Cther long-term payables — o 569 .
S . T T 70816 3,415 75,255 —
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21 Financial instruments (continued)

31 December 2017 Current Non-Current
Within 6 cto2 tto b Over 5
months months years Years
$'Q0C $'000 $ 000 $'000
Bank lcans 6,454 1,478 78,289 - bl
byl
Trade payatbles 46,514 - — — 2
Other short-term financial liabilities 14,282 — - = E”\,
Qther long-term payables - — 1673 - 2
67,250 1478 79.962 - iy
O
. R P By
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category =
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and habilities as recoynised at the balance sheet date of the reporting
pernods under review may alse he categarised as follows Ses note 1 significant accounting polcies. covenng finanaial assets.
financial habihties and derivative financial mmstruments and hedge accounting for explanations aboul how the categoery of
instruments affects therr subsequent measurement
2018 2017
. . $'000 $000
Current assets
Cerivative fimancial instruments designated as hedgying nstrument s &
- Interest rate swap 105 205 g
Financial assels at amortised cost %
=
- Trade receivables 45,430 43127 ;
- Cash and cash eguivalents 15,384 17946 Q
60,919 61278
Non-cusrent liabilities
Financial habihities measured at amortised cost
- Borrowings 70,752 76.907
Other payables 554 1673
71,306 78.580
Current liabilities
Finarncial habilibes measured at amortised cost m
z
- Borrowings 5,000 5.000 JE
- Trade payables 45,850 46514 8]
P
- Other payables 19.067 14,282 ;
69917 65,796 P
ot
i m
Capital risk management A
The Group manages 1t capital to ensure that entities i the Croun will be abie to continue as & gong concern while Maximising 5
W

the return to shareholders through an optimal balance of debt ana equity The capital structure of the Group consists of debt.
which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 18 cash and cash equivalents and equity attrihutable to equity holders of the
parent comprising share capital and réserves as disclosed in the conseolhidated statement of changes in equity

The Board reviews the capital structure. including the level of naektedness and interest cover, as required The Board s
objective 1s to maimtain the optimal level of indebtedrness ard manage nterest cover to comply with the covenant requirerments
set out in nete 18 As part of this review the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks assogiated vath each class of
capital The Group has complied with ite covenant abligations during the year
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22 Other Financial Assets/Liabilities

Ir the reporting penods under review oiher fimanoial assets’i 2o V1 es cormpnse denvative finanaal instrurments as folicws

2018 z(n7
$000 $ 00
Current financial assets
Dervative financial inistruments - interest rate swaps 105

Tatal 05

The Group's activities expose it pnmartly to the financiaf nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rares
The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge the interest rate exposures The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes Aflinterest rate swaps have been designated as hedging instrurments m cash flow hedges
in accordance with IFRS 9

The Group s Interest rate swaps have been designated to match the corresponding loan terms to maximise the effectiveness of
the hedging instrument There was no ineffectiveness dunng the year and all movemeants were recorded in other comprehens ve
ncome, with amounts reclassified to finance costs within prafit or loss Fxchange rate swaps are not treated as bedging instruments
for hedge accounting purposes

The followng table detals the principal amounts and the remaring terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding at the
reperting date

Committed interest

Interest rate Principal amounts payments
N N 720_18“ 5017 ) 2018 " éOl? ) 2018 ) 201“7“
) - o % % $'000 $' 000 %000 $CCo
withinone year T 58 40 0000 10000 @70) (257
Within one to two years _— 37 — 10,000 - (605)
Dervatve T T 0000 20000 (3F0)  (862)

23 Contingent Liabhilities
Under the terms of the syndicated bank faciity, a fee of $745 000 would be payable on 31 August 2020 to the Royal Bank of
scotland plc f certamn conditions are not met

24 Share Capital

2018 2077
$'000 $000C
Authornsed
28 milion shares of common stock of par value of US$0 10 each 2800 2.800
Allotted, called up and fully pad.
20444550 (2016 20,444 .550) shares of common stock of par value of US$C 10 each 2,045 2045

The Company has one class of commaon stock which carnes no r ght to fed income

25 Retained earnings and other reserves

Hedging reserve
The hedgmg reserve comprisés the effective portion of the cumuiative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedg g
mstrumerts relsted to hedged transactions

Translation reserve
Trhe tranclation reserve comprises all foreign excnange differences ans.ng frem the translation of the closing balance sheets
of foresgn operations of the Group and the results of foregn cperations of the Group since 1 January 2004
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26 Dividends

2018 2017

3 000 3 elele]

Final dividend for the year ended 21 Decerrloer 2C17 of mil {2016 9 87¢/7 95%p) per share — 2.0°8
- 2008

Proposed final dividend for the vear ended 31 Decemper 2018 of nil (2017, nid}y per share - -

The Guarte Group Inc as a US incorporated company 15 required Lo collect US dividend withholding taxes on dividend
cistributions made to s nen-US sharehelders The US dividend withholding tax s generally 30% of any dividends paid to
Quarto’s non-US shareholders, but this amount can potentially be reduced pursuant to an apphcable income tax treaty
Detween the US and the country of residence of the non-US shareholder

For example. under the US/UK income tax treaty, the US dividend withhelding tax rate can range from il (apphcable to certan
UK resident pension trusts and tax exempt entities) to i5% (applicabte 1o UK resident individual shareholders and certain UK
corporate sharehelders) For US sharehalders, ne Us dividend withholding tax s generally apphcabie 1t should be noted that
certain documentation reguirements must be met by all shareholders prior to the payment of any dividends to certify ther
status as a US or non-US shareholder. and. if a non-US shareholder to claim any apphcable benefits under the US/UK or other
applcable mcome tax treaty Each shareholder should consult therr own tax adviser to deterrmine whether and to what extent
they may be entitied to claim a reduced amount of US dividend withholding taxes under a US income tax treaty

27 Notes to the cash flow statement
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits Cash eguivalents are short-term hughty igquid investments that are readily
convertble to known amounts of cash and which are subyect to insignificant changes in value

28 Share based payments

Performance Share Plan (‘PSP*)
The Company operates a PSP scheme that awards free shares

2015 award
The awards under this scheme were granted on 74 September 2015 The vesting penad 1s 4 years from the date of grant
The award vests (n the tollowing proportion

< 50% s conditional on the cumulative growth in Adjusted Diluted EPS being between 5% and 10% over the performance
period. resultng in the awards vesting on o shiding scale of 20% to 100%: and

¢ 50% s conditional on Total Shareholder Return (TSR beng between 7% and 15%. resulting in vesting on & shding scale
of 20% tc 100%

Participants are not entitled to receve dividends until awards have vested

Detarls of the share optians ocutstanding during the year are as follows:

2018 2017

Nurmber Nurmber

Outstanding at beginning of the year T T ey a6a 207484
Farfeiteda during the year (674643 (BO.O0T
Outstanding at the erd of the year T e74e4
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28 Share based payments (continued)
The key Inputs used to value the opticns are

EFS Fort:en

15K Porties
E2 09

Share p;wce at date”of grant £209
Fxpected Nfe (yvears) 4 4
Fair value per avard £178 £1C7
Waighted average remaming cor fractual e {yearg) zZ7 37
Chwidend yield (%3 397 397
Expacted velatility of share pace (%) ria 19
Model used Dhiwviddend Mante
discount Carlo
2016 award

The awards under this scheme were granted on 19 April 2016 The vesting penod s 4 yvears from the date of grant The award

vests in the following propartion

+ 50% 15 conditional on the cumulative growth in Adjusted Diluted EPS bemng between 5% and 10% over the performance
period. resulting in the awards vesting on a shiding scale of 20% to 100%. and
+ 50% 15 conditional on TSR being between 7% and 15% resulting in vesting on a shding scale of 20%

1o 100%
Participants are not entitled to receve dividends until awards have vested

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows

2018 2017
Number Num_l_:gr 7
Outstanding at beginning of the year o ) 287136 366728
Forfeited during the year (134,944) (79,592}
Cutstaﬁalng at“thé end of- theye;‘jr - ) o o 7 o 152,192 - 28;’1_Z:é
The key inputs used fo value the options are:

EPS Porton 18R Portion
Share price at date of grant o T Tezas 0 gzas
Expected hfe (years) 4 £
Fair value per award £210 £0.44
Werghted average remaining contractual hfe (years) 2z 33
Dividend yield (%) 388 388
Expected valatiity of share price (%) n/a a1
Bividenao Morte

discount Carlo

2017 award

The awards under this scheme were granted on 28 Apnl ZO17 The vesting penodag 4 years from the date of grant The award

vests in the following proport.on

+ 50%s conditional en the cumulative growthin Agjusted Diluted EPS being between 5% and 10% over the performance
period. resulting in the awards vesting on a shding scale of 20% to 100%: and
« 50% s cenddional on Total Sharehoider Return bema Letween 7% and 19%. resuiting in vesting ¢ a shicing scale of

20% 10 100%

Participants are not entitled to recerve drvidends unt | awards have vesred
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28 Share based payments (continued)

DRetar's of the share options cutstanding auring the year are as follows

Outstanding at beginning of the year
Granted durning the year
Forfeited during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

2018
Numbier

178131

(73.668)
104,463

2017
MNumber

189.063
(10.932)
176131

The key nputs used to value the options are

EPS Portion
£264

Share price at date of grant £264
Expected hfe (years) 4 4
Fair value per award £2 20 £048
Weighted average remarring contractual hife (years) 33 33
Owidend yield (%) 4 55 455
Expected volatiity of share price (%) n/a 18 6%
Model used Dividend Maonte
discount Carfo

29 Operating lease commitments
2018 2007
$'000 $'C00
Lease payments under operating leases recogrised in income for the year 1,91 1,489

Al the balance sheet date. the Group had outstanding commitments for future mirimum fease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows

Mimimum lease payments under operating leases within one year

in the second to Aifth years inclusive

After more than five years

2018
$‘OOON

1.87¢
6,329
3,803

12,008

207

Operaling lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group

commuitrnents cutstandmag at the year end (2017, $nul)
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30 Acquisitions

There were no acquisitions in the year On 8 August 2016 the Group acquired the pulbhshing Lusiness of becker&mayer LLC
for a consideration of $3 8m together with a working capital adjustment payrment capped at $1 0m and furtner contingent
consideration of up to $10m based on performance of the business over the next year The remarirg cansderation 1s payable
N stages over the next two years (note 203

21 Discontinued operations
On 30 March 2017, the Group completed the disposal of its 75% interest in Regent Publishing Services Limmited {"Regent™) its
Hong Kong based publishing services business

On 3 Apnl 2017, the Group completed the disposal of its 100% share of Books & Gifts Direct Pty Lirruted ("BGD Austraha™) its
direct sales business in Austraha

On 7 July 2017, the Group cormipleted the disposal of the trade and selected net assets of Books & Gifts Direct Lirmited ¢ BGD
New Zealand™) its direct sales business in New Zealand.

These disnposals were completed in ling with the Group's strategy of disposing of non-core businesses Proceeds from the
disposals were used to manage the Group’s net debt position as recerved The results of the discontinued cperations which
have been included in the consalidated mcome statement were

2017
Regent i ] %000
Reverve T T T T T T e
Expenses (2.803)
(Loss)/profitbefore tax T T T gy
Tax 3__
(Loss)/profitaftertax . gy
Frofitondisposal _ 32_@
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations 3068
Net cash inflow arising on disposal
Cash consideration 7000
Less Cash disposed __(3550)
Netcashinfiow - 3650

2017
BGD Australia _ $OOO)
Reverve N - ) B o e
Expenses ~ (19707
Loss before tax - - - o
Tax _
Lossaftertax - ) o o
Less on (325}
Net loss attributable to discontinued operations B - ) (.096)
Net cash cutflow arising on disposal
Cashconsideration ) - ) ’ -

s Cash disposed ) ) ) ) ) -

Net casnoutfiow - ) - (767
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31 Discontinued operations (continued)

BGD New Zealand ) o ) . . . $ 000

Revenue 3.07
Expenses (3667

Loss before tax £597)

Tax -

Loss after tax {587

Loss on disposal 1212)

Net Idss attributéble to discontinued operations (809)

LH0Qd38 21931v41S

Net cash inflow arising on disposal

Cash consideration 540

Net cash nflow 540

32 Related Party Transactions
The Group had the following related party transactions belween 17 May 2018 and 31 December 2018

Printing purchases:
2018
10_‘!_0 Printing Limited $'OQO

Accounts payable at 17 May 2018 4806
Purchases 1872

FONYNHIADD

Payimenls (595

Accounts payable at 31 December 2008 6.083

Loans and accrued interest:
At 31

Decermnber

2018

Loans (ad-\;anced on land 2 November 2018)__ -

Accrued interest on foans at 31 December 2018 76

Theleans are rom 1070 Frinting Limned (37 Om). Recrut & Company Limited ($15m) and © K Lau (%34 5m) The loans are
unsecured are repayable, together with the accrued interest on 31 August 2020 and carry -nterest at 2 5%

1310 Printing Limited and Recruit & Company Limited are companies over which O K Lau exercses control
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33 Reconciliation of figures included in other parts of the financial statements

2018 27
$ 000 $ 000
Adjusted Operating Profit N - ) - ’ - S o
Operating profit/dossy (continuing operations) 4,303 (17882)
Add back - Amortizabicn of acquired intangibles 850 840
- Exceptional items (note 5) 5152 24,235
Adusted operating profit 10305 7192
EBITDA
Cperabing profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items 10,305 7193
Net finanice costs » (4.360) (3.300)
Adjusted profit before tax (before amortisation of acaured intangibles 2nd exceptional iterms) 5,945 3803
Net finance costs 4,360 2.3C0
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and software 991 1132
Share based payments a77) 222
17587\71 DAW T T T S 1mne 8,547
Adjusted profit before tax before amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items
Adjusted operating profit before amartisation of acquired intang:bles and excepticnal items 10,305 7193
Less. et hnance costs (4,360} {3,300
Adusied profit before tax before amortisation of acaurred intangibles and exceptional terms 5945 3893
Free cashflow
Net cash from operating activities 38,372 44,6272
Investment in pre-pubhcation costs {28,744) (3555
Purchases of property. plant and eguipment (169) (1063
Purchases of software a7 (266}
Free cashflow 8,382 7742
Net debt
Shert-term borrowings 5000 5060
Medium ard 'ong-term borrpowings 70,752 76.907
Cash ard cash equivalents (15,384) (17.9486)
Net gebt 60C.368 63.961
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Restated
(note 1
2018 2017
B Notes - %000 $'000
Fixed Assets @
Investments 4 1209 1,436 ?g
. . - L .. 2
1,209 1,436 rm“
Current liabilities g
Creditors: Armounts falling due within ane year & ) 05367 (15,939) %
ase7n  asgsey 9
A
Creditors: Amgu{\ts falling due after mare than one year ] (544) ane)
Net liabilities {14,502) (15,619}
Equity
Calfed up share capital 7 2,045 2045
Reserves - Paid in surplus 33,764 33,7684
- Profit and Ig_‘s}s o (50,3113 (51,428)
Total equity {14,502) (15,619) 8
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 8 March 2019. %
They were signed on its behalf by %
B
o =z
O
m

-
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Director
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Restated

(note 1)

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $CCO

Admiisirstive excerses B N - - B o - (98
Imparment of Nvestments - (3 Z08)
Foreign exchange gamn/(loss) 822 (1.232;
Profit/(loss) before tax S N 822 (4,645)
Tax 3 472 NE)
Profit/(loss) for the year ] } - 1204 (5,761

COMPANY STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Equity

Share Paid in Retaned attributable

capital surplus earnings to owners

kY elele; $'000 $'000 $ GO0

Balance at 1 January 2017 (as previously stated) ’ 2045 33764 (44313) (8.504)

Prior yvear adjustment (note 1) — — 442 4472
Balance at 1 January 2017 - o 7 2025 33764 (4387 (8.062)
Loss for the year - - (5761 (S 7ED

Transactions with owners

Dividends to sharehclders — - (2.018) (2.018)

Share based payments — 222 222
Balance at 1 January 2018 R ) i 12045 33764 (51428)  (15619)

Profit for the year — — 1.294 1284

Transactions with owners

Dividends to shareholders — - —
Share based payments ) - — (773 (77
Balance- at 31 December 2015 - - ) - EéO.BH) (14,502)-
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1 Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are precented and have been prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 1023 1ssued by the Firancial Reporting Council These financial statements present .aformaticn
for the Company. not about the Group

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with apphcable accounting standards and under tne tustenical cost
accounting rules modified to 'nclude certain iterns as far value and in accordance with FRS 1GZ The financ.al statements have
been prepared using the going concern basis as discussed i the Group gomng concern disclosure

The Company has adepted the following disclosure exemptions

+ the requirement to present a statement of cash flow and related notes and
» financial instrument disclosures. incluchng,
+« categaornes of financial instruments,
- tems of iIncome. expenses. gans or losses reiating to financial instrurnents: and
- exposure to and management of financial nsks
There were no significant jJudgements or estimates in preparing the financial statements of the company

Restatement of Prior Year Results

During the current year it was identified that equity-settied share-based payments issued to employees of subsidiaries were
being incorrectly accounted for in the parent company financial statements Previously the charge or credit in relation to these
share-based payments has been included i the Company Statement of Comprehensive income when they should be
accounted for as a capital contnbubion 1o the subsidianes of the Company The Company's accouning pohicy nas been
updated to reflect the correct accounting treatment

The amount for share-based payment charges which should have been recogmised as capitai contributions 1n prior periods 1s
$664.000 Anadjustment has been made to opening reserves for the prior year of $442 000 to reflect the correct treatment
of share-based payment charges in 2015 and 2016, with a corresponding adjustment to the value of nvestments in subsidiaries
brought forward at 1 January 2017, An adjustment of $222.000 to investment in subs:idiaries has been made to reflect the
correct treatment in the year ended 31 December 2017 As a result, the prior year figures have been restated as follows.

Per prior Per current

year year

financial financial

statements Restatement  statements

3000 $'C00 $'000

Investments brought forward 4080 447 4522
Investments at 31 December 2017 772 664 1436
Retaned earnings brought forward 44 313 447 (438712
Retamned earrungs at 31 December 2017 (52,092 664 (51.428)
Adrministrative expenses (2200 222 (98
Loss before tax (4.867) 222 (4.645%)
Loss for the year (5.983) 227 (5761

N
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2 Accounting policies
The following accounting pclicies have heen spplied conaistently n dealing with items which are considersd rztenal in relat on
to the financial staterments The functicnal currency of the Campany 1s US Dollars

Investments
Investments in subsicharies are stated at cost less where appropriate provisions for impairment

Creditors
Amcunts owed te subsidiary undertakings are intially recognised at fair value. and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method

Share-based payments

The Company operates a number of eguity-settled. share based compensation plans that are awarded to employees of the
Company’s subsidiary undertakings The fair value of the employee services recerved under such schemes 1s recognised as an
expense n the subsidiary undertakings financial statements. which benefit from the employee services The Company has
recognised the fair value of the snare-based payments as an increase to equity with a corresponding adjustment to
mvestments. Equity settled share-based payments are measured at farr vailue at the date of grant The fair value determined at
the grant date, of egurty settled share-based payments 15 expensed on a straight-hne basis over the vesting period. based on
the Greup's estimate of shares that will eventually vest The fairr value of ernployee share aption grants 1s calculated using a
Mante Carlo model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted The value of the
charge 1s adjusted ta reflect expected and actual leveis of options vesting Further detait is set out in note 28 to the group
conschdated Frnanciat Statements

Cash and cash equivalents
There were no cash transactions during the year and accordingly no cash flow statement has been presentad

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are transtated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transactiorn Manéetary
assets and labthties denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rate ruling

al that date with any exchange differences arsing an retransiation being recogmsed 1in the iIncome statement The assets

and habilities of foreign operations. including goodwill and fair value adjustments anising on consolidation, are translated into
US Dollars at exchange rates ruling al the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated
info US Dollars at average annual exchange rates, Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are charged or credited
to other comprehensive Income and are recagrised in the currency translation reserve in eguity On disposal ¢f a foregn
operation the related cumulative translation differences recogrused in equity are reclassified to profit or loss and are
recogrused as part of the gam or loss on disposal

Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Company enters into fimancial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other camparies within
its group. the Company censiders these to be insurance arrangements. and accounts for them as such In this respect. the
Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent hability until such time as it becorres probable that the Company
will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

3 Tax
2018 2017
$'000 $C00
Current tax (Credit)/Charge (472) 11E
Corporation tax s calculaten at 21%. Laseo o the LS stardard rate of corporate tax (2007 21%) of the estimated assessanic
profit for the year The table below explaing the difference between the expected expense at the US statutory rate of 21% and

the Camparny s total tax expense far the vear
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3 Tax (continued)

Tax ot the U: corp(vatwon rax ratr— (f 2V (2ONT 2%

0
Adqustment 1o pror year ;I?
Tax effect of changes in legislatior ;
Tax effect cf \tema frdt are not ceduct\bl determiming taxable profit (i73) 975 %
Tax (Credit/charge (472) 118 £
)
O
]
=
4 Investments
Restated
(note 1)
2018 27
$'000 $'000
A Sanuary 1,430 4522
Capital contributicn {note 23 {2277 227
Amoumts written Offdurmo year - (3 208)
At 51 December 1,209 14356
%]
5 Subsidiaries 2
. . m
a) Trading companies P
Incorperation )z>
Registered %
address Issued and fully paid up m
Plage Date key _,hare LBD\'&B! Y he!d uegmem
Global Book Austraia 4 November 1999 D 1.000 shares of AEB earh 100" K Pubhchm
Publisting Pty Limited
Quarto Austraha Australa 14 September 1981 D 10 shares of $A1 each 1C0 UK Publishing
Pty L mnted
Quarto Group HK Llf‘ Hong Kong 26 January 2015 E 1OO shares of HKDW each 100 UK,/US
Pubhshmg
Guarto Publishing De\a“cre. USA 28 Juﬂ(—:- 2004 B 380 shares of 00 us Pubhshmg
Group USA \r.c US$O O] ecdw )
Quarto Pubhshmg p\c Umted KH gdorﬂ 1 Aprl\ 1976 A 100, OOO share; of tl eacr 100' l‘K Pub\mhmg g
Bt e I iy e it pi Z
Quarto Inc Delaware USA 16 October 986 B 86 shares of no par value 100" US Pubh(hmg 0
Rotov|5r’-n S A Swatzerland 18 July 1977 F 1 SJO <hare¢ 100 UK Publishing rI_>
of SFr500 each b
e e — - _ e = >
b} Non-trading company Z
incorporation L g
Registered lssued 2nd fully pad up a
Name Place Ddte gddress ke \hare Lamto. % held
Books & Glfts Dus—gt meeo New, Zec\amo 27 ‘leptembﬂr 1996 C 400 O ol \|]a!’c‘- of NZ$ ead. 100"

Larect'y helg oy The Guart ~ Groug g
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Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 (CONTINUED)

S Subsidiaries (continued)

c) Dormant companies

Name

AP Srreen Pr rwters mereu
App\e Prcss errted

AU Press meted

Cartogropruca Press me rted

Desr(m Eye Ho\dmgs L rmted
Design Eye Limited

Desrgm Eye Pubmhmg errted

EYE @uar‘ro Ing

Frne \Nme Edmorws erﬂrted

Frances Lincaln Limited

Frances meofn Pubhshers lelted

Jr rCOl’DOFBTjOﬂ

Uruted ngdom

23 T{Lrjrr'le 1949

Great American Tradmg Company

Llr‘mted (THE\

IQON EdrhOﬂS Llrmted

Igqu- drmtal com erlted

\vy Pre5< (The)
JFa Books Lim ed

L evves Ho\drngs Limited

MarshaH Edmom% l mnted

OEB Publwsh-mg ne

United Kingdom 15 December 1980
s Umted ngdom 1 March 1987 A
Global Book Dublrchmg Pty errted Urwted ngdom 7 JuWy 986 A
United Kingdom 24 February 1982 A
Umted ngdom 5 December 1972 A
Umted ngdom 30 November 978 A
Umted ngdom 9 Ju!y 996
United Kingdom 9 September 1086 A
Umited Kingdom 21 July 2005 A
Umted ngdom 7 February 2002 A
United Kingdom 7 February 2002 1)
Celaware. USA 27 Apnl 2004 B
Umted ngdom 12 November 1974 A

QED PubHsT‘mg meled

GU \D Dublrsh ng L|mrted

Quamtum Books L. ll"ﬂlted

Ouarto C wdrem 5 Books Lm’wted

Umted ngdom 30 Seotember 1980 A
7 February 1993

Umted Nngdom

Unrted ngdom 6 January 1976

Ouarro Medra Imc

Quartc Multr Medra err.lted

CJLM\ Pubmm g errted

Taalhs ec’

Cumressen’e E

ht\OﬂR

Qulr tet FuL |Shmc i rmr‘red

C;ma'\ \'\/Or\d Cr€ot Hons o L mm_ed

[3) November 1998

20 May 1986
[,e\aware USA ) 26 Ap-r-ﬁ;éS
HDe\aware USA “——10 December 207 B
N Umtecri'i;mgdomi 14 December 1984 AW
UntedKingdom 14 May1979 A
Umted Kquom 7 February 4002 _TA
UniedKirgdom 14 May 1979 A
‘United kingdom 20 Seplember 1997 A
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I“ued Chdre Cup\lal

TO 0 shares of £1 earh

Ou shareQ of £1 each

287 .JOQ shares of El each

400 shares f)f E each

WOO shares of El each
2 5hares of EW each

1000 shares

7777777777 — PR Registered
Place Date addre<5 key
Urlted Klw rgdom 30 September 1980"7 A
o Urited Kingdom 5 Jurre }9784 - /;77
United Kingdem 31 May 1977 A
Urited Kingdom 27 July 1981 7 m;\“ -
 Unted Kingdom 22 June 1992 A
 UnedKingdom 18 March1988 A
United ngdom 17 June '1-992 _A h
Delaware. USA 19 December 2002 B

of no par vaJue

SFE OOO shares
of OD each

100 shares of E1 each

O\)D shares of El each

1000 thres Of El ea;_h

% held

100

OO
1OO

100 shares of £1 each

EOO shares of E1 each

100 shares of £1 each
104“ shares of 10p each

of El each

20,840 Shares
of EO Cleach

1 shares Of £1 each

1 shares of El each

1500 shares
of no mar va\ue

AOO swarec of EW each

lOC >hares of E each

1OO :hares of E each ]

2 Chcres of £

each

3000 shares
of no par \fa\\_re

WOOO chareq O $| eacn

IOOO shareQ of £l r:arh

TUOO smares cf EW eaLh

1 sr ares of E] eak

100 9hcre\ of E ecclﬁ

W.536 shdre of EW each

IOO

WOO )
100

100
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5 Subsidiaries {continued)

d) List of registered offices

The OId Brewery. & Blundell Street. London N7 2Bt United Kingdom

AQ0 First Averue North, Minneapalis MN 55401 USA

1350 Morrin Road. Saint Johns, Auckland 1072, New Zealand

/o ZM Pertriers Swte 10 Ground Floar, 123 Clarence Street. Sydney NSW 20005, Australia
Room 2306, Technology Plaza 651 King's Road. North Point Hong ®ong

Fassage Perdaonet 1 1005 L ausanne, Switzerland

M ;Mo

6 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2018 2017
$'000 $ 000

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 15,167 15,839

180d3H D1231vdLS

7 Called up share capital
Details of called up share capital are set out in note 24 of the consolidated Financial Statements.

8 Contingent liabilities
The Quarto Group. Inc has 1ssued guarantees in respect of bank loans of subsidiarnes of $62.752 000 (2017 $81207.000)
Refer to note 18 of the group consclidated Financial Statements

9 Related parties

The company borrowed an amount of $0 1m from its wholly owned subsidiary Quarte Publish.ng plc. during the year (2017
2 Om borrowed in the year) The balance on the loan at 31 December 2018 was $15 2rm (2017, $15 2m) These balances are
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand

JINYNHIAQD

I
=z
P
z
a
I>
-
[44]
~
P
=
m
z
m
z
-
n

as



The Quarto Group Inc Annual Report 2018
Financial Statements

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

2018 Z01F 206

$'000 $000 $'000
Results - o
Revenue 145,292 152 812 154 610
Operating profit before armoreation 10305 7193 16989
Ope-r-atmg (loss), ‘profit - 4‘302* " (17.552)7 6144
Profit before tax smortisabion of acquired 5.945 3803 1 880
intanaible assets and exceptianal items
(Loss)/Profit before tax S (577  (u82) 13035
(Loss)/Profit after tax s (853%) (5277
Assets employed 7 - I
Non-current assets 83516 89310 0550/
Current assets 92,289 94 248 97133
Current habiliies (74.084) (710393 (6B RBY2)
Non-current habihties (80,603) (89.657)
Néitgg;ets h o ) - 21,118' 44?1& -
Financedby i o o
Equity 21118 24103 39,219
Non- controlling interests - 4,892
S N ) 278 24103 44
Earnings per share (cents) B T
Basic @27 (96 4) 46 4
Diluted (2.7) (96 4) 454
Adusted basic 23.2 18.3 498
Adjusted diluted 230 17.8 48 7

2015 oo
$000 3 GO0

182165 171329
16475 14927
5306 114.990
12,377 10.950

2208 noi3
8.523 8.0
1G4.45% 102 416
107 413 98.709

(71.275) (14428}
(87127) (6,464)
532444 49743
48285 44 802
5159 4941
53,444 49,743
413 295
a2 3¢5
462 391
461 391

& Theresults of 2014 to 2015 have not been adusted to reflect the effect of discontinued opeiations
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